Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take
no responsibility for the contents of this announcement, make no representation as to its accuracy or
completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or
in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this announcement.
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2015 ANNUAL RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of SCUD Group Limited (the “Company”)
is pleased to announce the audited results of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to
as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2015. This announcement, containing the full text
of the 2015 annual report of the Company (the “2015 Annual Report”), complies with the relevant
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited in relation to information to accompany preliminary announcements of annual results.
This annual results announcement and the 2015 Annual Report will be available for viewing on the
websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited at www.hkexnews.hk and of the Company at
www.scudgroup.com. The printed version of the 2015 Annual Report will be delivered to the holders
of the shares (the “Shares”) of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

*  For identification purpose only



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
For the year ended 31 December 2015
(RMB thousand except where otherwise stated)

Turnover

Profit/(Loss) for the year

Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to owners
of the Company

Total assets

EBITDA

Basic and diluted earnings/(losses) per share
(RMB cents)

Cash position

Current ratio (Times)

Total debt to equity ratio (%)

REVIEW OF ANNUAL RESULTS

2015

4,509,441
23,536

38,168
3,723,315
129,208

3.50
249,430
1.2

35.3

2014

3,728,184
(6,862)

(1,696)
2,973,929
100,797

(0.16)
122,229
1.3
39.6

% Change
(+/-)

+20.9
+443.0

+2,350.5
+25.2
+28.2

+2,287.5
+104.1
N/A
N/A

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) has reviewed with the senior management

of the Company the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, discussed auditing and
financial reporting matters and reviewed the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the

year ended 31 December 2015 before they presented the same to the Board for approval.
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Established in 1997, the “SCUDFRERR" brand has now grown into
a mobile digital product accessories brand to provide comprehensive
power solutions for mobile technological products including mobile
communication, mobile digital, smart electronic and multimedia
products. The “SCUDFRERE" brand has been focusing on the R&D and
application of lithium-ion battery, and on the back of its self-developed
and self-designed power management system as well as advanced
technology in battery module packaging, the brand stands at the
forefront of the industry, recognised as a highly reputable brand in the
safety and quality in its “SCUDFRTERR" lithium-ion battery modules. The
“SCUDFRERER" brand was crowned as one of the “China Top Brand”
in 2004, selected as one of the “China’s 500 Most Valuable Brands” in
2005 and recognised as a “China Famous Trademark” in 2006. In the
same year, SCUD Group Limited (“SCUD", the “Company” or, together
with its subsidiaries, “SCUD Group” or “the Group”) was listed on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), turning over a new leaf for the “SCUDFRTERR" brand.

The “SCUDREER” brand and ODM are the two core business
segments of SCUD Group, supplying high quality lithium-ion
battery products to the domestic retail market and manufacturers
of well-known telecommunication brands respectively. The Group’s
manufacturing industrial park located in Fuzhou with land area of
over 100,000 m? is well-equipped with extensive and advanced
facilities. Accumulated with years of production and management
experiences, the industrial park has built up a refined and modernized
manufacturing system and hence become one of the most important
R&D and production bases for lithium-ion battery module products,
mobile communication and digital product accessories nationwide.
Subsidiaries of the Company have been accredited with the 1ISO9000
International Quality Accreditation and [SO14000 Environmental
Management System Certification; their products have obtained well-
recognised certifications from UL, FCC, TUV, CE, CB, PSE and KC.

The “SCUDFREER" brand has built up a comprehensive distribution
system across China via its extensive distribution channels and use of
e-commerce platforms, with an ambition of stepping up continuous
overseas expansion, further strengthening its foothold in China while
eyeing international markets at the same time, and dedicating itself to
provide quality “SCUDFRTERR" products for consumers worldwide. The
ODM business of the Group mainly supplies quality lithium-ion battery
modules for original mobile telecommunication, mobile digital and
smart electronic products by entering into the supply chain systems
of well-known mobile technology products domestically and abroad.
The rapid development of the Group’s ODM business in recent years
enables SCUD Group to become one of the leading enterprises in the
industry. ODM clients mainly include Huawei, OPPO, vivo, Lenovo,
ZTE, Xiaomi and TCL.

[SCUDTRERR | RIEM1997F KL ES  BEEREK
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HISB AL © ©TSCUDTRER |REERER TS 0iE8
HEMNLZEREEEXABARAEREREEN
mah& © 2004F[SCUDRERR | Mg ESI F B E
mn )89+ 20054 [ SCUDFRERR | MR I AGE B
500E & EEBEMME ] 20064 SCUDTRFERE | S84
REAIFERBEZEIZ] - 2006 FREBREBMBRA
BITTRER] - [ARASEREWB AR AIRE
BREEE K[ £ B )R EBHAERZATAR LA (5
LR D) ERKI LT 0 AISCUDTRER |Ri2IEH T
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B RISOT4000 R BRI RRE - EmBiA TUL
FCC ~TUV * CE * CB * PSEMKCERRRE ©
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 HZE2015F12A31BILEE
(RMB thousand except where otherwise stated) (B2 AR  UARETTIIR)
2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000 % Change
ARBETRE AR®TIT Z3HESL

(+7-)

Turnover B 4,509,441 3,728,814 +20.9

Profit/(loss) for the year FEHEAN () 23,536 (6,862) +443.0
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to VIN/NETE? Y =N

owners of the Company FEML i F (F518) 38,168 (1,696) +2,350.5

Earnings/(losses) per share BREF,(EE) 3.50 (0.16) +2,287.5

— Basic and diluted (RMB cents) - EAREE(ARES)
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REGISTERED OFFICE AMREE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited (name changed from Codan ~ Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited (E &8
Trust Company (Cayman) Limited to Conyers Trust Company F Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited &
(Cayman) Limited with effect from 30 March 2017) ¥ & Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited,

B201743A30H B4R

Cricket Square Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681 P.O.Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111 Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC PEEFEE XA

SCUD Industrial Park FEEEE

Fuzhou Pilot Free Trade Zone BNTERER

No. 98 Jianbin Avenue East VLB R A E 985

Mawei District, Fuzhou N ERRE

Fujian Province, PRC RERTER

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG BERERME

Room 1017, 10/F Leighton Centre BB IR

77 Leighton Road 1EUEET TR

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong BEh 1081017 F

BOARD OF DIRECTORS EEg

Executive Directors HITES

Fang Jin (Chairman) He(ER)

Guo Quan Zeng (Chief Executive Officer) SRR IE (TTHUAEEL)

Feng Ming Zhu (appointed with effect from 25 August 2016) AT (B2016F8 A25ABELT)

Huang Yan (resigned with effect from 25 August 2016) =#(HE201658 A25H#EET)

Non-Executive Directors FHITES

Zhang Li (appointed as an Executive Director on 31 December 2010 R (FR2010F 12 A3 A EZEAWNTES
and redesignated as a Non-Executive Director with effect from WiR2016F8 A25HIBREAIENTES)
25 August 2016)

Hou Li (appointed with effect from 25 August 2016) B3 (B2016F8 A25HBEELF)

Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHITES

Loke Yu 79797\

Wang Jing Zhong FaA

Wang Jian Zhang FEE

Heng Ja Wei Victor (appointed with effect from 1 September 2016) R4 (B2016F9 A1 HEEZR(T)
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COMPANY SECRETARY NEME

Yeung Mun Tai (FCCA, CPA) 5mZ (FCCA, CPA)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES ERERK

Fang Jin Pk

Yeung Mun Tai N

LEGAL ADVISER PSS

Reed Smith Richards Butler BEE (R R

20th Floor, Alexandra House BERIRIEITE185%

18 Chater Road, Central B KE201

Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR B R Em

BDO Limited Certified Public Accountants AR EERETMEEAERA R

25th Floor, Wing On Centre ERTHER1115

111 Connaught Road, Central KEZH 2518

Hong Kong

AUDIT COMMITTEE EREEE

Loke Yu (Chairman) B G R(EFE)

Wang Jing Zhong FHA

Wang Jian Zhang Frs

Heng Ja Wei Victor (appointed with effect from 1 September 2016) R4 (B2016F9 A1 HEEZRT)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND FMEEERREEES
NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Loke Yu (Chairman) BEygMR(ERE)

Fang Jin ik

Wang Jing Zhong Faa

Heng Ja Wei Victor (appointed with effect from 1 September 2016) R4 (E2016F9 A1 BREST)

RESUMPTION COMMITTEE EHEEs

Loke Yu (Chairman) B (EFE)

Wang Jing Zhong TR

Wang Jian Zhang =

Heng Ja Wei Victor (appointed with effect from 1 September 2016) MxR#E(E2016F9H 1 BB EZR(E)

Hou Li (appointed with effect from 25 August 2016) & (H2016F8 A25HIBELT)
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited (Note)
Royal Bank House — 3rd Floor

24 Shedden Road

P.O. Box 1586

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

Note:

The name of the Company’s share registrar and transfer office in the
Cayman Islands has been changed from “Royal Bank of Canada Trust
Company (Cayman) Limited” to “SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited”
with effect from 12 May 2017.

The address of the Company’s share registrar and transfer office in
the Cayman Islands has also been changed from “4th Floor, Royal
Bank House, 24 Shedden Road, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-
1110, Cayman Islands” to “Royal Bank House — 3rd Floor, 24 Shedden
Road, P.O. Box 1586, Grand Cayman, KY1-1110, Cayman Islands”
with effect from 12 May 2017.

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22 Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Fujian Haixia Bank

China Merchants Bank
China Construction Bank
Xiamen International Bank
Bank of China

WEBSITE

http://www.scudgroup.com

RIBFETEE

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited (Fff3E)
Royal Bank House — 3rd Floor

24 Shedden Road

P.O. Box 1586

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

B

ARG HASEHENRNBFELSENEHE B
[Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman)
Limited ] % & SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited] -
B2017F5 8128 BEK -

RRABRAEHESHRMN B EREH KR I T
[ 4th Floor, Royal Bank House, 24 Shedden Road,
George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-1110, Cayman
Islands % ¥ %[ Royal Bank House — 3rd Floor, 24
Shedden Road, P.O. Box 1586, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1110, Cayman Islands] * B2017F5H 128 &
HER o
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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of SCUD Group
Limited (“SCUD", the “Company” or, together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual results of the
Company for the full year from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015
(the “Review Period”).

Looking back into 2015, the global smartphone market, without
revolutionary reform, entered into a growth buffer period due to
the lack of powerful driver. In the domestic market, domestic mobile
phone brands exerted efforts in respect of production technology,
with a view to stimulate the demands for change of mobile phones
by the changes in new technologies, new functions, etc. Domestic
premium mobile phone brands, riding on their own technical
advantage and strong market base, have gradually enlarged their
shares in the domestic market while intensifying their layout in
overseas market to further consolidate their market positions. In
the global market which was previously dominated by overseas
brands, the PRC mobile phone brands are currently ranking the top
in respect of market share, giving rise to significant enhancement of
the recognition of the PRC mobile phone brands. The rise of the PRC
branded smartphones was mainly attributable to the establishment of
brand strength based on the demands in domestic market, followed
by gradual launch of PRC mobile phone parts and components in the
international market, which also contributed to the market visibility of
the PRC lithium-ion battery brands and rapid growth of market share
in recent years. Despite the further slowed growth of smartphone
demand in 2016, which will affect mobile phone battery manufactures
to a certain extent, the overall trend of growth will remain.

SCUD Group has been focusing on the R&D and production of lithium-
ion batteries over the years. By virtue of the quality imported bare
battery cells, high brand awareness, proven technology and process,
and the capacity to produce various lithium-ion battery modules,
SCUD is widely recognised in the industry in terms of its product
quality and technology. The Group currently takes a pole position in
the high-end lithium-ion battery module manufacturing sector. Of the
two core business of the SCUD Group, “SCUDREER" own-brand
business and ODM business, the performance of ODM business was
ideal in 2015, and SCUD is the battery supplier for many renowned
domestic and overseas manufacturers of branded smartphones and
tablets providing lithium-ion battery module solutions and products,
such manufacturers include Huawei, OPPO, vivo, Xiaomi, Lenovo, ZTE
and TCL. In 2015, the shipment of ODM mobile phone batteries was
approximately 135.8 million pieces, representing an increase of over
20% as compared with the approximately 111.0 million pieces in
2014.
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In recent years, more diversified portable smart electronic products
emerged in the market, imposing increasingly higher requirements
on battery capacity, while the development of the capacity of mobile
phone battery was very limited, mainly due to the bottlenecks in
battery technology development. The smartphone battery technology
has never caught up with the breakthrough in respect of smartphone
functions, and lithium-ion battery technology has become one of
the technologies with the slowest advancement in the development
of smartphone, which will continue in the future. Certain emerging
battery technologies, though with outstanding performance in terms
of specific energy or energy density, cannot be applied in smartphone
due to the current high manufacturing costs. Accordingly, the current
technology can only achieve capacity in direct proportion to volume,
and thus a larger capacity at the same volume requires greater
technological breakthroughs. However, in recent years, consumers
concerned about the improvement of battery endurance mostly. The
battery endurance of mobile phone will be a critical factor affecting
consumers’ selection of the next mobile phone and such selling point
is vigorously tapped by mobile phone manufacturers. Due to the
absence of significant breakthrough in terms of battery technology,
mobile phone manufacturers are unable to extend the battery
endurance of smartphones only by increasing capacity. Therefore,
many manufacturers focus on the research of rapid charging
technology and power saving function for mobile phones.

With more powerful functions, smartphones require premium
batteries with better performance in safety, stability and endurance.
“SCUDFRERR" has been enjoying the reputation of high safety and
superior quality in the lithium-ion battery module sector. Having
thorough knowledge in lithium-ion battery performance and extensive
experience in battery module design, the Group is able to supply high
quality lithium-ion batteries customised for different types of smart
electronic products. Backed by powerful manufacturing capacity,
reliable quality assurance system, premium bare battery cells, state-
of-the-art protection circuit design and precise production process
control, SCUD has secured a leading position in the industry. The
Group pays close attention to the safety in using battery of electronic
products. While pursuit of high efficiency and endurance, it is required
to inspect the safety of battery in a more rigorously manner to ensure
that all the batteries delivered meet a high safety standard.
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Looking ahead, the development of smartphones will shape the
development direction of the mobile phone accessories industry and
the hot sales of smartphones in the PRC market will further promote
the high speed growth of demand for high-capacity lithium-ion
battery. It is expected that the diverse smart wearable devices will
become another hot spot in the consumption of electronic products.
The Group will adjust its development strategies in response to
market movements. The Group will invest more resources in R&D and
production of lithium-ion battery module products with high quality,
so as to further consolidate and raise the market status of the Group
and establish stronger presence of its brand. The core competence of
SCUD Group is illustrated by its leading technology R&D, professional
battery module development and manufacturing, high quality clientele
and high quality bare battery cell supplies, and is also demonstrated
by its commitment to provide customers and consumers with safe,
light and durable green power products.

On behalf of the Board of Directors and the Management team,
I would like to thank all SCUD’s staff, directors, customers, suppliers,
all shareholders and institutions providing professional services to the
Company for all your support to SCUD throughout these challenging
times.

RERR @ BREFHOBRBESRSIBFHREMT
EORKERTH  PETSERETHRORERE
—SHBTRREERFELTRNGRIER - |
AR ZENIFRELEREERXREFEREE
FH—EFAR AREEEEMSECRARE
RBRE  HERAEZERMEMEESEENE
BrEOREER  E-SERNREAKENTS
Wi - FREENMEZE N - REBREENZL
BHFESBRAALRMNE  FXEHRAME
g - BERPEUALBENECHE  BIRA
EPMHBERHELZE B  HANKBRRE

]
AR °

AAEBENBRERRESFSNEREBK - RO KN
REMRZEET EF  FP  H#EH  28BER
RARBIREEERGOEE - EXm IR 2
—HERERG T -



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREEERAF

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2015

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEER RO

INDUSTRY REVIEW

According to the report prepared by the global market research
firm TrendForce, the total global shipment of smartphones was
approximately 1.293 billion units in 2015, representing a growth
of approximately 10.3% year-on-year, of which the shipment of
mobile phones by domestic mobile phone manufacturers was up to
approximately 539 million units, accounting for over 40% of the
total global shipment. Seven out of the top ten global mobile phone
manufacturers were domestic mobile phone manufacturers. In 2015,
domestic mobile phone brands became more prominent in the global
market, such trend is expected to be maintained in 2016.

In 2015, the sales in the PRC mobile phone market amounted to
386 million units, representing a decrease of approximately 0.8%
as compared with 2014. At present, the PRC mobile phone market
has been basically saturated. There is no significant change in the
mobile phone function and the base number of mobile phone is
large. In addition, there is no revolutionary reform in the market. The
aggregate effects of the growth of mobile phone users have come
to an end and the sales in the mobile phone market have started to
decline slightly. However, with the development and improvement of
mobile internet industry, three major operators have fully launched
the construction of 4G network and users’ demands for network
interconnection for smartphones also rose sharply, resulting in
further accelerated popularization of 4G mobile phones. The sales
of 4G mobile phone saw an explosive growth in 2015 and the
proportion thereof in the total sales of mobile phones increased from
approximately 21.4% in 2014 to approximately 77.9% in 2015.

In 2015, domestic mobile phone brands exerted efforts to
gradually gain a share in the domestic mobile phone market with
fierce competition by leveraging on their advantage in respect of
understanding the user habits and consumption psychology of mobile
phone consumers in the PRC. Domestic premium mobile phone
brands, riding on their own technical advantage and strong market
base, have gradually enlarged their shares in the domestic market and
consolidated their market positions. It is expected that, in the next
few years, the PRC domestic mobile phone brands will continue to
gain more share in the domestic mobile phone market. In respect of
sales channel, the structure of domestic mobile phone market channel
experienced drastic changes in the year, the most prominent one of
which was the rise of e-commerce channel with the proportion of
sales through such channel up by approximately 30%, making it the
main sales channel in the domestic mobile phone market. However,
the growth of sales through traditional channels was sluggish,
resulting in a substantial drop in the proportion of sales through
traditional channels as compared to 2014.
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Battery is a technology with a long history and our demands for
portable small batteries are also increasing gradually. Our life is
inseparable from battery which is playing an increasingly important
role. Lithium-ion battery plays a vital role in the development of
portable electronic products. Lithium-ion battery can be regarded
as a critical factor for the rapid development of small and medium-
sized electric equipment including smartphones, wearable devices
and laptops and the enhancement of battery capacity, safety and
stability is currently the most important part in the development and
application of lithium-ion battery. Given their higher brand awareness
and popularity along with the surging demand for mid- to high-end
smartphones, domestic smartphone manufacturers have proactively
rolled out more mid- to high-end models embedded with advanced
hardware and functions. Smartphones with high-end hardware and
large screens will accelerate battery drain and require batteries with
better quality and longer endurance. Over the years, batteries for
smartphones were evolving towards higher capacity. However, no
breakthrough has been achieved in respect of battery technology.
Regardless of the power of the smartphone hardware, all such
functions is to a large extent dependent on the battery. Therefore,
the enhancement of battery endurance is a very great competitive
edge for smartphone. The current feasible method to improve battery
endurance is only to increase the capacity of battery. For capacity
expansion, manufacturers mainly adopt ways to increase the energy
density of lithium-ion battery or the volume occupied by battery. The
increase in energy density is more likely to be applied to more models
in 2016 as it will not affect the thickness of mobile phone. Since the
next generation of processor, software optimisation and other factors
are conducive to the increase in battery life, the design of removable
battery is very likely to be knocked out by 2016.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

SCUD Group engages in the development, manufacture and sale
of lithium-ion battery modules for smartphones, tablets and other
smart electronic products as well as the provision of all-round power
supply solutions for various consumer electronic products. The Group
is in the industry leading position among domestic professional
lithium-ion battery module manufacturers in terms of technology,
production capacity and sales volume. The sound partnership with
various international renowned bare battery cell producers and
telecommunications product manufacturers has become a major
strength of the Group in developing its lithium-ion battery business.
The current operations of SCUD Group comprise its ODM business and
own-brand business. The ODM business mainly supplies lithium-ion
battery modules to manufacturers of well-known telecommunication
brands at home and abroad, while the own-brand business mainly
engages in the sale of power banks and mobile phone accessories
under “SCUDIRZERR” brand in the PRC. At present, approximately
78% of the Group’s revenue is derived from the ODM business mainly
serving renowned smartphone and tablet manufacturers at home
and abroad which enjoy stable shares in the end market. In view of
the rapid growth in the end market for smartphones and tablets in
recent years, the ODM business is expected to account for a higher
proportion of the Group’s total revenue and continue to drive our
sales and profit growth in the future.

During the period from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015 (the
“Review Period”), the Group’s consolidated turnover amounted
to approximately RMB4,509.4 million (2014: RMB3,728.8 million),
representing a growth of approximately 20.9% from 2014. The
profit attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
RMB38.2 million (2014: loss attributable to owners of the Company
RMB1.7 million), representing a growth of approximately 2,350.5%
from 2014. Basic and diluted earnings per share increased to
approximately RMB3.50 cents (2014: Basic and diluted losses per
share RMBO0.16 cents). The ODM business recorded a turnover of
approximately RMB3,518.4 million (2014: RMB2,695.2 million),
accounting for approximately 78.0% (2014: 72.3%) of the Group’s
consolidated turnover. The own-brand business recorded a turnover of
approximately RMB620.0 million (2014: RMB749.7 million), accounting
for approximately 13.7% (2014: 20.1%) of the Group's consolidated
turnover. The bare battery cell business recorded a turnover of
approximately RMB194.8 million (2014: RMB243.7 million), accounting
for approximately 4.3% (2014: 6.5%) of the Group’s consolidated
turnover.
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ODM Business

The Group’s ODM business mainly focuses on providing all-round
power supply solutions to manufacturers of renowned smartphone
and tablet brands at home and abroad. Capitalising on its experience
in manufacturing lithium-ion batteries and R&D on application
technology, the Group’s experienced ODM product development team
is able to jointly develop, design and optimise battery solutions that
best align with customer needs. Backed by imported premium bare
battery cells, state-of-the-art protection circuit design and precise
production process control, SCUD has secured a leading position in
the industry.

The Group is currently a supplier of lithium-ion battery modules for
well-known branded smartphone and tablet manufacturers including
Huawei, OPPO, vivo, Xiaomi, Lenovo, ZTE and TCL. Fuelled by strong
demands from the existing and new customers, the ODM business
became a strong sales and profit growth driver in 2015. With a
view to fulfilling the current orders and the demand for continuous
expansion in production and operating scale, the Group has invested
more resources in its business, such as the introduction of additional
automated and semi-automated equipment to expedite the transition
from the labour-intensive production model to semi- and full-
automation. The transition is expected to enhance productivity and
further improve the quality management system.

The lithium-ion battery products supplied by the ODM business mainly
consist of original smartphone batteries customised for clients (“ODM
mobile phone batteries”) and original power banks customised for
clients (“ODM power banks”). The Company also supplies motive
battery and lithium-ion battery modules for tablets and medical
devices. During the Review Period, ODM mobile phone batteries
recorded sales volume of approximately 135.8 million pieces (2014:
111.0 million pieces) and turnover of approximately RMB3,344.9
million (2014: RMB2,532.3 million), significantly increased by
approximately 22.3% and 32.1% year-on-year respectively. In 2015,
ODM mobile phone batteries contributed approximately 95.1% (2014:
94.0%) of turnover of the ODM business. During the Review Period,
the ODM business segment recorded net profit of approximately
RMB121.5 million (2014: RMB73.5 million).
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In 2015, the Group’s ODM business is expected to benefit from the
growth in sales volume of smartphones due to their surging popularity
in the PRC, whereas mid- to high-end smartphones are in greater
need of premium batteries with better performance in safety, stability
and endurance. “SCUDFRERR" has been enjoying high reputation
in the lithium-ion battery module sector in terms of safety standard
and quality. Having thorough knowledge in lithium-ion battery
performance and extensive experience in battery module design, the
Group is able to supply high quality lithium-ion batteries customised
for different types of smartphones and tablets. Looking ahead, the
ODM business fuelled by strong demands from the existing and new
customers is well positioned to support the Group to maintain its
edge in the smartphone and tablet battery market.

Own-brand Business

The own-brand business mainly consists of domestic sale of power
banks (“own-brand power banks”) and other mobile phone
accessories under our “SCUDFRERR" brand. Own-brand power banks
become the largest revenue contributor which accounted for
approximately 52.3% in sales revenue for our own-brand products.
During the Review Period, the own-brand business recorded
consolidated turnover of approximately RMB620.0 million (2014:
RMB749.7 million), representing a decline of approximately 17.3%
year-on-year. Own-brand power banks recorded sales volume
of approximately 5.2 million pieces (2014: 6.5 million pieces),
representing a decline of approximately 20.0% year-on-year and
contributing turnover of approximately RMB324.3 million (2014:
RMB392.5 million). Own-brand mobile phone batteries recorded
sales volume of approximately 3.7 million pieces (2014: 7.7 million
pieces), representing a decrease of approximately 51.9% year-on-
year and contributing turnover of approximately RMB80.8 million
(2014: RMB162.4 million). During the Review Period, revenue of
approximately RMB164.8 million (2014: RMB173.1 million) was
derived from sales of power management module manufactured
by the Group. During the Review Period, the own-brand business
recorded net loss of approximately RMB39.5 million (2014: RMB4.7
million).
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The rapid growth and higher performance requirements of smart
electronic products promoted the development of power supply
technologies. In recent years, power banks have experienced rapid
development. “SCUDFREER" brand is renowned in the industry for its
years of experience in manufacturing mobile phone batteries and the
safety and quality of its battery products. Product quality and safety
remain the priorities for power banks under the “SCUDFRERE" brand.
The “SCUDRERR” branded power banks, which are well received
by customers, have secured a considerable market share in China at
present. The sound development of the power banks will enhance
the positions of sizeable enterprises in the industry, bringing new
opportunities to the Group and securing the role of own-brand power
banks as a future growth driver in the own-brand business segment.

The development of smartphones will shape the development
direction of the mobile phone accessories industry. The Group will
align its development strategy with market changes and maintain its
focus on R&D, production and retailing of smartphone and tablet
lithium-ion battery modules. More lithium-ion battery module products
with high cost-performance ratio will be manufactured to consolidate
and enhance the market position of our "SCUDRERR” brand. The
Group will actively invest in R&D of lithium-ion battery application
technology, seeking to promote application of various lithium-ion
batteries in a wider range of products. Extending the application
of lithium-ion batteries from the current focus of smart electronic
products to other areas will not only meet demands of different
customer groups, but also lay a broader market base for the Group’s
future growth.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the Review Period, the Group recorded consolidated turnover
of approximately RMB4,509.4 million (2014: RMB3,728.8 million),
increased by approximately 20.9% as compared to that in 2014.
The reason of the turnover increase was mainly attributable to the
increase in sales under the ODM business segment. Gross profit for
the Group was approximately RMB522.6 million (2014: RMB508.2
million), increased by approximately 2.8% against 2014. The profit
for the year and profit attributable to owners of the Company were
approximately RMB23.5 million (2014: loss for the year RMB6.9
million) and approximately RMB38.2 million (2014: loss attributable
to owners of the Company RMB1.7 million) respectively, representing
a growth of approximately 443.0% and 2,350.5% respectively. The
Group recorded EBITDA of approximately RMB129.2 million (2014:
RMB100.8 million) for the year. Basic and diluted earnings per share
was approximately RMB3.50 cents (2014: Basic and diluted losses per
share RMBO0.16 cents).

Turnover by segments

During the Review Period, turnover of approximately RMB3,518.4
million (2014: RMB2,695.2 million) was generated from the ODM
business segment, which accounted for approximately 78.0%
(2014: 72.3%) of the Group's consolidated turnover. Turnover of
approximately RMB620.0 million (2014: RMB749.7 million) was
generated from the own-brand business segment, which accounted
for approximately 13.7% (2014: 20.1%) of the Group’s consolidated
turnover. Turnover of approximately RMB194.8 million (2014:
RMB243.7 million) was contributed by the bare battery cell business
segment, which accounted for approximately 4.3% (2014: 6.5%) of
the Group's consolidated turnover.

Sales by major products

During the Review Period, sales of approximately RMB3,425.7 million
(2014: RMB2,708.6 million) came from mobile phone batteries
accounted for 76.0% (2014: 72.6%) of the Group’s consolidated
turnover. Sales of power banks and power management module
amounted to approximately RMB416.0 million (2014: RMB425.2
million) and RMB164.8 million (2014: RMB173.1 million) respectively,
which accounted for approximately 9.2% (2014: 11.4%) and 3.7%
(2014: 4.6%) of the Group’s consolidated turnover respectively. Sales
of approximately RMB194.8 million (2014: RMB243.7 million) came
from bare battery cells, which accounted for approximately 4.3% (2014:
6.5%) of the Group's consolidated turnover.
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Segment Results

For the ODM business segment, total revenue and net profit contributed
to the Group during the Review Period increased by approximately
30.5% and approximately 65.2% to approximately RMB3,518.4 million
(2014: RMB2,695.2 million) and approximately RMB121.5 million (2014:
RMB73.5 million) respectively. During the Review Period, the sales
volume of ODM mobile phone batteries grew by approximately 22.3%
to approximately 135.8 million pieces (2014: 111.0 million pieces) and
the turnover of ODM mobile phone batteries increased by approximately
32.1% to approximately RMB3,344.9 million (2014: RMB2,532.3
million), which accounted for approximately 95.1% (2014: 94.0%) of
the Group’s ODM sales. Sales volume of ODM motive batteries increased
by approximately 0.2 million pieces (2014: Nil) which contributed
approximately RMB34.1 million (2014: Nil) to the Group’s consolidated
revenue. Sales volume of ODM power banks was approximately 1.1
million pieces (2014: 0.3 million pieces). Sales of ODM power banks
amounted to approximately RMB91.7 million (2014: RMB32.6 million).
Sales of ODM motive batteries and ODM power banks accounted for
approximately 1.0% (2014: N/A) and 2.6% (2014: 1.2%) of the Group’s
ODM sales respectively.

For the own-brand business segment, the total revenue contributing
to the Group during the Review Period decreased by approximately
17.3% to approximately RMB620.0 million (2014: RMB749.7 million).
The own-brand segment recorded net loss of approximately RMB39.5
million (2014: RMB4.7 million) during the Review Period. During the
Review Period, sales volume of own-brand power banks decreased
by approximately 20.0% to approximately 5.2 million pieces (2014:
6.5 million pieces). Sales of own-brand power banks amounted to
approximately RMB324.3 million (2014: RMB392.5 million), accounted
for approximately 52.3% (2014: 52.4%) of the Group’s own brand
sales. The sales volume of own-brand mobile phone batteries dropped
by approximately 51.9% to approximately 3.7 million pieces (2014: 7.7
million pieces) and the turnover of own-brand mobile phone batteries
decreased by approximately 54.1% to approximately RMB80.8 million
(2014: RMB176.2 million), accounted for approximately 13.0%
(2014: 23.5%) of the Group’s own brand sales. As for other own-
brand products, sales of power management module accounted for
approximately 26.6% (2014: 23.1%) of the Group’s own brand sales,
contributed approximately RMB164.8 million (2014: RMB173.1 million)
to the Group’s own-brand sales.
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For the bare battery cell business segment, approximately RMB194.8
million was contributed to the Group’s consolidated turnover in 2015,
which represents a drop by approximately 20.1% as compared to
that in 2014 (2014: RMB243.7 million). The bare battery cell business
segment recorded net loss of approximately RMB23.4 million (2014:
RMB16.8 million) during the Review Period.

Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales amounted to approximately RMB3,986.8
million in 2015 (2014: RMB3,220.6 million), representing an increase
of approximately 23.8% as compared to 2014. The increase in cost of
sales was in line with the increase in sales during the Review Period.
Direct materials, direct labour and other production costs accounted
for approximately 86.7% (2014: 86.1%), 6.8% (2014: 6.7%) and
6.5% (2014: 7.2%) of the cost of sales.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The overall gross profit margin of the Group in 2015 decreased to
approximately 11.6% (2014: 13.6%) as a result of the decline in gross
profile margin for the ODM and own-brand business segment during
the Review Period.

For the ODM business, the overall gross profit margin in 2015 was
approximately 11.7% (2014: 12.4%). For the own-brand business, the
overall gross profit margin in 2015 was approximately 16.1% (2014:
18.6%). For the bare battery cell business, the gross profit margin in
2015 was approximately 5.3% (2014: 12.1%).

Other revenue of approximately RMB42.0 million (2014: RMB22.7
million) in 2015 was mainly comprised of bank interest income,
government grants and compensation from suppliers. The increase in
other revenue was mainly attributable to the increase in bank interest
income, government grants and compensation from suppliers during
the Review Period.

Selling and distribution expenses of approximately RMB57.6 million
(2014: RMB61.4 million) accounted for approximately 1.3% (2014:
1.6%) of the Group’s consolidated turnover in 2015. The selling and
distribution expenses mainly comprised of advertising and promotion,
transportation expenses, office expenses, staff salaries and welfare
and entertainment expenses. The decrease in selling and distribution
expenses was because of the decrease in promotion expenses and
salary and allowance during the Review Period.
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Administrative expenses of approximately RMB294.0 million (2014:
RMB247.7 million) accounted for approximately 6.5% (2014: 6.6%)
of the Group’s consolidated turnover in 2015. Administrative expenses
mainly comprised of R&D expenses, staff salaries and welfare, bank
charges, office supplies, depreciation and rental expenses. The
increase in administrative expenses was mainly attributable to the
increase in R&D expenses, legal and professional fees, bank charges
and utilities during the Review Period.

Finance costs of approximately RMB27.3 million (2014: RMB30.2
million) mainly represent interest on bank borrowings.

Profit/(Loss) Attributable to Owners of the Company

In 2015, the Group recorded profit attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately RMB38.2 million (2014: loss attributable
to owners of the Company RMB1.7 million). The increase in profit
attributable to owners of the Company was mainly because of the
reduction in provision for impairment, share-based payment expenses
and due to the increase in sales, government grants and bank interest
income during the Review Period.

Treasury Management and Cash Funding

The Group’s funding and treasury policy is designed to maintain
a diversified and balanced debt profile and financing structure.
The Group continues to monitor its cash flow position and debt
profile, and to enhance the cost-efficiency of funding initiatives
by its centralized treasury function. In order to maintain financial
flexibility and adequate liquidity for the Group’s operations, potential
investments and growth plans, the Group has built a strong base
of funding resources and will keep exploring cost-efficient ways of
financing.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Cash and cash equivalents held by the Group as at 31 December
2015 was approximately RMB249.4 million, principally denominated
in Renminbi, increased by approximately RMB127.2 million (at
31 December 2014: RMB122.2 million). The increase in cash and
cash equivalents was mainly due to the significant increase in net
cash generated from operating activities during the Review Period.
The Group recorded a net cash inflow from operating activities of
approximately RMB370.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2015 (2014: RMB13.4 million).
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The Group's borrowings, principally denominated in Renminbi,
which were outstanding as at 31 December 2015 amounted to
approximately RMB371.8 million (at 31 December 2014: RMB410.0
million) were carried at floating interest rates. A total of RMB356.5
million of the interest-bearing borrowings will fall due during the
next 12 months after the end of the Review Period. There was no
particular seasonality of the Group’s borrowing requirements. Please
refer to Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements for detail on
the maturity profile of the Group’s borrowings. The Group monitored
capital using a gearing ratio, which is total debt of the Group
divided by total equity of the Group. Total debt to equity ratio of
the Group expressed as a percentage of interest bearing borrowings
over the total equity of approximately RMB1,054.6 million (at 31
December 2014: RMB1,036.0 million) was approximately 35.3%
as at 31 December 2015 (at 31 December 2014: 39.6%). Bank
deposits pledged for banking facilities as at 31 December 2015 was
approximately RMB596.1 million (at 31 December 2014: RMB422.1
million).

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s current ratio was approximately
1.2 times (at 31 December 2014: 1.3 times) based on current assets of
approximately RMB3,291.0 million (at 31 December 2014: RMB2,531.2
million) and current liabilities of approximately RMB2,647.8 million (at
31 December 2014: RMB1,913.0 million). Trade and notes receivables
turnover days were approximately 98 days for the year ended 31
December 2015 as compared to approximately 85 days for the year
ended 31 December 2014. Inventory turnover days were approximately
46 days for the year ended 31 December 2015 as compared to
approximately 45 days for the year ended 31 December 2014. Trade
and notes payables turnover days were approximately 143 days for
the year ended 31 December 2015 as compared to approximately 127
days for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Net Current Assets and Net Assets

The Group’s net current assets as at 31 December 2015 was
approximately RMB643.1 million, increased by approximately 4.0%
from the balance of approximately RMB618.2 million recorded as
at 31 December 2014. Net assets as at 31 December 2015 was
approximately RMB1,054.6 million, increased by approximately 1.8%
from the balance of approximately RMB1,036.0 million as at 31
December 2014.

Change in Ownership Interests in Subsidiaries

During the Review Period, the Group made no significant investment
nor did it make any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries.

20

2015124318 » REERREEER(EENU
ARBE)#HARH371,800,0007T (72014512
A318 : AR#410,000,0007) %2 FR:TE -
sTBERA ST AREE356,500,0007T# 7 B B8 HARE <
B1I2EANEE - AEBEERERERL|ELHM o
BRAEEBHRE AT EE2HGREMBREM T
29 AEERBEABBLREEES  FTEAN
ANEEBEERINEERZ FASELAEHER
Lb R iRt BB R A @i 49 A R #1,054,600,000
L(F2014%12 A31H : AK#%1,036,000,0007T)
WEDLEE - R2015F12 31 AL R 4935.3%
(PA2014%F 12 A31H :39.6%) ° R2015F 12 8
318 AEERRTAEERNRITERNAA
R #596,100,0007t(FA2014F 12 A318 : AR¥
422,100,0007T) °

M2015F12A318  AEBERBLELH /1.2
B(R20145F 128318 :1.3168)  HIRERHE
E# AR %3,291,000,000 (A 2014512 A 31
H: AR®2531,2000000) R RBABHAR
#2,647,800,0007C( R 2014F 12 3180 : AR
1,913,000,0007T) 5t & - REIZ 201512 A31H
IHFE - BEESFIERERZEBERELF98
B MREZE2014F12 8318 ILFE A4 A858 o
REZE2015F12A31BIEFE - FEEBXENA
46H - MMNEE2014F12 A31 8 L FE B4 A45
A - REZE2015F12A318LLFE  ENEZHE
REMZEBEXELNA1438 - MREBZE2014F
12 A31MALERERR1278 -

RBEEFERTFEE
AEER2015F12A31MBNRBEEFENAR
#643,100,0007C © R 2014412 A31 BB M
) AR%618,200,000 038 IN414.0% ° FEE
2015412 A31B 4 AR 1,054,600,0007TC * &
2014512 A31 B #8249 AR #1,036,000,0007T
HINKI1.8% °

RNBARNEAESE
REBEHE  AKEYEFELEARE - RIEHE
MEBRKBH L EHBARTER -



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREBBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2015

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEER RN

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2015, bank loans of approximately RMB128.7
million (at 31 December 2014: RMB122.0 million) were secured by
the Group's assets and bank loans of approximately RMB211.2 million
(2014: RMB258.5 million) were unsecured.

Commitments

The Group’s capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December
2015 amounting to approximately RMB6,000 (at 31 December 2014:
RMB451,000) was mainly attributed to acquisition of equipment.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not provide any form of
guarantee for any company outside the Group and did not involve
in any material legal proceedings for which provision for contingent
liabilities was required.

Capital Structure

During the Review Period, there had been no change in the share
capital of the Company.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

For the year 2015, the Group conducted its business transactions
principally in Renminbi. The Group has not experienced any material
difficulties or negative impacts on its operations as a result of
fluctuations in currency exchanges rates. Although the Group has
certain bank balances denominated in United States Dollars, Japanese
Yen and Hong Kong Dollars, their proportion to the Group's total
assets is insignificant. The Directors considered that no hedging of
exchange risk is required and no financial instruments were used for
hedging purposes during 2015. Nevertheless, the management will
continue to monitor the Group’s foreign exchange exposure and will
take prudent measures against currency exchange risks as and when it
is appropriate.

BEERM

M2015F 128318  BEX AR 128,700,0007T
(R2014512A318 : AR%122,000,0007T ) #) iR
TERDUREENEEEER  MABHARKE
211,200,0007t(20144 : AR#258,500,0007T )
BITERAEERBITER -

AR

MR2015F 128318 - AEEHBERNRENARKE
6,000 C(A2014F12 A31H « AR#451,0007T) °
FTERANRBERME °

HREE

MR2015F 128318 » REEI E A AKEE AIME(
NAREEAEROER - TUEESEIEHEA
BERENTMNEEZFA

B
REBHE - ARFAGRALEED -

N EE /R B
20154 - AEBEXTZUARKETEERRS -

7 62 18 30 4 ) D SO B if I BR R E AR B sl B B
LEELERAEYE  BELAKERAETUE

7T BERBTABMMETES  BEAEER
BEELHIER - EFRADALEFINERR - B
UL 2015 B T EESH - @Bt -
EREHERERAEEINIERE - WEBERKIK
B ESINER BB EE I

21



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREEERAF

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2015

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEER RO

Significant Investment Held, Material Acquisition and
Disposal

There were no significant investment held as at 31 December 2015,
and there were no material acquisition and disposals of subsidiary
during the Review Period.

Material Investments or Capital Assets

The Group did not make any material investments or purchase any
material capital assets in the year after the end of the Review Period.

Employee, Remuneration Policies and Share Option
Scheme

As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed 5,535 full-time
employees (2014: 5,648). The salaries of the Directors and the
Group’s employees were determined by reference to their personal
performance, professional qualification, industry experience of the
employee and relevant market trends. The Group ensures all levels
of employees are paid competitively within market standard and
employees are rewarded on a performance-related basis within the
framework of the Group’s salary, incentives and bonus scheme.
The management reviews the remuneration policy of the Group
on a regular basis and evaluates the working performance of the
employees. The remuneration of the employees includes salaries,
allowances, year-end bonus and social insurance. According to the
relevant prevailing laws and regulations of the PRC, the Group has
participated in the social insurance plans set up by the related local
government authorities, including pension funds, medical insurance
(including maternity insurance), unemployment insurance and work-
related injury insurance. The Group has also participated in the
mandatory provident fund scheme for its Hong Kong employees in
accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
(Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

The Company also adopted a share option scheme to reward eligible
participants (including directors and employees of the Group) for their
contributions to the Group. On 19 June 2014, the Company offered
to grant share options to a number of eligible participants to subscribe
for up to 80,000,000 shares with nominal value of HK$0.10 each in
the issued share capital of the Company pursuant to the share option
scheme adopted by the Company on 3 December 2006. Among the
80,000,000 share options, 21,200,000 share options were granted to
the executive Directors of the Company.
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On 31 December 2015, the number of shares in respect of which
option had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Company’s share option scheme was 80,000,000, representing
approximately 7.34% of the shares of the Company in issue as at
31 December 2015. Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or any of their respective associates, would result in the
securities issued or to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted (including options exercised, cancelled
and outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of such grant (i) representing in aggregate over 0.1%
of the Company’s share capital and (i) with an aggregate value (based
on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of each
grant) in excess of HK$5.0 million, such further grant of options must
be approved in advance by resolution of the Company’s shareholders.
A consideration of HK$1.0 is payable on the grant of option.

The Company recognised the total expense of RMB Nil (2014:
RMB14.8 million) for the Review Period in relation to share options
granted by the Company. Please refer to Note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements for detail.

SUSPENSION OF TRADING

Trading in the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange has
been suspended with effect from 9:00 a.m. on 26 March 2015.

Resignation of auditor

On 25 March 2015, the Company was informed by its former auditor
Moore Stephens Certified Public Accountants (“Moore Stephens”) that
based on preliminary observations there were several inconsistencies
in the financial data of the Group while they were carrying out the
annual audit for the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014,
and that since the investigation and verification of the inconsistencies
might go beyond the scope of work of general audit, it requested
the Company to perform other additional procedures, including
engaging an independent third party to undertake investigation of the
inconsistencies that it had observed.
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On 2 April 2015, Moore Stephens resigned as the independent auditor
of the Company. In the letter of resignation dated 2 April 2015 to
the Board and the audit committee of the Company, Moore Stephens
stated that during the performance of the audit of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2014, it observed certain inconsistencies
(the “Matters”). Details of the Matters are as follows:

(@) Moore Stephens were unable to verify all value-added tax
invoices tested in their sales transaction test through the online
verification system;

(b) Moore Stephens were unable to verify a late adjustment debiting
accounts receivable and crediting bank balances. The bank
balances as at 31 December 2014 after putting through this
adjustment was inconsistent with the balances shown on the
bank confirmations Moore Stephens obtained from the banks
during the audit; and

() Moore Stephens were unable to verify a late adjustment
debiting sales, income tax payable, value-added-tax payable and
crediting bank balances and intercompany current account. This
adjustment was inconsistent with the tax returns, tax payment
advice and bank confirmations Moore Stephens obtained and the
sales ledger that was made available for their testing during the
audit.

Establishment of independent board committee and
appointment of independent third party investigator

As mentioned in the Company’s announcement dated 29 May 2015,
the Board resolved to establish an independent board committee (“IBC")
comprising independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Loke
Yu, Mr. Wang Jing Zhong and Mr. Wang Jian Zhang, to investigate
the Matters. Dr. Loke Yu was appointed the chairman of the IBC.
Grant Thornton Advisory Services Limited (“Grant Thornton”), an
independent third party investigator, was engaged to investigate the
Matters.
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Key findings of independent investigation and
recommendation of the IBC

According to the report of the investigation by Grant Thornton, the
cause of the incident was mainly that Scud Battery Co., Ltd. (“Scud
Battery”), a subsidiary of the Group engaging in own-brand business
of the Group, had excess recall and incurred a significant loss in
connection with such excess recall when it implemented a plan to
recall those own-brand battery products of specified series purchased
from Scud Battery by 31 designated distributors.

It was discovered that the financial data of Scud Battery for the
financial year commencing from 1 January 2013 to 31 December
2013 and the financial year commencing from 1 January 2014 to 31
December 2014 contained misstatements. Furthermore, it was found
in the investigation that Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd., a subsidiary
mainly engaging in ODM business of the Group, had omitted to
declare income tax in the financial year commencing from 1 January
2013 to 31 December 2013 and the financial year commencing from
1 January 2014 to 31 December 2014.

After reviewing the findings of the investigation by Grant Thornton,
the IBC made a series of recommendations to the Board, including,
among other things, engaging an independent third party consultant
to review the internal control systems and procedures of the
Company.

For further details of the key findings of the investigation and the
recommendations of the IBC, please see the announcement of the
Company dated 14 June 2016.

Appointment of BDO Financial Services Limited as
internal control consultant

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 25 August 2016,
the Company engaged BDO Financial Services Limited (“Internal
Control Consultant”) as its internal control consultant to conduct
a review of the internal control systems and procedures of the
Group and to make recommendations accordingly (“Internal Control
Review").
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The Internal Control Review was completed. On 30 November 2017,
the Internal Control Consultant issued its report on the Internal
Control Review. The Internal Control Consultant was satisfied that the
Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control
systems in relation to the companies within the Group that are the
subject of the Internal Control Review and all the business areas of
the Group as at 31 May 2017.

For further details of the report issued by the Internal Control
Consultant, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report of this
annual report and the announcement of the Company dated 30
November 2017.

BOARD’S VIEW ON AUDITOR’S DISCLAIMER
OF OPINION

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Review
Period were audited by BDO Limited Certified Public Accountants
(the “Auditor”). The Auditor expressed disclaimer of opinion (the
“Auditor’s Disclaimer”) on the Group's consolidated financial
statements for the Review Period, the details of which are set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report in this annual report. The Board
is of the view that, on the following basis, the issues underlying the
basis for the Auditor’s Disclaimer have been addressed or resolved:

1. Opening and closing inventories

Given the Auditor was appointed in August 2016, the Auditor
did not attend the physical stock take of the opening and closing
inventory balances of the Review Period conducted by the Group.
The Board considers that this was an ad hoc consequence to
the unusual audit delay for the Review Period. Subsequent to
their appointment in August 2016, the Auditor attended and
observed the physical stock take of the inventory balance as at
31 December 2016 conducted by the Group and the Auditor
raised no concern on such inventory balance. Please refer to the
Independent Auditor’s Report in the Company’s annual report for
the financial year ended 31 December 2016 for further details.
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In respect of the alternative audit procedure explored by the
Auditor in connection with the inventory roll-back procedures
from the inventory balance as at 31 December 2016 and the
Group's ability to facilitate such procedures through providing or
linking all the information and supporting documents required
by the Auditor for all the sale and purchase transactions for the
two years ended 31 December 2016, please refer to the Board's
view under the section headed “2. Certain sale and purchase
transactions” below.

Certain sale and purchase transactions

The Board considers that the issues relating to the Group’s
certain sale and purchase transactions underlying the basis for
the Auditor’s Disclaimer have been addressed on the following
basis:

(i)  the launch of the Group’s new enterprise resource planning
system in 2017, which computerised and centralised the
management and systematic recording of operational and
financial data;

(i) the strengthening of the Group’s internal control systems
and financial reporting procedures as a result of the
Group’s implementation of the improvements and/or
remedial measures recommended by BDO Financial Services
Limited, which the Company engaged as its internal control
consultant in August 2016; and

(iii) the disposal of two subsidiaries of the Group, namely
Shenzhen Nalon Battery Co., Ltd and Scud Power (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd, (the “Disposed Subsidiaries”) at the end of 2016,
the sales and purchases amounts of which during the
Review Period had not been verified to the satisfaction of
the Auditor.
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The Board also considers such issues were ad hoc, in that:

(@)

(ii)

the non-return of confirmations from certain customers
and suppliers in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
during the Review Period as required by the Auditor was
mainly due to (a) their respective unwillingness to cooperate
on verifying and returning the confirmations given the
time lapse of over one year between the end date of the
Review Period and the date of sending requests for such
confirmations in 2017 by the Auditor for their audit for
the Review Period, or (b) their respective deregistration or
cessation of business relationship between them and the
Group over such period of time; and

there was time constraint on the Group spending
substantially more time on providing and linking all the
information and supporting documents in the audit trail
in relation to all the sales to (or purchases from, especially
given the large number of suppliers of the Group involved
in supplying the wide variety of raw materials for producing
the Group’s products) all non-top 10 customers (or
suppliers) of Scud Battery and Scud Electronics and all
customers (or suppliers) of the Disposed Subsidiaries (as
appropriate) as required by the Auditor, as opposed to
providing such information and supporting documents to
an auditor simply on a sample basis in the ordinary course
of a normal audit.

Set out below are the details of the proportions of the Group’s

sales and purchases amounts during the Review Period which

had or had not been verified to the satisfaction of the Auditor (as

the case may be):
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(i)

In respect of the Group's sales during the Review Period, an
aggregate sales amount of approximately RMB3,869 million
to top 10 customers of Scud Battery and Scud Electronics
and to all customers of Shenzhen Hongde and Dongguan
Hongde, representing approximately 85.8% of the Group's
total sales amount, had been verified to the satisfaction
of the Auditor. The Group had provided and linked all the
information and supporting documents in relation to such
sales amount and the Auditor had received confirmations
from such customers in relation to such sales amount.
The remaining approximately 14.2%, which had not been
verified to the satisfaction of the Auditor, comprises sales
amounts of approximately RMB190 million to all customers
of the Disposed Subsidiaries (representing approximately
4.2% of the Group's total sales amount) during the Review
Period, approximately RMB438 million to non-top 10
customers of Scud Battery and Scud Electronics (representing
approximately 9.7% of the Group’s total sales amount)
during the Review Period and approximately RMB13 million
to top 10 customers of Scud Battery and Scud Electronics
and to all customers of Shenzhen Hongde and Dongguan
Hongde (representing approximately 0.3% of the Group's
total sales amount) during the Review Period.

In respect of the Group's purchases during the Review
Period, an aggregate purchases amount of approximately
RMB2,616 million from top 10 suppliers of Scud Battery
and Scud Electronics and to all suppliers of Shenzhen
Hongde and Dongguan Hongde, representing approximately
66.3% of the Group’s total purchases amount, had been
verified to the satisfaction of the Auditor. The Group had
provided and linked all the information and supporting
documents in relation to such purchases amount and the
Auditor had received confirmations from such suppliers
in relation to such purchases amount. The remaining
approximately 33.7%, which had not been verified to the
satisfaction of the Auditor, comprises purchases amounts
of approximately RMB188 million from all suppliers of the
Disposed Subsidiaries (representing approximately 4.8%
of the Group’s total purchases amount) during the Review
Period and approximately RMB1,143 million from non-
top 10 suppliers of Scud Battery and Scud Electronics
(representing approximately 28.9% of the Group’s total
purchases amount) during the Review Period.

(ii)
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RESUMPTION OF TRADING CONDITIONS

As mentioned in the Company’s announcement dated 13 July
2015, the Stock Exchange notified the Company that the following
conditions would apply before the grant of any request by the
Company for the resumption of trading of the shares in the Company:

(i) completion of the investigation of the Matters by Grant
Thornton, disclosure of the findings of such investigation,
the Company having addressed the issues identified in the
investigation and if necessary, further investigation with
appropriate scope;

(i)  demonstration to the satisfaction of the Stock Exchange that
the Company has put in place adequate financial reporting
procedures and internal control systems to meet its obligations
under the Listing Rules;

(iii) publication of all outstanding financial results required by the
Listing Rules and the Company having addressed any audit
qualifications; and

(iv) informing the market of all material information.

For further details of the conditions of resumption of trading, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 13 July 2015.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Fang Jin, aged 59, is an executive Director and the Chairman of the
Group, and is a senior economist. Mr. Fang is a member of each of
the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. He is also a co-founder of the Group which was founded
in December 2006.

Mr. Fang is mainly responsible for the Group’s development planning,
operational and corporate investment decision-making and brand
strategy. Mr. Fang has been leading the Board for collective decision-
making for years and has set a very clear direction for SCUD’s product
management and branding. He commenced his career at the age of
18, and has accumulated over thirty years of experience in the mobile
phone accessories industry and related operation management. He
has very keen discernment and vision on the exploration of branding
strategies and the marketability of new products. Prior to the
establishment of Scud (Fujian) Electronics Company Limited (“Scud
Electronics”) in 1997, Mr. Fang was engaged, as a sole proprietor,
in the sale of communication products and accessories in the PRC.
In December 1996, he established Cai Hong Group (Hong Kong)
Company Limited in conjunction with partners including Mr. Lin Chao
(and established Scud Electronics in October 1997). Mr. Fang has
received several awards including:

2003  National Advanced Individual On Projects of End Users’
Satisfaction

2004  Excellent Runners of Technological Private Enterprises in
China

2004  Fujian Top Ten Venture Heroes in the Commercial Sector

2005  China Top Ten Excellent Entrepreneurs in Brand Construction

2005  The Mudell’s World Executive Awards for Achievement in
Business and Economy

2006  Annual Excellent Persons in Fujian Economy

2006  National Excellent Managers of Users' Satisfaction
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Mr. Fang is the Vice Chairman of the Joint Industrial and Commercial
Association of Mawei District in Fuzhou City Economic and
Technological Development Region.

Mr. Fang is the sole director and shareholder of each of Swift Joy
Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company, and
Right Grand Holdings Limited, a shareholder of the Company. As
at 31 December 2017, Mr. Fang was interested in an aggregate of
514,338,000 shares, representing approximately 47.19% of the issued
share capital of the Company, within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (“SFO").

Guo Quan Zeng, aged 57, is an executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Group, and is an engineer. He is responsible
for the management of the Group’s daily operations. He joined the
Group in July 1997. He had been the manager of the research and
development department, sales department, planning department,
production department and quality control departments of Scud
Electronics, and had been director, vice general manager and vice
president of Scud Electronics. He is very experienced in front-line
management in business development, brand promotion, product
research and development and quality control. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Guo was a lieutenant commander engineer of the PRC
navy mainly responsible for establishing and maintaining wireless
telecommunication systems. Mr. Guo has over thirty years of
experience in the research and development and quality management
in electronic products. Mr. Guo graduated from the Navy Senior
Electronic Engineering School with a bachelor’s degree in radio
telecommunication engineering in 1983.

Mr. Guo is the sole director and shareholder of Cheer View Holdings
Limited, which is a shareholder of the Company. As at 31 December
2017, Mr. Guo was interested in 18,000,000 shares, representing
approximately 1.65% of the issued share capital of the Company
within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

32

TRERSBMEERMARESER THXEAS

gREgk -

FAREBARRNBEFERFTANZERBRAFRAR
ARRERZERARAFRNE—EETRERE - B
2017F12A318 » REEBEFIESTEFSH L
EiEpI([#FHRBEGKRD)EXVE - FREBEEE
514,338,000 & 5 2 #x - IEAREEEHITRA
#4947.19% o

BRI S5TER  WMITES  ARNEETRER T
2D - SPEABEAEEARKEER - BEER
1997 F7AMALREE + LB EMBRERSE T
AR - HEAIE - RBMLE £EIFREE
R - EE - BRLE - AIREEY  TEBFA
% mRHEE - EoMBENEEE6EEEEE
ENEEERER - MAXEER - BEEESSH
EEELRIEM  FEAEERBAESENEY
Mg - PEEB=+ZFNETERAENES
IR TR - SPEE1983FEENBESRE

TREREGEBEIREE B84 -

BEERRAFTRRMEIERERARME—ESE
TR - H2017412 8318 - REZEELBEEG
FEXVER - S EHEA18,000,0000% B D < bEzE » 15
RATEBITIRAEL1.65% ©



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREBBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2015

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREEE

Feng Ming Zhu, aged 54, is an executive Director and vice president
of the Group. He is primarily responsible for the development of
the Group's strategy. Mr. Feng holds a Bachelor degree from Anhui
University of Finance and Economics in China. He joined the Group in
March 2007 and served as the director of administration of the Group
until October 2011. He then served as the general manager of SCUD
SMT Business Unit before becoming the vice president of the Group
in April 2013. Mr. Feng is currently a Specialist of Fujian JingXin Think
Tank Industry Research. He was appointed as an executive Director on
25 August 2016. As at 31 December 2017, Mr. Feng did not have any
equity interest in the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Zhang Li, aged 57, was an executive Director since 31 December
2010 and has been redesignated as a non-executive Director since 25
August 2016. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in October 2003 and had
been the deputy general manager of Scud Electronics. Mr. Zhang then
served as the general manager of Scud Electronics until December
2017. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhang had served as manager in
the industrial design department of Fujian Start Network, as manager
of the research and development department, of the accessories
department and of the sales department of Fujian Communications
and Broadcasting Industrial Company. He has more than thirty years of
experience in the telecommunications industry. Mr. Zhang graduated
from the Mechanical Engineering Faculty of Jiangxi University in 1978.
He was granted the qualification of practising as an engineer in 1992
and was granted the qualification of practising as a senior engineer in
1999. As at 31 December 2017, Mr. Zhang did not have any equity
interest in the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
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Hou Li, aged 59, is a non-executive Director of the Company and a
member of the Resumption Committee of the Company. Mr. Hou is
a senior partner of Dentons Law Offices (Fuzhou). Mr. Hou holds a
Bachelor of Law degree from East China University of Political Science
and Law and an Executive Master of Business Administration degree
from Xiamen University in China. He is a qualified lawyer in China and
has over 20 years of experience in legal and corporate governance
matters. Mr. Hou also engages in several community services and had
once served as member in Commission of Legislative Affairs of Fujian
Province Committee of the Chinese People’s political Consultative
Conference, director in Fujian Province joint-stock enterprises
Association and Fujian Province Securities Association, arbitrator
in Fuzhou Arbitration commission and chairman of Law Office of
Fujian Committee of the Revolutionary Committee of The Chinese
Kuomintang. He was appointed as an executive Director on 25 August
2016. As at 31 December 2017, Mr. Hou did not have any equity
interest in the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Loke Yu, alias Loke Hoi Lam, aged 68, is an independent non-
executive Director and Chairman of each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Resumption
Committee of the Company, respectively. Dr. Loke has over 41 years
of experience in accounting and auditing for private and public
companies, financial consultancy and corporate management. He
holds a Master of Business Administration degree from the Universiti
Teknologi Malaysia and a Doctor of Business Administration degree
from the University of South Australia. Dr. Loke is a Fellow of The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants; The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr.
Heng Ja Wei Victor, an independent non-executive Director of the
Company, is his nephew-in-law.
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Dr. Loke currently serves as an independent non-executive director
of the following companies whose shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”): Chiho-Tiande
Group Limited (Stock Code: 976), China Fire Safety Enterprise Group
Limited (Stock Code: 445), China Household Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 692), Matrix Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1005), Tianhe
Chemicals Group Limited (Stock Code: 1619), Tianjin Development
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 882), V1 Group Limited (Stock Code:
82), Forebase International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2310),
Lamtex Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1041), Hang Sang (Siu Po)
International Holding Limited (Stock Code: 3626), China Beidahuang
Industry Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 39), Hong Kong
Resources Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 2882), Zhong
An Real Estate Limited (Stock Code: 672) and Zhenro Properties
Group Limited (Stock Code: 6158). He joined the Company as an
independent non-executive Director on 14 May 2009. As at 31
December 2017, Dr. Loke did not have any equity interest in the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Wang Jing Zhong, aged 61, is an independent non-executive Director
and a member of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Resumption Committee
of the Company, respectively. Mr. Wang is a senior engineer and
graduated from East China University of Science & Technology with
a Bachelor’'s degree in chemistry. He has more than fifteen years
of management experience in the battery industry. He had served
as the engineer-in-charge of the household products division in the
Ministry of Light Industries, as deputy department head of the campus
department of the Education Bureau, as the deputy officer-in-charge
of the Household Products Office, and as the secretary general of
China Battery Industry Association. He is currently the executive vice-
president of China Battery Industry Association. Mr. Wang joined the
Company as an independent non-executive Director on 3 December
2006. As at 31 December 2017, Mr. Wang did not have any equity
interest in the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
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Wang Jian Zhang, aged 72, is an independent non-executive Director
and a member of the Audit Committee and Resumption Committee
of the Company, respectively. Mr. Wang is a senior engineer
and graduated from Xian Military Institute of Telecommunication
Engineering. He has more than twenty-five years of experience in
electronic technology and management. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Wang had served as deputy director of the Promotion Division
of Comprehensive Planning Department under Ministry of Electronics
Industry, director of the Comprehensive Planning and the Investment
Division under Ministry of Mechanical and Electrical Industry, director-
general of the Comprehensive Planning Department under Ministry
of Electronics, and director-general of the Comprehensive Planning
Department under the Ministry of Information Industry. Mr. Wang
joined the Company as an independent non-executive Director on 3
December 2006. As at 31 December 2017, Mr. Wang did not have
any equity interest in the Company within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO.

Heng Ja Wei Victor, aged 40, is an independent non-executive
Director and a member of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Resumption Committee
of the Company, respectively. Mr. Heng is a partner of Morison
Heng, Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Heng holds a Bachelor of
Engineering degree in Electronic Engineering from University of
Warwick in the United Kingdom and a Master of Science degree in
Computer Science from University of London — Imperial College of
Science, Technology and Medicine. He is a member of and holds a
Certified Public Accountant (Practising) certificate issued by The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a Fellow of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He is a nephew-in-
law of Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam, an independent non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Heng serves as an independent non-
executive director of China Fire Safety Enterprise Group Limited (Stock
Code: 445), Best Food Holding Company Limited (Stock Code: 1488),
Lee & Man Chemical Company Limited (Stock Code: 746) and Matrix
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1005) and as company secretary of
China Life Insurance Company Limited (Stock Code: 2628), whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Heng
joined the Company as an independent non-executive Director on 1
September 2016. As at 31 December 2017, Mr. Heng did not have
any equity interest in the Company within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Yeung Mun Tai (FCCA, CPA), aged 41, is the Company Secretary
of the Company. He is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group and
is responsible for its overall financial and accounting affairs. He is a
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yeung worked as an auditor in an
international accounting firm. He has more than seventeen years of
experience in the accounting field. He has a Bachelor’'s degree in
Business Administration and Accounting. Mr. Yeung joined the Group
in September 2005.

Jiang Zhi Cheng, aged 41, is the human resources director of the
Group. Mr. Jiang is the person primarily in charge of the human
resources system of the Group and has over ten years of experience
in human resources management and operation management. He
is specialized in training, career development, talent management,
performance management, leadership development and organization
development. Mr. Jiang graduated from Xiamen University with
a degree in accounting in 1999 and from Central China Normal
University with a degree in business administration in 2016. Mr.
Jiang is an intermediate economist and grade 2 human resources
professional and currently pursues the executive MBA program
in Northwest University. Mr. Jiang joined the Group in 2002 and
successively served as the human resources supervisor and human
resources manager. In 2006, he was appointed as the human
resources director of the Group.

Zhou Xuan Xiang, aged 48, is the materials director of the Group.
Mr. Zhou is responsible for the Group’s layout and development
of supply chain and materials system integration and management
and has nearly twenty years of experience in terms of materials
and management. Mr. Zhou graduated from the Department of
Business Administration of Chengdu University with a degree in
business administration in 1992. Mr. Zhou joined the Group in
2004 and successively served as the supervisor and deputy manager
of procurement department. In 2006, he was appointed as the
materials director of the Group. Before joining the Group, Mr.
Zhou served as the director of Chengdu Office of Sichuan Foguang
Pharmaceutical Factory and person in charge of materials division
of Top Victory Electronics (Fujian) Company Limited. Mr. Zhou has
successively accepted training of Material Requirement Planning (MRP),
ISO9000, 1SO14000 and MBA remote education of Peking University;
Carnegie Motivational Leadership training and Carnegie Director of
Administration training, and has extensive experience in materials
management.

aREERE
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Chen Yao Shu, aged 39, is the information management director
of the Group. He is responsible for the planning and integration of
the Group's internal information system and information resources
and has over ten years of experience in the field of information
system of manufacturing industry. Mr. Chen graduated from Hubei
Industry Technology Institute with a degree in architectural design
in 2000 and from Dalian University of Technology with a degree
in business administration in 2014. Mr. Chen joined the Group in
2002 and successively served as the network supervisor, deputy
manager of information management department and manager of
information management department. In 2008, he was appointed
as the information management director of the Group. A number of
informatization projects led by Mr. Chen were selected as excellent
cases by professional institutions. He was awarded the titles including
National Excellent Information Director by professional institutions in
2007, 2009 and 2014.

Xue Chun Mu, aged 49, is the risk management director of the
Group. He is responsible for design of internal control and risk
management procedures and systems and guidance and supervision
of the execution thereof, including monitoring and supervising
the effectiveness of procedures and systems and participating in
the development of risk countermeasures. Mr. Xue has over ten
years of experience in internal control and risk management. He
graduated from Jimei Finance and Economics College with a degree
in accounting education in 1990 and then pursued a MBA program
in European University of Ireland and graduated therefrom. Mr. Xue
is an accountant, International Certified Senior Public Accountant,
International Certified Management Accountant, Internal Control Risk
Manager, Senior International Finance Manager and Certified Senior
Enterprise Risk Manager. Mr. Xue successively served as the manager
of Management Accounting Department and manager of Investment
Management Department of the Group from 2002 to 2004. He re-
joined the Group in 2009 and served as the audit director. In 2016,
he was appointed as the risk management director of the Group.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Xue served as an audit executive in
the Education Bureau, head of Management Accounting Department,
manager of Cost Management Department, manager of Finance
Department and finance control director.
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The board (the “Board”) directors (the “Directors”) of SCUD Group
Limited (the “Company” and, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) presents its annual report and audited consolidated financial
statements for the financial year from 1 January 2015 to 31 December
2015 (“Review Period”).

The discussions in the “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management
Discussion and Analysis” and “Corporate Governance Report” sections
of this annual report form part of the discussions of this directors’
report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its major subsidiaries are set out in Note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 84 to 85.

The Board has decided not to recommend any final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2015 to preserve cash for the working
capital requirement of the business.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during 2015 in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during 2015 in the share capital are set out
in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

REREBERAR(ARR])  EREMBLARA
(rEEDER(TEEDe((EEg])#EE2H2015
F1ATBE2015F 12831 A LS BEE ([ B EH
Mz FEHREREEZIREVEHRE

AERETEHREE] [ERETHEINIRIEE
RS | EHH T mEBK L ES SRS A — 3

B
4y e

FEER
ARBR—AREZRAR - EXEMBAFINE
BEBHN A M BRRMEEIT -

EERDE
AEBEHZE2015F12A31BIEFEZ 2 B8N E84
BEFSSHAGABEREMEAKER -

BEECERTETEHRMNEE2015F12A31HIEF
EEMARBRE  WEBRSFEBRE 2L EE
@ °

M=E -~ BERRE

REBR2015F2WE - BMERRENEHFIEHR
Rir & SRR MEES

&N

AEER 20155 2 A E
FiEE32 ©

HIERN AP BHEK

39



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREEERAF

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2015

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEWRE

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
as at 31 December 2015 comprised the retained earnings, other
reserves and share premium of approximately RMB918.2 million (2014:
RMB884.9 million).

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the Review Period and up to the
date of this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Fang lin (Chairman)

Guo Quan Zeng (Chief Executive Officer)

Feng Meng Zhu (appointed with effect from 25 August 2016)
Huang Yan (resigned with effect from 25 August 2016)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Zhang Li (appointed as an Executive Director on 31 December 2010
and redesignated as a Non-executive Director
with effect from 25 August 2016)

Hou Li (appointed with effect from 25 August 2016)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Loke Yu

Wang Jing Zhong

Wang Jian Zhang

Heng Ja Wei Victor (appointed with effect from 1 September 2016)

According to Article 87(1) of the articles of association of the
Company, at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
at an annual general meeting at least once every three years. Mr.
Fang Jin, Mr. Guo Quan Zeng, Mr. Feng Meng Zhu, Mr. Zhang Li, Mr.
Hou Li, Dr. Loke Yu, Mr. Wang Jing Zhong, Mr. Wang Jian Zhang and
Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. Mr. Fang Jin, Mr. Guo Quan Zeng, Mr. Feng
Meng Zhu, Mr. Zhang Li, Mr. Hou Li, Dr. Loke Yu, Mr. Wang lJing
Zhong, Mr. Wang Jian Zhang and Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor, all being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election in the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. There are no service contracts
for any of the Directors who are nominated for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting which are not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2015, the relevant interests or short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
("SFO"), which are required to be notified to the Company and The
Hong Kong Stock Exchange Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or were required pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein or were required,
pursuant to the relevant provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) relating to
securities transactions by Directors to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange were as follows:

Long positions (ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company):

Number of

EERBSTBRAEZROERER
KRB

R2015F12A31H - EERESTTHRABRARAF
S EAMEEEAE(EERBBEAFENEESR
HE M (T B HFREEEN ) EXVER) 2 TG -

TR D R EH T A AREEH L EIEFIEXY
HEIRSDEBHNARRIREBHERSMBRA
AI(TEE P ) RS A B (BIEIRIEE S R
EIEBIBRBIEXEIESR AERNEZRIOAR ) RA
RENIEESF M EEIE32EEF 2 B MR
IRIEE A FTES EMARRA(T EMRRA D EHESSE
TEHER S ZEBERAR R LR AT T2 HE8
EREKBEWT

HR(ARQAEEREAMEIBIZEER):

Percentage of
Number of the issued share

ordinary shares capital of the

Name of Director

EEns

Fang Jin
Wik

Guo Quan Zeng
BRI

Huang Yan (Note 4)
=R (HFE4)

Zhang Li
RER

Capacity
4%

Corporate interest (Note 1)
~EkEz (M)
Beneficial interest

i

i
BX

’

Corporate interest (Note 2)
NE s (MEE2)
Beneficial interest
EmiEm
Beneficial interest
EmiEm

Beneficial interest
BEmEn

issued ordinary subject to Company
shares held options granted (Note 3)
FRFE®T FREBREIR GEAFEE#HTRA
ZRERYE ZRERHAE ZEA(ME3)
514,338,000 47.19%
5,300,000 0.49%

18,000,000 1.65%
5,300,000 0.49%

5,300,000 0.49%

5,300,000 0.49%
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Note 1:  This figure represents (i) 403,770,000 shares directly held

by Swift Joy Holdings Limited and (ii) 110,568,000 shares
directly held by Right Grand Holdings Limited, both of
which are companies with their entire issued share capital
held by Mr. Fang Jin.

Note 2:  These shares are directly held by Cheer View Holdings

Limited, whose entire issued share capital is held by Mr.
Guo Quan Zeng.

Note 3:  We have applied the number of shares of the Company in

issue as at 31 December 2015, i.e. 1,090,001,246 Shares,
when calculating this percentage.

Note 4: Huang Yan resigned as an Executive Director of the

Company with effect from 25 August 2016.

Save as disclosed above and as set out in this section headed “Share
Options” below, none of the Directors or chief executives or their
close associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as at 31 December 2015.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a shareholders’ resolution passed on 3 December 2006
for the primary purpose of rewarding eligible participants who have
contributed to the Group and encouraging eligible participants
to work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its
shares for the Company and its shareholders as a whole. Eligible
participants include directors and employees of the Group, advisors,
consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers,
business partners, joint venture business partners, promoters or
service providers of the Company whom the board of directors of the
Group considers to have contributed or will contribute to the Group.
Under the Scheme, the board of directors of the Company may grant
options to eligible employees, including directors of the Company and
its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company. The Scheme
was adopted for a period of 10 years expiring on 2 December 2016
and the Company by ordinary resolution in general meeting or the
board of directors of the Company may at any time terminate the
Scheme without prejudice to the options granted during the life
of the Scheme and which remain unexpired immediately prior to
such termination. The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed
86,000,000 Shares, representing approximately 7.89% of the entire
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this annual
report, without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The
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number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which options
granted and may be granted to any individual in any 12-month
period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue, without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which
options granted and may be granted to a substantial shareholder
or an Independent Non-executive Director or any of their respective
associates representing in aggregate over 0.1% the Company'’s share
capital on the date of such grant or with an aggregate value in excess
of HK$5,000,000 must be approved in advance by resolution of the
Company's shareholders (voting by way of poll). Subject to the terms
of the Scheme, an offer of grant of an option will remain open for
acceptance by the eligible participant for 28 days from the date of
the offer. Upon the grant of an option a consideration of HK$1 is
payable and the relevant option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the Scheme at any time during the exercise period to
be determined by the Board, which shall not exceed 10 years. The
exercise price of the options shall be determined by the board of
directors of the Company in its absolute discretion but will in any
event not be less than the higher of:—

(1) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of
an offer of an option by the Company (which must be a business
day);

(2) the average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
5 preceding business days of the day of the offer of an option;
and

(3) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

On 19 June 2014, the Company offered to grant share options to
a number of eligible participants to subscribe for up to 80,000,000
shares with nominal value of HK$0.10 each in the issued share capital
of the Company pursuant to the Scheme. Among the 80,000,000
share options, 21,200,000 share options were granted to the
executive Directors of the Company.
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The following table sets out the details of the share options under the
Scheme during the Review Period:

Outstanding

as of

Exercise price 1.1.2015

Name Date of grant HKS 201551818
2] BHEH  TRECERD) HARTHE

Category I: Directors, chief executive and substantial shareholder and their respective associates

Bhl- B2 BRETRASRIZRRRMSERACHEAL

Fang Jin ik 19.6.2014 0.94 5,300,000
Guo Quan Zeng PR 19.6.2014 0.94 5,300,000
Huang Yan (Note i) = (FifH) 19.6.2014 0.94 5,300,000
Zhang Li KR 19.6.2014 0.94 5,300,000
Total directors EEmit 21,200,000

TREFN O ERREZABET 2 BRERS

Percentage of
the total issued
share capital of

Outstanding the Company as
asof  at31.12.2015

Category II: Employees working under continuous contracts (as defined in the Employment Ordinance) other than directors

A= RESU - RERRRARETRERANIBLER

Senior management  RREEE 19.6.2014 0.94 58,800,000
Total of all cateqories  FrA R 80,000,000

Note:

(i) Huang Yan resigned as an executive Director with effect from 25
August 2016.

All share options granted can be exercised from 19 June 2014 to
18 June 2017 (both dates inclusive), and are not subject to any
vesting period. The exercise price is determined by the Directors of
the Company and is fixed at HK$0.94 per share. The closing price of
the shares on the date immediately before the grant of these share
options, i.e. 18 June 2014, was HK$0.95. None of the share options
was exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the Review Period.

The Company recognised the total expense of RMB Nil (2014:
RMB14,811,000) for the Review Period in relation to share options
granted by the Company. Please refer to Note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements for detail.
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- - 5,300,000 0.49%

- - 5,300,000 0.49%

- - 21,200,000 1.94%

- - 58,800,000 5.39%

- - 80,000,000 7.34%
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sub-sections headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares” and “Share
Options”, at no time during the year ended 31 December 2015 was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or its holding company or its
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate
and none of the Directors, their spouses or children under the age of
18, had any rights to subscribe for securities of the Company, or had
exercised any such rights.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2015, the following persons (other than directors
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions (Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company):

Name of shareholder

REREH

Capacity
37

Beneficial owner
EREAA

Swift Joy Holdings Limited
AR B R AR

Beneficial owner
EREAA

Right Grand Holdings Limited
ERERBR AR

Beneficial owner

EmEA A

Value Partners China
Greenchip Fund Limited

Value Partners Group Limited
HREEEBRAR

Corporate Interest
NRER

Note 1:  We have applied the number of shares of the Company in
issue as at 31 December 2015, i.e. 1,090,001,246 Shares,
when calculating this percentage.

EZWBRONES 2ER

RIEERERTTRABZERDER AR I/NETR
[BEARAE |/ NERFTIR RSN » RARISKMI B A RIS & iE
RARIKERBRHMEB AR REE2015F12A31H
HEFEEBETVENLHE  BERRAREENER
U B8 AN B XA ] H Ath R B 2 BR 19 3K 1B 25 LA B A
W NEER - FEZEBITNABRATZ T2
BEMAREARRAEZ S ZENRATEERE R
F o

FERR

M2015F12A31H - M TAL(WIERARAEEZR
ERITBRABIRARRZRO RBERNDTHEER
BESREAEEOIEXVEFE2 K39 E 2 IEX AR AR
DEWE  HALARDRRIREESMPEEGE
3361 F B 2tk s sk R ¢

HR(AQFEREHE0I10BTZERR)

Percentage of the
issued share capital
of the Company as at
31 December 2015

Number of issued
ordinary shares/

underlying (Note 1)

shares held H2015%12831H

o RITEER EARQT ST
HERAEE BAT D (FEE)
403,770,000 37.04%
110,568,000 10.14%
63,106,000 5.79%
63,990,000 5.87%

AKRABRFTEZBEDLLE AKX A
MR2015F 12 A31H 2 B BT D E R (A
1,090,001,2460% )51 & -

BsET
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, the Company
had not been notified by any persons (other than directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of the Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Report for the corporate governance practice adopted by the
Company is set out on pages 57 to 79 of this annual report.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the total remuneration of the
Directors and the five highest paid employees are set out in Note 10
to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE, NOMINATION COMMITTEE
AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit
Committee”), a nomination committee (“Nomination Committee”)
and a remuneration committee (“Remuneration Committee”).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in
considering how the Board should apply financial reporting and
internal control principles and for maintaining an appropriate
relationship with the Company’s independent auditor. As at 31
December 2015, the Audit Committee consisted of three members,
who were Dr. Loke Yu (Chairman), Mr. Wang Jing Zhong and Mr.
Wang Jian Zhang.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Nomination Committee is to identify, screen
and recommend to the Board appropriate candidates to serve as
Directors of the Company, to oversee the process for evaluating
the performance of the Board and to develop, recommend to the
Board and monitor nomination guidelines for the Company. As at
31 December 2015, the Nomination Committee consisted of three
members, who were Dr. Loke Yu (Chairman), Mr. Fang Jin and Mr.
Wang Jing Zhong.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Remuneration Committee is to assist the Board
in determining the policy and structure for the remuneration of
executive Directors, evaluating the performance of executive Directors,
reviewing incentive schemes and Directors’ service contracts and fixing
the remuneration packages for all directors and senior management.
As at 31 December 2015, the Remuneration Committee consisted of
three members, who were Dr. Loke Yu (Chairman), Mr. Fang Jin and
Mr. Wang Jing Zhong.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Although there are no restrictions over the grant of pre-emptive rights
under the laws of Cayman Islands, no pre-emptive rights have been
granted under the articles of association of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The top five customers and the largest customer of the Group
represented approximately 56% and approximately 32% of the
Group's total sales of the Review Period, respectively. The top
five suppliers and the largest supplier of the Group represented
approximately 45% and approximately 16% of the Group’'s total
purchases of the Review Period, respectively.

At no time during the Review Period did a Director, a close associate
of a Director or (to the knowledge of the Directors) a shareholder of
the Company which owns 5% or more of the issued share capital of
the Company has any interest in the top five customers and suppliers
of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to article 167 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
every Director of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he/she
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of his/her duties in his/
her offices or trusts provided that this indemnity shall not extend to
any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to
the relevant Director. Such permitted indemnity provision was in force
during the Review Period and remained in force as at the date of this
report.

FEES

YWEZEG v ENAMDEESETNTESZH
FHBCSR R 518 - ST E S 2RI - W REE
EREERBENVURETCEBESTRSMEERA
B % MEFS - K2015F12A8318 - HMZE €M
=EZRE (DR AEERELE(ER) - FEAEMT
BB A )R -

BrBEERE

BERESHEZPYERARLELBERENR
B EARFLEREARFDEHRSERARRLE

TREFREER

REBEBARAEEHEELET  AEEBRATFPR
BARPDRIMEHI56% K A132% © PREEEHEARE
B2 BREEY  AEERAAHERREAMRES
DRMEHIA5% K #916% °

REBRYE  SEEENEEEBBEATANES
PREER AR RIE BITIRAS %A L2 EMARF]
BREEREERARP LR 2 TR

EERFRERX
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Review Period, the Group had the following continuing
connected transactions, certain details of which are set out below

in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Z#iR o

Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in  AARERIEETMHRAFE4AZTETZERIN
relation to such transactions in accordance with Chapter 14A of the #iF -

Listing Rules.

The name of, and the relationship with, the parties connected with  EEZARATBRES A T ZTERARBERET -

the Company are as follows:

Name

=L

Fang Jin (“Mr. Fang”)
He([FHxE]D

Guo Quan Zeng (“Mr. Guo”)
SPRIE(TE5EED

Scud Electronics
RERE T
Scud Stock

RERERAD

Scud Battery

48

Relationship
BE

Director and controlling shareholder of the Company

BEERANTHERRE
Director
BF

Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary indirectly held by the
Company with Mr. Fang being common director

RERBR)ETFARAR @ TAERHAEENARFABEEZENBLR

Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd., a company with Mr. Fang and Mr. Guo being common
directors, and who has shareholding interest in this company
as to 67% and 3%, respectively

BEREBBEMNBRAR - TRERBEERARERNAGE - BDFIEAZ AR
67 % K 3% % 1

Scud Battery Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary indirectly held by the Company
with Mr. Fang being common director

REBREMLBRARF - TAESHAEENARFAMEZENBRF

REBEHRE  AEEQETTIRERERS - &
THIBEER ETRAEUARHREIELRE @ &
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(A) Lease agreements with Scud Stock

On 10 December 2013, Scud Electronics (as lessee) and Scud
Stock (as lessor) entered into a lease agreement (the “First Lease
Agreement”) in respect of the lease of the premises (the “First
Premises”) located at land lot numbers 39-2 and 44-2, Kuai
An Extension Area, Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province,
PRC comprising (i) 4 blocks of factories with a construction
area of approximately 40,627.68 square metres, rental area
of approximately 23,156 square metres; (ii) 1 office building
with a construction area of approximately 12,852.26 square
metres, rental area of approximately 6,847 square metres; and
(iii) 1 staff dormitory with construction area of approximately
19,601.76 square metres, rental area of approximately 9,120
square metres. The First Premises were leased for use as factory,
office for administration use for the Group and staff dormitory
for the employees of the Group. The term of the lease was from
1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016. The annual rental was
RMB8,543,928 and payable in cash on a monthly basis.

On 10 December 2013, Scud Battery (as lessee) and Scud Stock
(as lessor) entered into a lease agreement (the “Second Lease
Agreement”) in respect of the lease of the premises (the “Second
Premises”) located at land lot numbers 39-2 and 44-2, Kuai
An Extension Area, Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province,
PRC comprising (i) 4 blocks of factories with a construction
area of approximately 40,627.68 square metres, rental area of
approximately 17,471 square metres; (i) 1 office building with
a construction area of approximately 12,852.26 square metres,
rental area of approximately 3,805 square metres; and (iii) 1 staff
dormitory with construction area of approximately 19,601.76
square metres, rental area of approximately 6,680 square metres.
The Second Premises were leased for use as factory, office for
administration use for the Group and staff dormitory for the
employees of the Group. The term of the lease was from 1
January 2014 to 31 December 2016. The annual rental was
RMB5,908,128 and payable in cash on a monthly basis.

Further details of the First Lease Agreement and the Second
Lease Agreement are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 10 December 2013.

(A) EERERRKRAME LWEERR

20135124108 - REMREF(HEREHEA)
HBRERBG(EALBAANRURPRERE
BN R R IR LR 2E39-25% R 5 44-25%
BB R ERE(TEHME DT —BEHE
mER(E—HEEHRE])  BFEOEERS -
BEAMBEA B40,627.68F K HEMIEL
323,156 F 7K ¢ (i) — @M A KB - BER
A /12,852,265 0K - HEHEIEH /6,847
FHAK: R(iV-EEIRS  BEEENA
19,601.76 F K - HHEEEL /£9,120F 75
Ko BRMECHEREAESE IR 1T
RAERAEBEENELRES - HEIH2014
F1A1THE2016F12A318 - FHEAAR
#8,543,9287T Wik AB & -

201312108 - REBREM(EAEHE
AN)ERERBRG (EALAA) BN EERE
EREMNMERRRLZIEMESE39-25 K F44-2
SEMERNMERE(E _HWE DT —1E
RERR(E_MEERZE]) - S1E0)EER
B BEmELNE40,627.68F K HE®
TBRIRNTATIVFOK ¢ () — @ NE - B5Em|
EHA12,852.26F 75K - HEMEEX /43,805
FHAK R(ND—EETESE  BEEEY
7319,601.76F 72Kk - THEEEX) 56,6807
Ke B-WMYECHEREALEZ TH
TBMAERASEEEENEIRS - AR
2014F1 A1EBZE2016612A31H - FHE A
ARME5,908,1287C + Wik A& -

FE—NHEHERE_NHEER B ZE—FF
BENARATIBEA2013F12410B 2 2% -

49



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REMREBBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2015

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEWRE

50

The table below sets out the annual caps for the aggregate
rental payable by Scud Electronics and Scud Battery to Scud
Stock under the First Lease Agreement and the Second Lease
Agreement.

Annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12A31HIEFEZFE LR

Annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2015
BE2015F 12831 BIEFEZFE LR

Annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE20165F12A3MBIEFEZFE LR

The actual amounts incurred for the above continuing connected
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2015 was
RMB14,452,056.

As at 10 December 2013, Scud Stock was owned as to 67%
by Mr. Fang and 3% by Mr. Guo, respectively. Both Mr. Fang
and Mr. Guo are executive Directors of the Company and Mr.
Fang is a controlling shareholder of the Company. Scud Stock
is an associate of Mr. Fang and thus a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules. Therefore, the above
transactions constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Company.

TRENREREFMREBRECRESE -0
ME L E —HEEBRFARERR D EN
HMeRBEIFELR

RMB
ARETT

14,452,056

14,452,056

14,452,056

FHFERER ZREE2015F12A31HIEF
ENEReEAARK14,452,0567T °

20135124108 - REBEKRG S AIBFTE
ERB6T% R R L EEB3% R o %
EEBEERABRARNITES - BH%ESR
RATHERRE - REBRBRMDAFCEZHE
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The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have

reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out herein,

and have confirmed that, during the year ended 31 December

2015, such transactions were entered into:

(1

2)

®3)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

on normal commercial terms or better to the Group than
terms available to or from independent third parties; and

in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The independent auditor of the Company has also confirmed

that in relation to the above continuing connected transactions
with Scud Stock:—

(M

)

3)

nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
not been approved by the Board;

nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe
that the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and

with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the
continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to
its attention that causes it to believe that the continuing
connected transactions have exceeded the annual cap as set
by the Company.

Further details of the transactions and relationships of
the connected parties are also set out in Note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ARABBYIFRATESCEFAFTHIFER
ERG c WHER - REiZ2015F12A31H
ILFER - BRERST)

(1) RAEEEFERABEEEBIZPEIL
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3 o
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the Review Period, the Group entered into certain transactions
with parties regarded as “related parties” under the applicable
accounting principles. Details of the related party transactions
undertaken in the normal course of business are set out in Note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements. The related party transactions
which are also non-exempted continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are disclosed in the section headed
"Continuing Connected Transactions” above.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” above and in Note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other contracts of significance between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries and no other contracts of significance for the provision
of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries were entered into or existed
during the Review Period.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors had engaged in or were interested in any
business which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group during the Review Period.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION BEENEREH
Set out below are changes in information of Directors of the Company ~ T%#R#E FiRAIE13.51B(1EEHI A AT ESH
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules: AR

Name of director

Esns

Dr. Loke Yu
B gMmE LT

Mr. Wang Jing Zhong
TEHALEE

Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor
MRUETE

Details of change

BEFE

Appointed as an independent non-executive director of Tianhe Chemicals Group Limited (Stock
Code: 1619) on 31 May 2014
R2014F5 A3 B EZERRALTEEARAR (MK - 1619) 2B FRITES

Appointed as an independent non-executive director of Kaisa Health Group Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 876) on 20 June 2014 and resigned with effect from 11 January 2017

201456 A20 AR ERERERBEEBIFRAR DA (RO - 876) 2B IFRITES -
BEZBHIN2017F1 A11BER

Appointed as an independent non-executive director of Lamtex Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1041) on 28 July 2015
201557 A28 AR ERMEZERAR AR (BRI : 1041) 2B IERITESE

Appointed as an independent non-executive director of Forebase International Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 2310) on 18 April 2016
R2016F4R18ABLERBEBBIZERAR AR (BN : 2310) 2 BUIFERTESE

Appointed as an independent non-executive director of Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding
Company Limited (Stock Code: 3626) on 26 April 2016
K20165F4 A26 HEZERELE KR ENBEER QB (ORI - 3626) ZBILIFRITES

Appointed as an independent non-executive director of Hong Kong Resources Holdings
Company Limited (Stock Code: 2882) on 31 May 2017
R2017F5 A BEZERBTEERERER DA (M AN  2882) ZBIUFFMITES

Appointed as an independent non-executive director of Zhenro Properties Group Limited (Stock
Code: 6158) on 15 December 2017
R2017F12ASABZERERMERBAERAR (MDA : 6158) 2BIUIFNTES

Resigned as the company secretary and authorised representative of Minth Group Limited (Stock
Code: 425) on 8 February 2018
K20185F2 ABABHEHBEEBE AR AR (RN © 425) 2 ARAIME RIRERE

Resigned as an independent non-executive director of Winfair Investment Company Limited (Stock
Code: 287) on 3 April 2018
MR20185F4 A3HBHEKEEXER AR (BRMA : 287) 2 BUIFMITES

Resigned as an independent non-executive director of Tianneng Power International Limited (Stock
Code: 819) on 6 June 2015
1201556 6 ABHERAEE NI AR AR (RMHARSR: 819) 2 BUIFRITES

Resigned as an independent non-executive director of Daohe Global Group Limited (Stock Code:
915) on 11 January 2017
R2017F 1 BN HEHEBFIRIEEER AT (RGO R - 915) 2 BUIFHITESF
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DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the transactions referred to in the section “Continuing
Connected Transactions” above and in Note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements, no Director or an entity connected with a
Director (within the meaning of section 486 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) had any direct or
indirect material interests in any transaction, arrangement or contracts
of significance to which the Company, its subsidiaries, its holding
company or its fellow subsidiaries was a party subsisting during or at
the end of the Review Period.

PENSION SCHEME

The Company participates in a mandatory provident fund scheme,
which was registered under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Ordinance”), for all its employees
in Hong Kong. The scheme is a defined contribution scheme and is
funded by contributions from employer and employees in accordance
with the provisions of the MPF Ordinance. No forfeited contribution
may be used by the employer to reduce the contribution payable in
the future years.

Furthermore, the employees of the Group in the PRC are members
of respective state-managed defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes operated by the local governments. The employers and the
employees are obliged to make contributions at a certain percentage
of the payroll under rules of the schemes.

Details of the pension scheme contributions of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2015 are set out in Note 4(n) to the consolidated
financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management or administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the Review Period.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group values its employees and provides competitive
remuneration package to attract and motivate its employees. The
Group regularly reviews the remuneration package of its employees
and makes necessary adjustments to conform to market standard. The
Group also provides regular training to its employees for their career
development.

The Group values the views and opinions of its customers and
regularly communicate with them in order to obtain feedback and
opinions and understand their business needs and demands.

The Group has developed long-term and good relationships with
its suppliers. The relevant departments of the Group work closely
together to ensure that the procurement process is conducted in an
open, fair and just manner.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

To the best knowledge of the Directors, save as otherwise disclosed
in this annual report, during the Review Period there was no material
non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group
that had a significant impact on the business and operations of the
Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed interest in any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Review Period.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence, and the
Company considers such directors to be independent in accordance
with each and every guideline set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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AUDITOR

Moore Stephens Certified Public Accountants resigned as the auditor
of the Company with effect from 2 April 2015 and BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants was appointed as the auditor of the
Company with effect from 25 August 2016.

SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on public information and to the knowledge of the Directors,
as at the date of this report, the Company has maintained sufficient
public float as required under the Listing Rules.

By the order of the Board

)

FANG JIN
Chairman

30 April 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

SCUD Group Limited (the “Company”) together with its subsidiaries,
(the “Group”) is committed to maintaining and ensuring a high level
of corporate governance standards and continuously reviews and
improves the Group’s corporate governance and internal controls
practices. Save as otherwise specified, set out below are the principles
of corporate governance as adopted by the Company during the
financial year from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015 (the “Review
Period”). The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “Corporate Governance Code”)
in Appendix 14 of The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”). Save
as disclosed in the section headed “Compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code of the Listing Rules” below, the Company complied
with all the applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code during the Review Period.

ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER (“CEQ")

During the Review Period, Mr. Fang Jin served as the Chairman of
the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of the Company and
was responsible for leading the Board in establishing and monitoring
the implementation of strategies and plans to create values for
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”). Mr. Guo Quan
Zeng served as the President of the Group and was responsible for
managing the overall business operations of the Group, proposing
strategies to the Board and the effective implementation of the
strategies and policies adopted by the Board, effectively carrying out
the role of a Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ").

Save for their business relationships as a result of their respective
directorships and positions and shareholding interests in the Company
and Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd., there are no financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationships between the
Chairman and the CEO.
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THE BOARD

As of 31 December 2015, there were seven members on the Board,
which were the Chairman, three other executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”), whose names
are shown in the table on page 64. The INEDs are considered by
the Board to be independent of the management and free of any
relationship that could materially interfere with the exercise of their
independent judgments. The Board considered that each of the INEDs
brings his own relevant expertise to the Board and its deliberations.
The term of appointment of each of the INEDs (namely, Dr. Loke Yu,
Mr. Wang Jing Zhong and Mr. Wang Jian Zhang) is one year from
14 May 2015 and can be terminated by the Company or the INED
with at least 3 months written notice. Each of the INEDs confirmed
their respective independence to the Group. Save for the Directors’
business relationships as a result of their respective directorships in
the Company and save as disclosed in this annual report, there are no
financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationships
among members of the Board and they are independent from each
other.

The Board met regularly during the Review Period on an ad hoc
basis as required by business needs. The Board’s primary purpose
is to set and review the overall strategic development of the Group
and to oversee the achievement of its business plans to enhance
Shareholders’ value. Daily operational decisions are delegated to
the Executive Directors and the senior management. Such Board
meetings involve the active participation, either in person or through
other electronic means of communication, of a majority of Directors.
During the Review Period, the Board met 7 times and the Directors’
attendance record is shown in the table on page 64. In advance
of the Board meetings, appropriate notices, meeting agenda and
other relevant information were given to all Directors. All Directors
are consulted to include additional matters in the agenda for Board
meetings. Draft and final versions of the Board meeting minutes
were sent to all Directors for their comment and records respectively.
The original minutes of Board meetings are kept by the company
secretary of the Company and such minutes are open for inspection
at any reasonable time on reasonable prior notice by any Director. The
Company has put in place appropriate insurance cover in respect of
Directors’ liability.
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The Company’s overall management is vested in its Board which
accepts that it is ultimately accountable and responsible for the
performance and affairs of the Group. The Board’s role is to provide
entrepreneurial leadership, set the Company’s strategic aims and the
Company’s values and standards, and to ensure that its obligations
to its stakeholders and others are understood and met. To facilitate
the operations, the Board has established a schedule of matters
reserved for its approval. The specific responsibilities reserved for the
Board include (1) setting the Group's strategies and dividend policy;
(2) reviewing operational and financial performance; (3) approving
major investments and divestments; (4) reviewing risk management
and internal control system of the Group; (5) ensuring appropriate
management development and succession plans in place; (6)
approving appointments of Directors and other senior executives; (7)
approving corporate social responsibility policies; (8) ensuring effective
communication with shareholders and (9) other significant operational
and financial matters. The day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Group are delegated to the management.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company. Directors are continually updated with regulatory
and governance developments. The Company provides all members
of the Board with monthly updates on the Company’s performance,
position and prospects. Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development courses and seminars to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills including updated laws and
regulations applicable to the Company and its Directors as well as
any amendments thereto. During the Review Period, the Company
provided regular updates to the Directors on material changes to
regulatory requirements applicable to the Directors and the Company
on a timely basis and on the latest business development of the
Company. The Directors confirmed that they have complied with
code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code on directors’
training. During the Review Period, Mr. Fang Jin, Mr. Guo Quan Zeng,
Mr. Zhang Li, Ms. Huang Yan, Mr. Wang Jing Zhong and Mr. Wang
Jian Zhang participated in continuous professional development by
attending seminars/in-house briefing/reading materials to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills in areas related to their roles,
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functions and duties of Directors such as corporate governance
and regulatory updates. Dr. Loke Yu, as an independent director of
other listed issuers, has attended various directors’ training seminars
arranged by various organisations including the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and Hong Kong Institute of Directors
during the Review Period. On a continuing basis, Directors are
encouraged to keep up to date on all matters relevant to the Group
and attend briefings and seminars as appropriate.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference as suggested under
the code and recommended best practices under the Corporate
Governance Code and adopted with reference to “A Guide for
Effective Audit Committees” published by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants in February 2002. As at 31 December
2015, the Audit Committee comprised three INEDs who were Dr. Loke
Yu, Mr. Wang Jing Zhong and Mr. Wang Jian Zhang. The chairman
of the Audit Committee was Dr. Loke Yu. Each committee member
can bring to the Audit Committee his valuable experience in reviewing
financial statements and evaluating significant control and financial
issues of the Group who among themselves possess a wealth of
management experience in the accounting profession or commercial
sectors. The Audit Committee was established on 3 December 2006
and held 2 meetings during the Review Period and the relevant
Director’s attendance is shown on page 64.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

(i) to review the half-year and annual financial statements of the
Group before they are submitted to the Board for approval;

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of its resignation or dismissal
of that auditor;

(iii) to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence

and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;
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(iv) to review the Group's financial controls, internal controls and risk
management systems and assess the effectiveness of the Group'’s
internal control system;

(v) to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

(vi) to review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit
function;

(vii) to review the arrangements which the employees of the
Company can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters; and

(viii) to review the terms and conditions of ongoing connected
transactions of the Group.

During the Review Period, the Audit Committee carried out the
following work:

The Audit Committee reviewed certain financial information of the
Group and discussed with Grant Thornton Advisory Services Limited
in relation to the matters raised in Moore Stephens Certified Public
Accountants’ resignation letter dated 2 April 2015.

The Audit Committee conducted a review of the internal control
systems of the Group.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”) on 3 December 2006 and held 1 meeting during the
Review Period where all Remuneration Committee members attended
the meeting to discuss remuneration related matters as shown on
page 64. As at 31 December 2015, the Remuneration Committee
comprised Dr. Loke Yu (an INED), Mr. Fang Jin (an Executive
Director) and Mr. Wang Jing Zhong (an INED). The Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee was Dr. Loke Yu. Its main duties are
summarised as follows:

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the Group's
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing such remuneration policies;
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of all individual Executive Directors and senior
management;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
Non-executive Directors;

to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates is involved
in deciding his/her own remuneration; and

to advise Shareholders on how to vote in respect of any service
contract of Directors that requires Shareholders’ approval in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

The work done by the Remuneration Committee during the year

included the following:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

determining the policy for the remuneration of Executive
Directors;

assessing performance of Executive Directors; and

approving the terms of Executive Directors’ service contracts.

Details of the amount of Directors emoluments are set out in Note 10

to the consolidated financial statements.
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62

1,000,001 7C & 2,000,000 7T )



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREBBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2015

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DEEARE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) on 3 December 2006 and held 1 meeting during
the Review Period where all Nomination Committee members
attended the meeting as shown on page 64. As at 31 December
2015, the Nomination Committee comprised Dr. Loke Yu (an INED),
Mr. Fang Jin (an Executive Director) and Mr. Wang Jing Zhong
(an INED). The Chairman of the Nomination Committee was Dr.
Loke Yu. The Nomination Committee selects and recommends
appropriate candidates based on the candidates’ prior experience and
qualifications to the Board on the appointment of Directors and the
senior management of the Group. The main duties of the Nomination
Committee are as follows:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural background, educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and/or
length of service) of the Board on a regular basis and to make
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes;

(i) to develop the criteria for identifying and assessing the
qualifications of and evaluating candidates for directorship;

(iii) to identify individuals who are suitably qualified to become a
Board member and to select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships
having regard to each candidate’s merit against an objective
criteria and the benefits of diversity of the Board;

(iv) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors to determine their eligibility;

(v) to review and assess the adequacy of the corporate governance
guidelines of the Company and to recommend any proposed
changes to the Board for approval; and

(vi) have regard to the Company’s policy concerning diversity of
board members, and make appropriate disclosure of the policy
or a summary of the policy.

The work done by the Nomination Committee during the Review
Period included determining the policy for the nomination of
Directors.
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In August 2013, the Board adopted a board diversity policy setting
out the approach to diversity of members of the Board. The Company
recognizes the benefits of diversity in Board members and believes
that Board diversity can be achieved through consideration of a
number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
background, educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and/or length of service. In forming the perspective on
diversity, the Company will also consider its own business model
and specific needs from time to time. All Board appointments will be
based on merits and each candidate is considered against objective
criteria.

The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree annually, if
considered appropriate, measurable objectives for implementing
diversity on the Board and recommend them to the Board for
adoption. The Board will from time to time review one or more
aspects of its diversity and measure progress accordingly. Having
reviewed the Group’s business model and operation needs and the
current composition of the Board, the Nomination Committee has not
set any measurable objective during the Review Period.

The following table summarises the attendance of each individual

Director and committee member in the respective Board, committee
and general meetings held during the Review Period.

MEETINGS ATTENDANCE RECORD

Number of meetings held during the Review Period ~ REIEHMETHEZE R
Executive Directors: BITES !

Fang Jin ik

Guo Quan Zeng PR

EH(BER2016%F8A258 44)
RR(ALAFHTEET
2016688258 4M)

Huang Yan (resigned with effect from 25 August 2016)
Zhang Li (redesignated as a Non-executive Director
with effect from 25 August 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors: BUHTES:
Loke Yu g
Wang Jing Zhong THs
Wang Jian Zhang TRE
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Meetings attended/held in 2015

RISEHE/BTHER
Audit  Nomination Remuneration General
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
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117 22 1N n N/A TEA
117 22 1 1 N/A TER
1 22 NATNER N/A FER N/A TEA



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREBBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2015

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DEEARE

GOING FORWARD

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance standards
on a regular basis and the Board endeavors to take the necessary
actions to ensure compliance with the provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code introduced by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (”Stock Exchange”).

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual written
confirmation of his/her independence, and the Company considers
such Directors to be independent in accordance with each and every
guideline set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties. The following corporate governance functions
form part of the terms of reference of the Board:—

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(iii) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and

compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and

Directors; and

(v) to review the Company’'s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

During the Review Period, the Board reviewed the Company’s
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE OF THE LISTING RULES

In the opinion of the Directors, save as disclosed below, the
Company complied with the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code pursuant to Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
throughout the Review Period.

(i) According to paragraph A.4.2 of Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules, all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be
subject to election by shareholders at the first general meeting
after appointment. Every director, including those appointed for
a specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

Ms. Huang Yan had not retired by rotation since her re-election
as director at the annual general meeting held on 9 May 2012
because no annual general meeting has been held by the
Company since 14 May 2014. She resigned as an executive
Director of the Company with effect from 25 August 2016.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Risk Management Structure of the Group

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and reviewing their effectiveness. The risk
management and internal control systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

During the Review Period, the Board conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group. The
review considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting functions.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 25 August 2016,
the Company engaged BDO Financial Services Limited (“Internal
Control Consultant”) as its internal control consultant to conduct
a review of the internal control systems and procedures of the
Group and to make recommendations accordingly (“Internal Control
Review").
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The scope of work of the Internal Control Consultant included
an independent assessment of the internal control systems of the
major subsidiaries of the Group which addressed, among others, the
recommendations of the independent board committee as set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 14 June 2016, covering financial
reporting procedures, receivables recording and collection procedures,
recording procedures on the return of goods in the sales process,
bank statements reconciliation procedures, distribution of goods and
tax declaration procedures.

During the period from September 2016 to April 2017, the Internal
Control Consultant performed reviews on the internal control systems
of the major subsidiaries of the Group (including the new enterprise
resource planning (“ERP”) systems for certain companies within the
Group) which involved collecting relevant information, conducting site
visits and interviews and conducting walkthrough tests. Through this
process, a list of issues had been identified and the Internal Control
Consultant recommended certain improvements and/or remedial
measures to address such issues for the Company’s consideration.
The Company has considered and implemented such recommended
improvements and/or remedial measures, and thereafter the Internal
Control Consultant performed a follow-up review which involved
substantially the same procedures as above to come up with further
recommendations on improvements and/or remedial measures for
the Company’s consideration. After the Company has considered
and implemented such further recommended improvements and/or
remedial measures, the new ERP systems were formally launched by
the Group for the major subsidiaries of the Group.

Sample walk-through documents in respect of the enhanced internal
control systems of the Group (including the new ERP systems) and
the operation processes of the Group within the scope of the Internal
Control Review for the period of review from 1 May 2017 to 31
May 2017 were provided by the Group for the Internal Control
Consultant’s follow-up review, checking and testing during July to
September 2017 to assess whether the improvements and/or remedial
measures recommended by the Internal Control Consultant have been
implemented and whether there was any material internal control
deficiency.
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On 30 November 2017, the Internal Control Consultant issued its
report on the Internal Control Review. The Internal Control Consultant
was satisfied that the Company maintained, in all material respects,
effective internal control systems in relation to the companies within
the Group that are the subject of the Internal Control Review and all
the business areas of the Group as at 31 May 2017.

Having reviewed the findings and results of the report on the Internal
Control Review prepared by the Internal Control Consultant, and
having taken into consideration the improvements and/or remedial
measures implemented in accordance with the Internal Control
Consultant’s recommendations, the Board is of the view that the
Company has put in place adequate internal control system and
financial reporting procedures to meet its obligations under the Listing
Rules.

We set out below the current risk management structure of the
Group:

Risk Management Department

The Group has set up a risk management department which is
responsible for the design and implementation of a risk management
system and assisting the Board in monitoring and supervising the
implementation and effectiveness of enterprise risk management
framework and procedures and reviewing risk response measures. The
risk management department performs an internal audit function and
is responsible for performing independent review of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Group.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Group assists the Board in monitoring
the risk level of the Group and the design and operational efficiency
of the relevant risk management and internal control systems. The
Audit Committee oversees the following procedures on behalf of the
Board:

o examination of the Group’s risk management system, internal
control system (including corporate strategy, finance, operations
and compliance monitoring) and internal audit functions to
ensure the establishment and maintenance of effective and
appropriate risk management and internal control systems and
adequate resources to perform the internal functions of the
Group;

o regular review of work reports submitted by the risk management
department, including action plans to address any weaknesses
of the risk management and internal control systems which
have been identified and updates on the implementation of
recommendations to address the weaknesses;

e  external auditors regularly submit reports on the internal control
matters identified in the course of their work to the Company’s
management. They also meet with the Audit Committee to
discuss the scope and results of their review.

The Audit Committee will report to the Board after review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
system. Upon consideration of the work and results of review of the
Audit Committee, the Board will form its view on the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems.

The board of directors will ensure that a review of the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group will
be conducted annually.

Major Risks and Uncertainties of the Group

The Group is exposed to different risks and uncertainties, some of
the Group’s major risks are set out below and appropriate mitigation
measures have been devised to manage such risks.
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The smart electronic products industry advances at a tremendous
pace. Lithium-ion battery module, being the Company’s main
product, is mostly used in smartphones, laptops, tablets and
wearable devices. The sales of consumer smart electronics may
change rapidly in response to consumers’ demand or taste.
As the supplier of lithium-ion battery modules for a number
of domestic smartphone brands, the drastic fluctuation in
customers’ sales of smartphones will have significant effects on
the sales of the Group's lithium-ion battery modules.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues:

(i) Investment of resources in development of new products
and application of lithium-ion battery in new industries and
new fields in response to changes in market demands;

(i) Diversification of product portfolios in order to reduce the
impact of a reduction in sales of individual products on the
Group’s overall business;

(iii)  Proactive recruitment and training of skilled and experienced
technicians to enhance the Group’s R&D capability.

For lithium-ion battery products, great importance is attached to
the quality and safety. The performance and safety of lithium-ion
battery is greatly sensitive to ambient environment. The safety
of lithium-ion battery lies in effective use of external circuit
design to help ensure the battery’s operation is normal and safe.
However, the efficiency and reliability of these safety devices
are closely connected with good and consistent manufacturing
quality. Various different circumstances or causes may also lead
to short circuit and other risk.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues:

(i) In the pursuit of high efficiency and endurance of battery,
the Group conducted more rigorous review of the safety
of batteries to ensure that all the batteries delivered by the
Group meet high safety standards;

(i)  The Group ensures it purchases sufficient product liability
insurance for protection. Product liability insurance covers
the liability arising from a defective product that causes
personal injury, property damage or other losses;
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(iii) The raw materials and other auxiliary materials used for the
Company’s products shall be certified by authorities before
being used. In the process of production, the Company’s
quality inspection department shall conduct inspection at
each stage throughout the whole production process to
ensure the Company’s product quality and safeguard the
interests of consumers with a quality monitoring system.

In 2015, approximately 78% of the Group’s turnover was derived
from its ODM business. Approximately 57% of sales of ODM
business was derived from three domestic smartphone brand
manufacturers. If the Group loses one of these top customers, it
may have adverse effects on the operation and financial results
of the Group's ODM business.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues:

(i)  The Group will look for more potential customers to reduce
its dependence on top customers;

(i) The Group will strengthen after-sales services for customers,
pay regular visits to customers and conduct customer
satisfaction survey, to continuously improve the quality
of products and services and consolidate the Group’s
competitiveness in the industry and increase customer
loyalty;

(i) The Group will develop more new products to meet
customer needs.

The vast majority of the Group’s sales revenue is from domestic
operating units. Adverse events in the domestic operation and
political environment may result in material adverse effects on
the Group's business, financial position and operation results.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues:

(i) Development of overseas markets to increase revenue from
overseas operations;

(i) Continuous monitoring of domestic operations and political
environment, anticipation of possible problems, and
establish quick strategic response to changing business
environment.
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Overdue payments by customers granted with credit by the
Group will increase the financial risk to the Group and affect the
Group's financial performance and operating cash flow.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues:

(i)  Regular review of the amount of accounts receivable from
key customers to control it at the appropriate level,

(i) Implementation of internal control measures to increase
collection efforts for overdue accounts receivable.

The main raw material for lithium-ion battery module (the
Group’s main product) is lithium-ion battery cell. The Group
purchases lithium-ion battery cells from many well-known
international manufacturers. In recent years, lithium-ion battery
cell has been widely used in smartphones, laptops and tablets,
wearable devices, power tools, electric bicycles, energy storage
and other fields. Any increase in the price or shortage of supply
of lithium-ion battery cell will have a material impact on the
profitability and production costs of the Group.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues:

(i) Regular research and evaluation of suppliers to ensure
stable supply of raw materials;

(i)  Through automation upgrade of production lines, the
Group solves the problem with human resources and
effectively controls production costs, which have positive
effects on improvement of the Group’s profitability and
control of production costs.
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(B)

(o

ACCIDENT RISKS

Major accidents including fires, natural disasters or serious
infectious diseases will affect the Group’s assets and operations,
thus affecting the Group’s operational capacity and reducing
profitability.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues:

(i)  Ensure comprehensive insurance coverage over the Group's
properties and business is purchased;

(i) Provision of regular education and training sessions on
safety for all staff to strengthen staff's awareness of
production safety;

(iii) Training on fire safety, fire emergency evacuation and
fire drill at workplace are organized at least twice a year
to let staff have a solid understanding of the significance
and necessity of production safety and improve their own
awareness of safety protection;

(iv) The Company organizes physical examination for the
benefit of its staff to help in assessing possible occupational
and serious infectious diseases.

INDUSTRY RISKS

The possible slowdown of Chinese economy in the near future,
commencement of drop in global shipment of smartphones and
the possible substantial decrease in consumers’ demands for
replacement of smartphones will have material adverse effects
on the Group's business, financial position and operation results.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues:

(i) Proactively pay attention to the application of lithium-
ion batteries in new industries and new fields, grasp
opportunities for access to the market and adjust the
development strategy in response to changes in the market;

(i) Proactively build a platform for communication with
consumers, pay close attention to consumers’ demands,
timely listen to consumers’ opinions, and provide good
products and after-sales services to increase customer
loyalty.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company:

o is aware of its obligations under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance and the Listing Rules;

o conduct its affairs in strict compliance with the relevant
guidelines and policies relating to inside information issued by
the Securities and Futures Commission and the Stock Exchange
from time to time;

o has implemented procedures for responding to external enquiries
about the Group’s affairs; and

o has implemented policy regarding prohibition on the
unauthorised use of confidential or inside information.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company had adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”). Having made specific enquiries of all
Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied
with the required standard as set out in the Model Code for the
financial year ended 31 December 2015.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for considering
the appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any non-
audit functions performed by the external auditor, including whether
such non-audit functions could lead to any potential material adverse
effect on the Company. Moore Stephens Certified Public Accountants
resigned as the external auditor of the Company with effect from 2
April 2015. BDO Limited Certified Public Accountants (“BDO Limited”)
has been appointed as the Company’s external auditor with effect
from 25 August 2016. During the Review Period, the amount payable
by the Group to BDO Limited and the PRC auditor for audit services
was approximately RMB1,449,000 and RMB403,000 respectively.
During the Review Period, the amount payable by the Group to BDO
Limited for non-audit services in respect of review of interim financial
information of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2015 was
approximately RMB201,000.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group and their
responsibilities for the accounts and the reporting responsibilities of
the external auditors are set out on pages 80 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Yeung Mun Tai (FCCA,
CPA). Mr. Yeung took no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the Review Period.

SHAREHOLDER AND INVESTOR RELATIONS
COMMUNICATION STRATEGIES

The Board established a Shareholders’ communication policy setting
out the principles of the Company in relation to its communication
with the Shareholders, with the objective of ensuring the Shareholders
are provided with access to information about the Company in order
to enable Shareholders to assess the Company’s overall performance,
exercise their rights in an informed matter and engage actively with
the Company.

Information would be communicated to Shareholders mainly
through the Company’s corporate communications including interim
and annual reports, annual general meetings and other general
meetings that may be convened, as well as by making available all
the disclosures submitted to the Stock Exchange and its corporate
communications and other corporate publications on the Company’s
website. Shareholders may direct enquiries about their shareholdings
to the Company’s Share Registrars. To the extent the requisite
information of the Company is publicly available, Shareholders and
the investment community may at any time make enquiry in respect
of the Company in writing at our head office in Hong Kong by post,
facsimile or email via the numbers and email address provided on the
Company's website.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, any one or
more shareholders holding on the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary at our head office in Hong Kong by post,
facsimile or email via a number and email address provided on the
Company’s website, to require an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition. The written requisition may be deposited at the
Company’s head office in Hong Kong at Room 1017, 10/F Leighton
Centre, 77 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong, for the
attention of the Board or the Company Secretary. If within 21 days
of such deposit of the written requisition, the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change to the constitutional documents of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2015.

STAKEHOLDERS

The continuing development and present scale of the Group were
benefited from the trust and support of the stakeholders. We have
been dedicating efforts not only to maximise the present value of the
Group but also seeking to maximise the interest and return for all
parties so as to enhance a harmonious development and a victorious
collaboration in the long run.
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INVESTORS

The Group has always paid much attention to communication
and interaction with investors, and continued to improve
communication channels with shareholders and investors, so as
to enhance governance transparency. The Group’'s management
regularly meets with investors, and proactively announces the
latest information and business development plans.

CONSUMERS
PRODUCT SAFETY

The Group has placed emphasis on the safety of products,
especially on mobile phone batteries and has implemented
strict quality control like ISO so as to meet safety requirements.
With our product testing centres, we administer stages of
tests including crash, high-temperature, dampen and long
period recharging on our battery products. We also invest
resources in product R&D to develop more reliable products. The
battery products of the Group have also passed the stringent
requirements on quality control and safety set by the relevant
government authorities.

EMPLOYEES
OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY

The Group has focused on factory production safety, strived
to enhance employees’ safety knowledge and training, and
increased factory fire prevention facilities and safety patrols,
so as to ensure unobstructed fire passages and the availability
of water in case of fire. In addition, the Group has regularly
held fire drills, increased investments in fire prevention facilities
in factories, so as to ensure the sufficiency of fire prevention
equipment and facilities.
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The Group has proactively taken and implemented various
measures, including:

(i) increase factory fire prevention facilities and safety patrols
(once a week), resolve problems in a timely manner, ensure
unobstructed fire passages and the availability of water in
case of fire;

(i) hold regular safety seminar and training for employees,
especially for new staff, striving to enhance employees’
hazard prevention and safety awareness;

(iii) conduct at least two large scale fire drills every year and
conduct general safety checks and fire drills on such days;

(iv) enhance factory management and divide it into safety
responsibility districts, appoint safety examiners at the
workshops, with routine patrols, and eliminate potential
problems in a timely manner; and

(v) improve and formulate storage, safe keeping, transportation
and processing procedures for flammables, and provide
training for staff frequently in contact in such flammables.

ESTABLISHMENT OF OWN SKILL TRAINING INSTITUTE

Apart from occupational safety, the Group has also placed
emphasis on providing on-the-job training for its staff. The Group
started a comprehensive talent training programme, which is tied
to the establishment of its own skill training institute. Talents will
be cultivated at the skill training institute and available in the
pipeline to resolve the labour shortage issue faced by industry
participants. After a period of training, the Group will allocate
labour resources directly to various departments, which will
shorten the time of staff replacement and reduce labour cost.
Automated production will also be implemented at different
phases. Moreover, in the training process, participating staff
can understand the practical operation issues arising from the
course of production, which will effectively enhance production
efficiencies and qualities. The Group invites talents from society
and selects personnel with the required management and
technical expertise through professional and rigorous training
processes. At the same time, this also brings to society a new
generation of trained talents in fulfillment of the Company’s
social responsibilities.
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PROTECTION OF EMPLOYEES’ LEGAL RIGHTS

The Group promotes and undertakes a fair and non-discriminative
employment policy. Employees are employed on contract basis
and employment contracts were signed based on principles of
fairness and on employees’ own volition, with clear provisions
on contractual terms such as scope of work, remuneration,
social insurance, and working hours, among others. The legal
rights and obligations of the employer and employee are
clearly defined. We also strictly comply with the relevant laws
and regulations in relation to national social insurance to set
up insurance scheme for basic pension, medical, work-related
injuries, unemployment and maternity for employees and cover
the various insurance expenses. Meanwhile, to further protect
the interests of individual employees, the Company has taken
out a commercial accident insurance scheme for all employees.
The Group complied with the Labor Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China since 1 January 2008 and established a labor
union. We hold an employees’ meeting every two weeks, in
support of construction and development of a harmonious and
stable employee and employer relationship.

COMMUNITY
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

As a responsible enterprise, the Group has always put emphasis
on supporting environmental protection. We strictly control the
production procedures and reduce waste generation. Although
small amounts of waste are generated during the packaging
process, some of them are delivered to qualified recycling plants
for treatment.
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25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Tel : +852 2218 8288

Fax: +852 2815 2239

www.bdo.com.hk
|

Hong Kong
E5% : +852 2218 8288 HEETHER15R
55 : +852 2815 2239 KRA2548
www.bdo.com.hk
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SCUD GROUP LIMITED FREREBERLTZERR

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of
SCUD Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 84 to 195, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Except for the inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
as explained below, we conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement. Because
of the matters as described in the “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion”
paragraphs, however, we were not able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

1. Opening and closing inventories

We were engaged to perform the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015 in August 2016, and we were therefore not able
to attend the physical inventory count conducted by the Group
for its inventories as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December
2014. As the directors of the Company were unable to provide
or match the required information and supporting documents
for/to certain sale and purchase transactions for the two years
ended 31 December 2016, we were unable to perform inventory
roll-back procedures from the inventory balances as at 31
December 2016 of which we have attended and observed the
physical inventory count conducted by the Group.
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We were unable to satisfy ourselves with any alternative audit
procedure on the completeness and existence of the inventories
of the Group of approximately RMB646 million and RMB369
million as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 respectively, and
hence were unable to determine whether any adjustment to
these amounts as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 was necessary.
Our audit report on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 was modified
accordingly. We were also unable to determine whether any
adjustment might have been necessary in respect of the financial
performance reported in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income and the net cash flows
from operating activities reported in the consolidated statement
of cash flows of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015.

2. Certain sale and purchase transactions

For the year ended 31 December 2015, there were sales of
approximately RMB641 million to customers and purchases of
approximately RMB1,331 million from suppliers that we were
not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence on the
completeness, existence and accuracy of these transactions as
the directors of the Company were unable to provide or match
the required information and supporting documents for/to these
sale and purchase transactions for the year ended 31 December
2015.

We were unable to satisfy ourselves with any alternative audit
procedure on the completeness, existence and accuracy of
these sale and purchase transactions, and hence were unable
to determine whether these amounts were fairly stated in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

Any consequential effect in connection with the above matters would
affect the net assets of the Group as at 31 December 2015 and the
Group's profit and cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2015
and the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
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DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Because of the significance of the matters as described in the Basis
for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraphs, we have not been able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for
an audit opinion. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015. In all other respects, in our opinion the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015 have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Tsui Ka Che, Norman
Practising Certificate no. PO5057

Hong Kong, 30 April 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EZ2015%12/31H 1F F/Z

2015 2014
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
B AR% T AREFT
Turnover e 6 4,509,441 3,728,814
Cost of sales SHE A (3,986.,817) (3,220,593)
Gross profit =5 522,624 508,221
Other revenue Hip U zx 7 42,012 22,682
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHFAX (57,618) (61,365)
Administrative expenses TR > (294,017) (247,729)
Other operating expenses Hib g Bmx (144,148) (162,821)
Finance costs B & P AR 11 (27,317) (30,195)
Share of results of an associate FE(REE & N R AR 17 - 21
Share-based payment expenses LARR D BERE 2 kA 35 - (14,811)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HENE AT EE KR 38 - 1,868
Profit before income tax B TSR AT 4 8 41,536 15,871
Income tax FiSHH 12 (18,000) (22,733)
Profit/(loss) for the year EEEEH(EE) 23,536 (6,862)
Other comprehensive income AEEBAHMESERE !
for the year, net of tax:
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently to A EHIRBEH RAE BN
profit or loss HH
- Exchange differences on translating — MEBINEBZERER
foreign operations (4,929) 1,791
Other comprehensive income REEFEE M EYE
for the year, net of tax (4,929) 1,791
Total comprehensive income AEEZERERE
for the year 18,607 (5,071)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 £ Z2015% 1231 H 1 F/Z

2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
P AR%T AREFT
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: T AL EIEAREZER, (EiE):
Owners of the Company KAREEA A 38,168 (1,696)
Non-controlling interests FEIERRE (14,632) (5,166)
23,536 (6,862)
Total comprehensive income THIATEGEERE
attributable to: s
Owners of the Company ZAN/NSIEZ SN 33,239 95
Non-controlling interests SRR MR (14,632) (5,166)
18,607 (5,071)
Earnings/(losses) per share BREF,(&E)
— Basic and diluted (RMB cents) —EAREE(ARED) 14 3.50 (0.16)
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At 31 December 2015 F2015%12/31H

2015 2014
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
i ARBTR AREBFIT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BERZE 15 299,717 319,917
Intangible assets EREE 16 3,589 2,646
Interest in an associate kNS 17 - 1,421
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHENBEE 18 1,000 -
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TANRIE - He REMER
HR 22 26,280 28,719
Deferred tax assets RERIEEENEE 31 101,742 90,031
Total non-current assets EREEEASE 432,328 442,734
Current assets RBEE
Inventories T8 19 645,609 368,931
Financial assets at fair value through profit or mPBERATEYER TG
loss BE 20 60,000 -
Trade and notes receivables FEUE 5 R0E N e E S 21 1,235,503 1,184,659
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERFIE - 7E REAMER
2B 22 307,610 314,824
Amounts due from related parties e B A T FB 23 56,714 57,975
Current tax recoverable A 45 [ BN AR 18 - 473
Pledged bank deposits BEHEARITER 24 596,121 422,104
Time deposits EHER 25 140,000 60,000
Bank balances and cash RITEHIIE S 25 249,430 122,229
Total current assets MEVEEREE 3,290,987 2,531,195
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and notes payables NRE SFERENEE 26 1,878,050 1,216,815
Other payables, receipts in advance and HA IR - TEUEIE R E
accrued charges &R 27 189,552 208,752
Provision for warranty EnREEES 28 1,870 3,104
Bank loans — current portion WITER—REHH 29 339,956 380,405
Other loans — current portion HiER—REHH 29 11,369 10,604
Obligations under finance leases BEREAE-RDHH
— current portion 29 5,202 -
Amount due to a director JENEEE 30 105,520 42,683
Amounts due to related parties FE{SRE AT FIA 23 73,847 21,678
Amount due to an associate BB &N R FRIA 23 - 3
Current tax payable e BN EARR 1B 42,476 28,911
Total current liabilities A GBS 2,647,842 1,912,955
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At 31 December 2015 201512 /31H

2015 2014
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
B s ARET ARETT
Net current assets REBEEFE 643,145 618,240
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABERS 1,075,473 1,060,974
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank loans — non-current portion WITER—IERB IS 29 - 147
Other loans — non-current portion Hih B —FERmEFL S 29 7,465 18,888
Obligations under finance leases MEFERARE
— non-current portion —3EREE S 29 7,805
Deferred tax liabilities EEFEA S 31 5,590 5,933
Total non-current liabilities JEnBEEERE 20,860 24,968
Net assets FEE 1,054,613 1,036,006
Capital and reserves B
Share capital PN 32 107,590 107,590
Reserves it 33 918,160 884,921
Equity attributable to owners of the AATEE AELER
Company 1,025,750 992,511
Non-controlling interests Bl iy 34 28,863 43,495
Total equity MR 1,054,613 1,036,006

FANG JIN

F&

DIRECTOR

B=

GUO QUAN ZENG
BRI
DIRECTOR
£ o
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EZ2015%12/31H 1F F/Z

Attributable
Statutory ~ Enterprise Share to owners Non-
Share Share Capital reserve  expansion  Translation option  Accumulated of the  controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve fund fund  reserve  resemve losses ~ Company ~ interests equity
T i B HRAREA

Rx  BHEE  EREE  DEE  EREG  ENRA fh  EER  EREL HREE 4

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETR ARBTR AREF ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTR AREfR

At1lanuary 2014 (as restated) ~ R0WE1R1A(MER) 103014 STA5 186215 10583 53676 (61,59) -l BT BI0 %BI8YT

Loss for the year TEREE - - - - - - - (16%)  (18%) (51660 (6862)

Other comprehensive income At2EkE - - - - - 1,791 - - 1,791 - 1,791

Total comprehensive income EE2ENR

for the year % - - - - - 1,791 - (1,69) 9 (5166)  (5,071)
Share-based payment expenses  HRGAERZFFER

[Note 35) (H33) - - - - - -8 -8 -8

Isue of new shares (Note 3) Bl (HE30) 457 Q1m - - - - - - 467 - 67

De-registration of a subsidiary BEHENELE - - - (157) - - - - (157) (49) (206)

Appropriations Al - - - 37700 (1,889 - - 5,655 - - -

Dividend paid BfRE - - - - - - - e 1Y )

At 31 December 2014 A014E1 8318 107590 619288 186215 101907 51791 (59805 14811 (29.286) 992511 43495 1,036,006
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 £ Z2015% 1231 H 1 F/Z

Attributable
Statutory  Enterprise Share to owners Non-
Share Share Capital ~ reserve  expansion  Translation option  Accumulated of the ~ controlling Total
capital ~ premium  reserve fund fund  reseve  reserve losses ~ Company interests equity
HE i Bhe KAAREA
Ba  RbEE E4RE @ 0EE  EREE  EYER i EFR  BEDD  FERRE &
RMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB'O0  RAMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMBO00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETRL  ARBTR ARMTR ARMTn ARMTz ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARMIn  ARETR  ARETR
At 1 January 2015 H201551R1A 107590 619288 186215 101907 5791 (59805) 14811 (29286) 992511 13495 1,036,006
Proftloss) for the year REREH/(BR) - - - - - - - 3168 38168 (1463) 2536
Other comprehensive income Ef2Eka - - - - - () - - () - )
Total comprehensive income rEERENALE
for the year - - - - - (4,929) - 33,168 BB (1463) 18607
Appropriations I - - - 12,690 6,345 - - (190%) - - -
At 31 December 2015 20155128318 10759 619288 186215 114597 5813 (64738) 14811 (10153) 1,025,750 8863 1,054,613
Notes: PAEE -
Share premium &A=

The share premium account represents the excess of the issue price
net of any issuance expenses over the par value of the shares issued
and has been credited to the share premium account of the Company.
The application of the share premium account is governed by Section
34 under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal amount of the shares issued by the Company and the
aggregate amount of the paid-in capital of subsidiaries acquired plus
the consideration received by the Company pursuant to the Group
Reorganisation in preparation of the listing of the Company’s shares.

Statutory reserve fund and enterprise expansion fund

Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") applicable to foreign investment enterprises and
the Articles of Association of the PRC subsidiaries of the Company,
these PRC subsidiaries are required to maintain two statutory reserves,
namely a statutory reserve fund and an enterprise expansion fund
which are non-distributable.
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Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Scud Electronics”), Scud Battery
Co., Ltd. (“Scud Battery”), Scud Power (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“Scud
Shenzhen”), Shenzhen Hongde Battery Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen
Hongde”), Fujian Green Energy Co., Ltd. (“Fujian Green Energy”),
Dongguan Hongde Battery Co., Ltd. (“Dongguan Hongde”), Fuzhou
Thousand Island Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Fuzhou Thousand Island”),
Shenzhen Nalon Battery Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Nalon”) and Fujian
Scud New Energy Co., Ltd. (“Scud New Energy”)(together the “PRC
Subsidiaries”) are required to transfer 10% of their respective profit
after income tax as reported in the PRC statutory financial statements
to the statutory reserve fund until the balance reaches 50% of their
respective registered capital. Pursuant to the Articles of Association
of the PRC Subsidiaries, they are also required to make appropriation
from their respective profit after income tax as reported in the PRC
statutory financial statements to the enterprise expansion fund at
rates determined by their respective boards of directors.

The statutory reserve fund may be used to make up prior year losses
incurred and, with the approval from the relevant government
authorities, to increase capital for expansion of production of the PRC
Subsidiaries. The enterprises expansion fund, subject to the approval
by the relevant government authorities, may also be used to increase
capital of the PRC Subsidiaries.

Translation reserve

Gain/losses arising on translating the net assets of foreign operations
into presentation currency.

Share option reserve

Cumulative expenses recognised on the granting of share options to
the employees over the vesting period.

Accumulated losses
No dividend is proposed for the year ended 31 December 2015 and

2014. As at 31 December 2015, the balance of accumulated losses of
the Group was RMB10,153,000 (2014: of RMB29,286,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 £ Z2015% 1231 H 1 F/Z

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBFT
Cash flows from operating activities RETBHERERE
Profit before income tax bR P45 B A s A 41,536 15,871
Adjustments for: HEIEE
Interest income FLEHA (13,920) (8,352)
Finance costs BERAK 27,317 30,195
Amortisation of intangible assets BVAEEH 1,536 1,438
Write off of intangible assets BV AEME = 837
Loss on disposal of intangible assets HERLEEZEE 18 3,686
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BERRETE 60,015 55,737
Share of results of an associate R NI = 1)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE - BE RSB BE 10,565 7,745
Write off of property, plant and equipment YIE - BE KRR 26,221 50,729
Impairment loss recognised on trade and notes HEWNE ZFERERERRERZ
receivables HAEEE 25,062 61,791
Impairment loss recognised on prepayment, deposits ~ FLIBFIE - e M EMERTIERERZ
and other receivables EEE 59,202 43,279
Reversal of impairment loss recognised on trade and  StREWE 5 %08 K FEU 15T
notes receivables HEE B - (606)
Reversal of write down of inventories WoRFE# D (52,856) 1,459
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE M B R FIE S A e - (1,868)
Share-based payment expenses PARR (D RET 2 (3R F % = 14,811
Operating profit before changes in working capital CEESEERINELRT 184,696 276,731
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through FERBRENTEBENSEE
profit or loss (60,000) -
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEOEM,/H (223,822) 37,159
Increase in trade and notes receivables FEUE 5 7008 I FE W SR HE 12 hn (75,906) (704,551)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and other receivables TB3UIE « 124 & H fth fE YR IEHE N (53,987) (121,290)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from related parties [EUIEEE A IR >,/ (320) 1,261 (53,235)
Decrease in amount due from an associate RS D R FIER S = 1,958
Increase in trade and notes payables FETE 5538 & FERRIBIE N 661,235 509,322
(Decrease)/increase in other payables, receipts in HAib e B - BURGE M ERTE A
advance and accrued charges (R, /& (19,200) 108,344
Increase in provision for warranty IRISZEHERIE M = 169

91



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REMREBBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2015

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n\/'_l'\AIE,ﬁ/JILE%

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EZ2015%12/31H 1F F/Z

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBFT
Cash generated from operations RECEXBNRSE 414,277 54,607
Interest paid [SANELESE (27,317) (30,195)
Income tax paid BRFTEH (16,016) (11,026)
Net cash generated from operating activities RELETHNRLTE 370,944 13,386
Investing activities REED
Interest received 2 U F 2 13,920 8,352
Increase in pledged bank deposits BIRIRRITEFUE M (174,017) (182,680)
Acquisition of available-for-sale financial assets BERAHLENBEE (1,000) -
Payments to acquire property, plant and equipment HEWE  BERSERE (56,175) (89,113)
Payments to acquire intangible assets BEELEENE (2,497) (468)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME - BE KEBMERE
equipment - 1,860
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets HEEREEMSIE - 23,585
Increase in time deposits TE ERTF R AN (80,000) (60,000)
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of an HEBERAREAZESRAFRE
associate 1.421 -
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of HEMBRAREAZESRANFRE
subsidiaries - 5,681
Net cash used in investing activities ARRETBNESFE (298,348) (292,783)
Financing activities MEED
Dividends paid BERRE = (8,114)
Bank loans raised SEHRITER 726,424 655,898
Other loans raised EEHMER - 48,697
Repayment of bank loans ERBITER (774,908) (596,149)
Repayment of other loans EEEMER (10,658) (3,976)
Repayment of obligations under finance leases EEREMEEAE (2,981) -
Increase in amount due to a director JEREEFIEE N 62,837 41,683
Increase in amounts due to related parties T RAE A T FIEE M 52,168 21,671
(Decrease)/increase in amount due to an associate R NCIE SO R ) (3) 3
Proceeds from placing of shares Bl & B (5 P15 3008 = 46,749
Net cash generated from financing activities METHELENRSFHE 52,879 206,462
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 £ Z2015% 1231 H 1 F/Z

2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET R ARBFT
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash BeRESSEERFHELEMN (BD)
equivalents 125,475 (72,935)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FHBRERHEELSEER 122,229 195,360
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ERSHNY 1,726 (196)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRESRASEEER 249,430 122,229
Analysis of the balances of cash and cash RERBASEEERERDN
equivalents
Bank balances and cash RITEBREIRE 249,430 122,229
Non-cash transaction FRERXRS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group acquired
property, plant and equipment of RMB15,988,000 (2014: RMBNil)

under finance leases.

JL(2014F « ARBZT) -

HE2015F12A3MBIEFE  AEBEBEEMRERE
HTNZ2WE - BEEREZERIESARK15,988,000
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94

GENERAL

SCUD Group Limited (the “Company”) is a public limited
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 20 July 2006 as
an exempted company with limited liability and its shares were
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 21 December 2006.

The Company’s principal activity is investment holding and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in manufacture and sale of
lithium—ion battery modules and related accessories for mobile
phones, tablets and digital electronic appliances, while also
engaging in manufacture and sale of lithium—ion bare battery
cells.

ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRS")

(a) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs - effective 1
January 2015

IFRSs (Amendments)
R B 75 R 5 HE I (18 RT AR )

IFRSs (Amendments)
% B 75 e 5 2 Al (1B RT AR )

Amendments to IAS 19 (2011)
BIFR & 522551955 (20114F) (&5 A0)

The adoption of these amendments has no material impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

2.

—RER
REBREEBRAF(ARQA])R2006F7 A
Q0B EHEHEFMR I EEREZ LTAER
NaE - HIHR2006F12 A21 BEFT BB AR
SEARA T (BT ) ERET °

ARBMEBXEBRREZR - REKBERQR
TERERETH  FREWIBBRETE
mrRz BRrEeEAR R 2 EER
HE  TMEEEBETFREC L EERHE -

R A [ Bt o 755 3 o 22 B ([ B PR Bt
B EER )

(a) BHFT BETBERBREE
Bl—H2015F1 818 &M

Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle
20104F 2201 240 8 HAH) F B

Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle
20115 E 20135 AN FE e

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 £ Z2015% 1231 H 1 F/Z

2. ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL 2. PR4WE B3R <E % 8| ([ BB Bt
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRS") (Continued) FEWERER |) ()

(b) New/revised IFRSs that have been issued but are (b) BEETEMRERZHET EIETHE

not yet effective
IFRSs (Amendments)

Amendments to 1AS 1
Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38

IFRS 9
Amendments to IFRS 10 and 1AS 28

Amendments to [FRS 10, IFRS 12
and IAS 28

IFRS 14

IFRS 15

IFRS 16

Amendments to AS 7
Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12
and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 11

Amendments to IFRS 15

Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle'

Disclosure Initiative'

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation'

Financial Instruments®

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception’

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Revenue from Contracts with Customers’

Leases*

Disclosure Initiative?

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses?

(lassification and Measurement of Share-Based Payment
Transactions®
Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception

Accounting for Acquisitions of interests in Joint Operations

Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Clarifications to

P B 705 3 o 22 A
BB RS ER (B )

ERGHENZIR(BTE)
ARerElZen RERE
STERIE38H(B3TK)
BRI RS 2R R%
B RS R 105 R
ReElIE8% (B A)
EREERSEAZ10%
REBREEAE1ERE
ReElIE8% (BT 4)
BRMHRSEA R 145
BREHRS RN S15%
ARMERSEE 165
ERGHEAETR (B X)
AR e ENE 125 (B3 F)

BRI RS2 225
CHEY)

EREHERSEAZ10%
REBREENE 1255 RE

1

1

RETHERI 2285 (BT E)

BRMHERS RS
CHEy

BRHRS RN S15%

WNEENUEERNEE
B!

i

BEMERBH ARG

HBIE
REZEARELNTRALL
FRNEELEDIR

RERE : BRGA 201

%%1

EERTRE

EPARE

iy

BESH

HARRBRRTELHE
aE

B BERL NFFX
RHLNERE

RERR: ERGAARL
FIsMER

WBRERHEE & RE

EPANRE(ERAHRE

IFRS 15F (fE31%) RBIE1H B )

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after T OR2016FMAIBRZ BRAB L FE
1 January 2016 B AR

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 2 M20M7FTAVBE SR ERRZFE
1 January 2017 HAR AR

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 3 R2018F1AIESK Z BRI FE
1 January 2018 HAR AR

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after ¢ 20191 ANRS 2 AR FE
1 January 2019 B AR

5 The amendments were originally intended to be ° REFEEFRENR2016F1ARH 2

&FE 2 FERAMAER - £HBH
REME/BUY - BIEATET
RMZFERTA o

effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016. The effective date has now been deferred/
removed. Early application of the amendments
continues to be permitted.
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2. ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL 2.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRS") (Continued)

(b) New/revised IFRSs that have been issued but are

PR 4 BB R Bt 75 3R 45 2E Al ([ B BR B
BHREZER ) z)

(b) BERTEMRERZHTRETEH

96

not yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to IAS 1 - Disclosure Imitative

The amendments are designed to encourage entities to use
judgement in the application of IAS 1 when considering the
layout and content of their financial statements.

An entity’s share of other comprehensive income from
equity accounted interests in associates and joint ventures
will be split between those items that will and will not be
reclassified to profit or loss, and presented in aggregate as
a single line item within those two groups.

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 — Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to IAS 16 prohibit the use of a revenue-
based depreciation method for items of property, plant
and equipment. The amendments to IAS 38 introduce a
rebuttable presumption that amortisation based on revenue
is not appropriate for intangible assets. This presumption
can be rebutted if either the intangible asset is expressed
as a measure of revenue or revenue and the consumption
of the economic benefits of the intangible asset are highly
correlated.

IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Debt instruments
that are held within a business model whose objective is
to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
(the business model test) and that have contractual terms
that give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
(the contractual cash flow characteristics test) are generally
measured at amortised cost. Debt instruments that meet
the contractual cash flow characteristics test are measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI")
if the objective of the entity’s business model is both to
hold and collect the contractual cash flows and to sell the
financial assets. Entities may make an irrevocable election
at initial recognition to measure equity instruments that are
not held for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity
instruments are measured at fair value through profit or
loss ("FVTPL").
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 £ Z2015% 1231 H 1 F/Z

2. ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL 2. PR4WE B3R <E % 8| ([ BB Bt
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRS") (Continued) FEWERER |) ()

(b) New/revised IFRSs that have been issued but are (b) BRITEMEMKRERZHT, RIETH

not yet effective (Continued)
IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

IFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model
for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL replacing
the incurred loss model in IAS 39 and new general hedge
accounting requirements to allow entities to better reflect
their risk management activities in financial statements.

IFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification and
measurement requirements for financial liabilities from
IAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated at FVTPL,
where the amount of change in fair value attributable to
change in credit risk of the liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch. In addition, IFRS 9 retains the
requirements in IAS 39 for derecognition of financial assets
and financial liabilities.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 December 2015, directors of
the Company anticipate that the application of the expected
credit loss model of IFRS 9 may result in earlier recognition
of credit losses on the Group’s financial assets measured
at amortised cost taking into account the estimated credit
risk of customers and other debtors the Group has business
with and the actual impairment of receivables experienced.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect of IFRS 9 until the Group performs
a detailed review. On the other hand, the management
will assess the business model in relation to the Group’s
investment portfolio at initial application of IFRS 9.

e B T 4R 4 B (40)

I T 3 s R E 9% — M T A (48)
B 1 75 3 4 R 2503 SR AT A SE IR AN
T EERIEREFEOM S EERE N
RS R E R B E R g 282
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AFHEEEHEENE M2 E R EER
BOFEEMERRE2ZBENERR
REPHTESEYRBARR EOFFTHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EZ2015%12/31H 1F F/Z

2. ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL

98

REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRS") (continued)

(b) New/revised IFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and |IAS 28 - Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to be
recognised when an entity sells or contributes assets to its
associate or joint venture. When the transaction involves
a business the gain or loss is recognised in full, conversely
when the transaction involves assets that do not constitute
a business the gain or loss is recognised only to the extent
of the unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or
associate.

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 -
Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception

The amendments clarify that the exemption from preparing
consolidated financial statements for an intermediate
parent entity is available to a subsidiary of an investment
entity (including investment entities that account for their
subsidiaries at fair value rather than consolidating them).
An investment entity parent will consolidate a subsidiary
only when the subsidiary is not itself an investment entity
and the subsidiary’s main purpose is to provide services that
relate to the investment entity’s investment activities. A non—
investment entity applying the equity method to an associate
or joint venture that is an investment entity may retain the fair
value measurements that associate or joint venture used for
its subsidiaries. An investment entity that prepares financial
statements in which all its subsidiaries are measured at fair
value through profit or loss should provide the disclosures
related to investment entities as required by IFRS 12.

IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition
framework. The core principle of the framework is that an
entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services. IFRS 15
supersedes existing revenue recognition guidance including
IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and related
interpretations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 £ Z2015% 1231 H 1 F/Z

2. ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL 2. PR4WE B3R <E % 8| ([ BB Bt
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRS") (Continued) FEWERER |) ()

(b) New/revised IFRSs that have been issued but are (b) BRITEMEMKRERZHT, RIETH

not yet effective (Continued)

IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

IFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

e  Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance
obligation is satisfied

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when control of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures
are required by IFRS 15.

The Group does not expect that the adoption of IFRS
15 will have an impact on the pattern of revenue and
profit recognition as there is only one performance
obligation identified in the contracts with customers and
the performance obligation is satisfied at point of time.
The impact to the Group is expected to include more
comprehensive disclosure as required by the new standard.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect of IFRS 15 until the Group has
performed a detailed review.
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2. ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL 2.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRS") (Continued)

(b) New/revised IFRSs that have been issued but are
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not yet effective (Continued)
IFRS 16 — Leases

IFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. It distinguishes
leases and service contracts on the basis of whether an
identified asset is controlled by a customer. Subject to
limited exceptions for short-term leases and low value
assets, distinctions of operating and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
have to be recognised for all leases by lessees. However,
the standard does not significantly change the accounting
of lessors.

Application of IFRS 16 will result in the Group’s recognition
of right-of-use assets and corresponding liabilities in respect
of many of the Group’s lease arrangements. These assets
and liabilities are currently not required to be recognised
but certain relevant information is disclosed as commitments
in Note 40. The directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of IFRS 16 in the future will have an impact
on the Group's consolidated financial statements; however,
it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
effect until the Group performs a detailed review.

Amendments to IAS 7 — Disclosure Initiative

The amendments introduce an additional disclosure that will
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities.
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2. ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL 2. PR4WE B3R <E % 8| ([ BB Bt
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRS") (Continued) FEWERER |) ()

(b) New/revised IFRSs that have been issued but are (b) BRITEMEMKRERZHT, RIETH

not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 12 — Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments relate to the recognition of deferred tax
assets and clarify some of the necessary considerations,
including how to account for deferred tax assets related to
debt instruments measured at fair value.

Amendments to IFRS 2 - Classification and
Measurement of Share-Based Payment Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on the accounting
for the effects of vesting and non-vesting conditions on
the measurement of cash-settled share-based payments;
share-based payment transactions with a net settlement
feature for withholding tax obligations; and a modification
to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment that
changes the classification of the transaction from cash—
settled to equity—settled.

Amendments IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications to IFRS 15)

The amendments to IFRS 15 included clarifications on
identification of performance obligations; application of
principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual property; and
transition requirements.
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2. ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL 2.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRS") (Continued)

(b) New/revised IFRSs that have been issued but are
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not yet effective (Continued)
IFRS 16 — Leases

IFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
IAS 17 “Leases” and related interpretations, introduces a
single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of
more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low
value. Specifically, under IFRS 16, a lessee is required to
recognise a right—of-use asset representing its right to use
the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing
its obligation to make lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee
should recognise depreciation of the right-of-use asset
and interest on the lease liability, and also classifies cash
repayments of the lease liability into a principal portion
and an interest portion and presents them in the statement
of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease
liability are initially measured on a present value basis. The
measurement includes non—cancellable lease payments and
also includes payments to be made in optional periods if
the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to
extend the lease, or to exercise an option to terminate the
lease. This accounting treatment is significantly different
from the lessee accounting for leases that are classified as
operating leases under the predecessor standard, IAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, IFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently.

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the
impact of adopting the above Standards and amendments
to existing Standards to the Group. The Group is not yet
in a position to state whether these new pronouncements
will result in substantial changes to the Group’s accounting
policies and financial statements.
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2. ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRS") (Continued)

(c)

New Companies Ordinance provisions relating to
the preparation of financial statements

The provisions of the new Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622,
in relation to the preparation of financial statements apply
to the Company in this financial year.

The directors consider that there is no impact on the
Group's financial position or performance, however the
new Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622, impacts on the
presentation and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. For example, the statement of financial position
of the Company is now presented in the notes to the
financial statements rather than as a primary statement and
related notes to the statement of financial position of the
Company are generally no longer presented.

3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable IFRSs, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standard Board (“IASB”) and Interpretations issued by the
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
of the IASB (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“IFRS"”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. In addition, the financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis except for financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss as explained in the accounting
policies set out in Note 4.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Chinese Renminbi
(“RMB™), which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

104

Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”). Inter—-company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or up
to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition—-date
fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition—date fair value. The
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re—
measured at acquisition—date fair value and the resulting
gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group
may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to
measure the non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or
at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other non—controlling interests are measured at
fair value unless another measurement basis is required by
IFRSs. Acquisition—related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case
the costs are deducted from equity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EAREHHE 2
(Continued)

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation (a) XBEHRGEEEEE)

(Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition—date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about
the fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an
asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Contingent consideration balances arising from business
combinations whose acquisition dates preceded 1 January
2010 (i.e. the date the Group first applied IFRS 3 (2008))
have been accounted for in accordance with the transition
requirements in the standard. Such balances are not
adjusted upon first application of the standard. Subsequent
revisions to estimates of such consideration are treated as
adjustments to the cost of these business combinations and
are recognised as part of goodwill.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interest
and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are
accounted for in the same manner as would be required if
the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

106

(a)

(b)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests
at initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s
share of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to such non-controlling interests even
if this results in those non—controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any
of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment
loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but not control or joint control over those
policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amount are adjusted for the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group’s interest in the
associate are not recognised unless there is an obligation to
make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group
and its associates are recognised only to the extent of
unrelated investors’ interests in the associate. The investor’s
share in the associate’s profits and losses resulting from
these transactions is eliminated against the carrying value
of the associate. Where unrealised losses provide evidence
of impairment of the asset transferred they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost. Any premium
paid for an associate above the fair value of the Group’s
share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in the carrying
amount of the associate. Where there is objective evidence
that the investment in an associate has been impaired, the
carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment
in the same way as other non-financial assets.

In the Company’'s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are carried at cost less impairment
losses, if any. The results of associates are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable during the year.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

108

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess of
the aggregate of consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for non—controlling interests over the fair value
of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of consideration
paid, the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the
acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash—
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition. A cash—generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the cash—generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
financial year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the
unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then
to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the
carrying amount to each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not
reversed in subsequent periods.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EAREHHE 2
(Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (e) M¥E  BMEKRZE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost or valuation net of expected residual
value over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The useful lives, residual value and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period. The useful lives are as
follows:

Leasehold land and buildings held for own Over the lease

use under finance leases term
Plant and machinery 10%
Motor vehicles 20%
Electronic equipment, furniture and fixtures 20%
Moulds 20%-33.33%
Leasehold improvements 10%
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(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(f)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Cost comprises direct costs of construction as
well as borrowing costs capitalised during the periods of
construction and installation. Capitalisation of these costs
ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to the
appropriate class of property, plant and equipment when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the assets
for their intended use are completed. No depreciation is
provided for in respect of construction in progress until it is
completed and ready for its intended use.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised
as assets at their fair value or, if lower, the present value
of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding lease
commitment is shown as a liability. Lease payments are
analysed between capital and interest. The interest element
is charged to profit or loss over the period of the lease and
is calculated so that it represents a constant proportion of
the lease liability. The capital element reduces the balance
owed to the lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised as an
integrated part of the total rental expense, over the term of
the lease.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Intangible assets

(i)

(i)

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at
the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over
their useful lives as follows. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. The amortisation
expense is recognised in profit or loss and included in
administrative expenses.

Distribution network 10 years
Domain names 3 years
Employee contracts 2.57 years
Non-compete agreements 2 years
Software 3-5 years

Internally generated intangible assets (research
and development costs)

Expenditure on internally developed products is
capitalised if it can be demonstrated that:

— it is technically feasible to develop the product
for it to be sold;

—  adequate resources are available to complete the
development;

- there is an intention to complete and sell the
product;

—  the Group is able to sell the product;
—  sale of the product will generate future economic

benefits; and expenditure on the project can be
measured reliably.
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(g) Intangible assets (Continued)

(i)

(iif)

Internally generated intangible assets (research
and development costs) (Continued)

Capitalised development costs are amortised over the
periods the Group expects to benefit from selling the
products developed.

Development expenditure not satisfying the above
criteria and expenditure on the research phase of
internal projects are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

Impairment

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment annually by comparing their carrying
amounts with their recoverable amounts, irrespective
of whether there is any indication that they may
be impaired. If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount.

(h) Financial Instruments

(i)

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which
the asset was acquired. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at
fair value and all other financial assets are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets. Regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. A regular way purchase or sale is a
purchase or sale of a financial asset under a contract
whose terms require delivery of the asset within the
time frame established generally by regulation or
convention in the marketplace concerned.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Financial Instruments (Continued)

()

Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They arise principally through
the provision of goods and services to customers
(trade debtors), and also incorporate other types of
contractual monetary asset. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

These assets include financial assets held for trading.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non—derivative financial assets that are
designated as available—for—sale or are not included
in other categories of financial assets. Subsequent
to initial recognition, these assets are carried at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for impairment losses
and foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary
instruments, which are recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for—sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses.
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(h) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence that
financial asset is impaired. Financial asset is impaired if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset and that event has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include:

e significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

e a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

e granting concession to a debtor because of
debtor’s financial difficulty; and

o it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

For Loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss and
directly reduces the carrying amount of financial asset
when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of financial asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When any part of financial asset
is determined as uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for the relevant financial asset.

For Available-for-sale financial assets

Where a decline in the fair value constitutes objective
evidence of impairment, the amount of the loss is
removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
For Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Any impairment losses on available-for-sale debt
investments are subsequently reversed in profit or loss
if an increase in the fair value of the investment can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

For available-for-sale equity investment, any increase
in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income.

For available—for—sale equity investment that is carried
at cost, the amount of impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying amount of the
asset and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss is
not reversed.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are initially measured at fair value and financial
liabilities at amortised costs are initially measured at
fair value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and
other payables, borrowings, certain preference shares
and the debt element of convertible loan note issued
by the Group are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method. The related
interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income
or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.
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(h) Financial Instruments (Continued)

()

@

(v) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets the
criteria for derecognition in accordance with IAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole
or in part as a result of renegotiating the terms of
that liability, the equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised initially and
measured at their fair value on the date the financial
liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair value
of the equity instruments issued cannot be reliably
measured, the equity instruments are measured
to reflect the fair value of the financial liability
extinguished. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability or part thereof
extinguished and the consideration paid is recognised
in profit or loss for the year.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents represent short-term,
highly liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which were within three
months of maturity when acquired.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable, and is reduced for estimated

customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances, as

follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when
goods are delivered and title has passed, which means
that all the following conditions are satisfied:

e The Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

e The Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods
sold;

. The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e It is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group; and

e The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Processing income

Processing income is recognised when processing
services are provided.
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(Continued)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprise current tax and deferred
tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred
tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to the expected
manner in which the carrying amount of the asset or
liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are
also recognised directly in equity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EAREHHE 2
(Continued)

(m) Foreign currency (m) Fhig

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which they operate(s) (the “functional
currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non—-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non—-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income, in which case, the exchange differences are also
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Renminbi) at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the rates approximating
to those ruling when the transactions took place are
used. All assets and liabilities of foreign operations are
translated at the rate ruling at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as
foreign exchange reserve (attributed to minority interests
as appropriate). Exchange differences recognised in profit
or loss of group entities’ separate financial statements on
the translation of long—term monetary items forming part
of the Group’s net investment in the foreign operation
concerned are reclassified to other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.
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(m) Foreign currency (Continued)

(n)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets

acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation

on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and

liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the

rate of exchange prevailing at the end of reporting period.

Exchange differences arising are recognised in the foreign

exchange reserve.

Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be settled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short term
employee benefits are recognised in the year when the
employees render the related service.

Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when
the services are rendered by the employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of the following assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

e  property, plant and equipment;

° interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases; and

. investments in subsidiaries and an associate

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value
less costs to sell and value in use) of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount
under another IFRS, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease under that IFRS.

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and others
providing similar services, the fair value of the services
received is measured by reference to the fair value of the
options at the date of grant. Such fair value is recognised in
profit or loss over the vesting period with a corresponding
increase in the share option reserve within equity. Non-
market vesting conditions are taken into account by
adjusting the number of equity instruments expected to
vest at the end of each reporting period so that, ultimately,
the cumulative amount recognised over the vesting period
is based on the number of options that eventually vest.
Market vesting conditions are factored into the fair value
of the options granted. As long as all non-market vesting
conditions are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective of
whether the market vesting conditions are satisfied. The
cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a
market vesting condition.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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(p)

(a)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the
options, measured immediately before and after the
modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over the
remaining vesting period.

The Group also operates a phantom share option scheme
which is determined to be a cash-settled share-based
payment transaction with employees. An option pricing
model is used to measure the Group's liability at grant
date and subsequently at the end of each reporting period,
taking into account the terms and conditions on which the
bonus is awarded and the extent to which employees have
rendered service. Movements in the liability (other than cash
payments) are recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on those
assets is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis
in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit or loss over
the useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is
probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits that
can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(t) Related parties

(a)

(b)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

()

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the group or to the group’s parent.
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(Continued)

(t) Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with IFRS requires the directors to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The directors have considered the development, selection
and disclosure of the Group’s critical accounting policies and
estimated. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets or liabilities are as follows:
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)
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0]

(ii)

(iii)

Useful lives and depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges of its property, plant and
equipment. These estimates are based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. The Group will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives, and will write off or write
down technically obsolete or non—strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in
a change in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation
charges in future periods.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and variable selling expenses. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes
in customer taste and competitor actions in response to any
industry downturn. The directors reassess the estimations at
the end of each reporting period.

Allowances for bad and doubtful receivables

The Group makes allowances for bad and doubtful
receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability
of the receivables. This assessment is based on the credit
history of the customers and other debtors and the current
market condition. The directors reassess the allowance at
the end of the reporting period.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Warranty claims

The Group generally offers half-year warranties for its
own-brand name products sold. The directors estimate
the related provision for future warranty claims based on
historical warranty claim information, as well as recent
trends that might suggest that past cost information may
differ from future claims. Factors that could impact the
estimated claim information include the success of the
Group’s productivity and quality initiatives, as well as parts
and labour costs.

Impairment of intangible assets

Determining whether an intangible asset is impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, an impairment loss may arise.
Details of the impairment testing are provided in Note 16.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for property, plant and equipment at the end
of each reporting period. Property, plant and equipment are
tested for impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value
in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs to sell is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in
an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken, the
directors estimate the expected future cash flows from
the asset or cash—generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AN

D KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(vii)

128

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.

The Group has tax loss carry forwards amounting to
approximately RMB74,134,000 (2014: RMB28,955,000)
which relate to subsidiaries that have a history of losses
and may not be used to offset taxable income elsewhere
in the Group. These subsidiaries have no temporary taxable
differences which could partly support the recognition
of deferred tax assets. Also, there are no tax planning
opportunities available that would further provide a basis
for recognition.

If the Group was able to recognise all unrecognised
deferred tax assets, profits would increase by approximately
RMB12,986,000 (2014: profits would increase by
approximately RMB5,760,000).

Further details on deferred taxes are disclosed in Note 31.

5. EEESTHERMATTTREERE
ZEERR®)

(vii) BEERIREE

B R B IR B 1B T R R IR Y
HEE - HEARRKRV BN A AIEEMA S
RzEBERAR - EFBRBEARRERKRR
M) 2 7T RE Ry ] N B A B) B AR Bt 5 B R g
TEHERHET - AEE A THERZELER
HEESH -

AEBEHERNEBBEAOARE
74,134,0007C(20144F : AK#28,955,000
7o) o WEEBEBRSRERHBEROMER
B B R AT PR DK S AR SR B LA 3t 75 B B
ARBUA o UL B A B B A] 30 S
ERECHREENERERHTERE - 1t
S WA B & DA — T RHER

WAL B IEFT A RERAELEH B ERE
R BF L A R %12,986,0007T
(20144 + BFIHIE N AR ES,760,000
JL) e

BRERBRIANE — T BRI E3H

7o



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREBBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2015

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 £ Z2015% 1231 H 1 F/Z

6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a)

(b)

Turnover

Turnover represents gross invoiced sales, less returns and
trade discounts.

Reportable segments

The Group has adopted IFRS 8 “Operating Segments”
with effect from 1 January 2009. IFRS 8 requires operating
segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed
by the chief operating decision makers in order to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performance.

The Group is engaged in the business of the Group’s
own brand “SCUDRFERR” brand (“Own-brand business”),
original design manufacturing (“ODM business”) as well as
bare battery cells (“Bare battery cells business”). The chief
operating decision makers (i.e. the Company’s directors)
review the segment information of these businesses and
based on it to allocate resources to segments and to assess
their performance. The Group’s reportable segments are
set out below:

ODM business — Manufacture and supply of lithium—ion
battery modules, power banks, motive battery and related
accessories for branded mobile phone, tablets and EV
manufacturers within and outside China.

Own-brand business — Manufacture and sale of “SCUDRE
fi&" brand lithium—ion battery modules, power banks, power
management module, motive battery, smart wearable devices
battery and related accessories for mobile phones and digital
electronic appliances.

Bare battery cell business — Manufacture and sale of
lithium—ion bare battery cells for mobile phones, tablets and
power banks.

Others — Sales of raw materials and work-in-progress and
processing income.
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXHERoHER #)

(Continued)
(b) Reportable segments (Continued) (b) H¥ERDEB(4E)
Segment information about these businesses is presented as ERZEEENDIBERZYNT ¢
follows:
Segment revenue and results D Eb R FEE
2015
ODM Own-brand Bare battery
business business cell business Others Total
ODMEH BEREEK EREL Hit Fob
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARETRE AR®BTR AR%Trn AR®TR AR%Txn
Total Turnover MR 3,533,568 620,068 234,274 341,855 4,729,765
Less: Intersegment sales o RESHE (15,205) (29) (39,426)  (165,664)  (220,324)
Turnover EEEE 3,518,363 620,039 194,848 176,191 4,509,441
Segment profit/(loss) D ELEF
(E18) 121,508 (39,450) (23,385) 658 59,331
Unallocated income HBLUEA
- Bank interest income —RITFBUA 13,920
— Rental income —MHEBA 2,193
— Others —Hfh 5,028
Unallocated expenses ROBERAXZ
— Auditor’s remuneration — BB & (1,650)
— Legal and professional fees —ZfE N HE
& (3,894)
— Staff costs —BIkA (4,049)
- Others —Hfb (2,026)
— Finance costs — BB AN (27,317)
Profit before income tax BR FT1S 4 Ala ) 41,536
Income tax FTigHt (18,000)
Profit for the year REE G 23,536
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXHERoHER #)

(Continued)
(b) Reportable segments (Continued) (b) H¥RDER(E)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) T ERM R EAE ()
2014
ODM Own-brand  Bare battery
business business  cell business Others Total
ODMEH BAmMEER BELES Hith st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARBTT ARRTR ARETT ARETR

Total Turnover mEEE 2,695,193 749,864 326,775 80,291 3,852,123
Less: Intersegment sales o REHE - (195) (83,053) (40,061) (123,309)
Turnover gEs 2,695,193 749,669 243,722 40,230 3,728,814
Segment profit/(loss) DEBEF/(BE) 73,541 (4,702) (16,796) 1,832 53,875
Unallocated income RABEWA

- Bank interest income —RITHBHA 8,352

— Gain on disposal of a —HEMBRF

subsidiary EEHRE 1,868

- Rental income —feMA 1,969

- Others —Hih 5,707
Unallocated expenses AOBAZ

- Auditor’s remuneration — B (4,478)

— Staff costs —-EBTIKA (4,237)

- Share-based — PR BER

payment expenses BG5S (14,811)

- Others -t (2,179)

- Finance costs —BERAK (30,195)
Profit before income tax B EHRAE 15,871
Income tax PR (22,733)
Loss for the year AEEEE (6,862)
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

(Continued)

(b) Reportable segments (Continued)

EEERIHER )

(b) FEDER(E)

Assets and liabilities BEREE
2015
ODM Own-brand Bare battery
business business cell business Total
ODM¥# BAEMBEER BEINER Hit
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRT AREBTR AR¥BTR AR%Txn
Segment assets DEEE 2,345,643 1,132,062 242,234 3,719,939
Unallocated corporate assets RO ARIEE
- Bank balances and cash —RITHERLES 236
— Prepayments, deposits and —FBEFE BZe Rk
other receivables H e RE 3,140
Consolidated total assets RABERE 3,723,315
Segment liabilities DEEE 1,853,586 519,007 176,614 2,549,207
Unallocated corporate liabilities AR AEBE
— Other payables, receipts in —HM R FIE - FE
advance and accrued charges FIEREER 13,825
- Amount due to a director —ENEERE 100,310
— Deferred tax liabilities —ELERIEAE 5,360
Consolidated total liabilities RAEBRESE 2,668,702
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6.

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. B K oHPER @)

(Continued)

(b) Reportable segments (Continued)

(b) FR¥ERZER(4E)

Assets and liabilities (Continued) BERERE(E)
2014
ODM Own-brand Bare battery
business business cell business Total
ODM %7 BAMEEH BREHK a5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETF T ARETF T ARET T
Segment assets DEEE 1,940,597 771,375 259,956 2,971,928
Unallocated corporate assets ROBAREE
- Bank balances and cash —-RITERRASE 1,302
— Prepayments, deposits and —BRRIE - ZeREM
other receivables FEU A 699
Consolidated total assets IREEERT 2,973,929
Segment liabilities HHEE 1,351,982 379,198 181,683 1,912,863
Unallocated corporate liabilities AAEABIEE
- Other payables, receipts in —HMENTIE - FElE
advance and accrued charges B e EH 14,177
- Amount due to a director —-ENES=FIE 5,522
— Deferred tax liabilities —REFHIEEE 5,361
Consolidated total liabilities REBERE 1,937,923
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXHERoHER #)

(Continued)
(c) Other information () HEiER
2015
ODM  Own-brand Bare battery
business business cell business Others Total
ODMEX BERMEHR ELER Hity st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AR®TR AR®TT ARETR AR%T:n
Depreciation of property, plant and nE - BELRENE
equipment 29,329 18,380 9,448 2,858 60,015
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESH - - 22 1,514 1,536

Impairment loss recognised on trade and ~ FEWE FHE R ERZ
notes receivables RBEEE 354 23,518 379 811 25,062

Impairment loss recognised on prepayments, FLIE(TFUE - &4 R EMEK

deposits and other receivables HEEAREER 27,912 22,763 5,200 3,327 59,202
Write down/(reversal of write down) BEMR,/ HREmE)
of inventories - (59,905) 7,049 - (52,856)

Loss on disposals of property, plant and HENE  BERRBEZEER
equipment 419 10,134 12 - 10,565

Write off/(reversal of write off) of property,  #1% - HiF RaREM s,/ (M

plant and equipment ) 20,976 5,264 (19) - 26,221
Research and development costs HEER 137,239 25,785 7,868 4,463 175,355
Income tax st 8,128 6,79 3,078 = 18,000
Additions to property, plant and equipment %1%  BELRERE 56,539 14,453 3,169 2,440 76,601
Additions to intangible assets EVEENE - - - 2,497 2,497
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

(Continued)

EEENRTHER @)

(c) Other information (Continued) (c) HERE)
2014
Bare
ODM  Own-brand  battery cell
business business business Others Total
ODME® BEmEER BUER Hith ok
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  AR®TR ARBTT ARETRT ARETR
Depreciation of property, plant 0¥ BELEENE
and equipment 23,304 20,072 9,744 2,617 55,737
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESE - - 40 1,398 1,438
Impairment loss recognised on trade and ~ FLEWE 5308 RENZEHER
notes receivables ZREBR 5,122 53,777 2,892 - 61,791
Impairment loss recognised on FRENFE - e REMEKR
prepayment, deposits and other ERRRERS
receivables 30,907 9,859 2,463 50 43,279
Reversal of impairment loss recognised on  5tfEWE 5 708 [ fE N E 15 HE2
trade and notes receivables ZRBERERE - - (606) - (606)
Reversal of write down of inventories  #Fi/Z & &M - - 1,459 - 1,459
Research and development costs HeER 78,492 12,813 10,754 5,337 107,396
Loss on disposals of property, plant and (HEWE « FiE L&E 2 EE
equipments 3,873 2,838 1,034 - 7,745
Write off of property, plant and 0¥ BE RREHH
equipment 50,245 395 89 - 50,729
Write off of intangible assets B EEME - 837 - - 837
Income tax FrigH 11,289 8,556 (3,362) 6,250 22,733
Additions to property, plant nE  BEREERE
and equipment 64,949 10,922 26,501 1,732 104,104
Additions to intangible assets BVEERE - - - 468 468

135



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REMREBBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2015

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fra MR R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EZ2015%12/31H 1F F/Z

6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXZERoFER &)
(Continued)

(d) Turnover from major products d) FEERZEXS

The Group's turnover from its major products were as

follows:

KEREETRERZEERNT

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T R AREEF T
ODM business: ODMEF :

Mobile phone battery FHEBA 3,344,891 2,532,312
Power bank BEHEIR 91,712 32,623
Tablets and notebook computer battery TR R ELRABIE M 24,332 105,794
Motive battery BN EM 34,128 -
Others Hih 23,300 24,464
ODM business ODMET 3,518,363 2,695,193

Own-brand business - SCUD brand: BEEmEEE - RERRE
Power bank BEHEIR 324,320 338,074
Power management module EREEEA 164,802 173,066
Mobile phone battery FHEBA 80,803 162,448
Motive battery BHEM 15,542 -
Smart wearable devices battery B FRRMEEM 10,647 -
Others Hih 23,925 7,821
620,039 681,409

Own-brand business - Chaolitong brand: BAERBEK-BHERRE
Mobile phone battery FHEM - 13,797
Power bank BEER = 54,463
- 68,260
Own-brand business BB mBES 620,039 749,669

Bare battery cell business: BREK :

Lithium—ion bare battery cells R FE 194,848 243,722
Others EAh 176,191 40,230
Total turnover PR E 4,509,441 3,728,814
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. &XZEKkoIBER @)

(Continued)

(e) Geographical information (e)

Analysis of the Group’s turnover and results as well as
analysis of the Group’s carrying amount of each relevant
segment’s assets and additions to property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets by geographical market
have not been presented as they are substantially generated
from or situated in the PRC.

(f) Information about major customers (f)

Revenue from major customers, each of them accounted for
10% or more of the Group's revenue, are set out below:

& & R

REEY FELT|IZETIHE DN AEE
EEBREESTARANEEGSES A
HEEERAEYE - BE MEEKER
BEMNEREDEI N RRAEKRKIBHKF
BEESMARPE -

FERFEH
REFEREP W &E(EESHAEER
#10% s A L) #EFI AT -

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T

Customer A ZEA
Customer B ZFB

1,436,590 1,041,336
N/A' & A 670,477

! The corresponding revenue did not contribute over
10% of the total revenue of the Group.

TOHERBEIYRERNEE R EER
10% A F o

7. OTHER REVENUE 7. Hibzs
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Government grants BT 14,191 6,048
Interest income B U A 13,920 8,352
Net foreign exchange gain T H e 558 3,231 -
Sale of scrap materials HE R 885 -
Compensation from suppliers HrERmE 5,404 -
Sundry income I A 4,381 8,282
42,012 22,682
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8. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 8. BRETEBHANER
This is arrived at after charging/(crediting): 2%, (5t A)TFER :
2015 2014
RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTT

Auditor's remuneration 1% AN B & 2,035 4,478
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #9% - HE MR EITE (21
(including depreciation recorded in research HEERPNITEAREK

and development costs of RMB10,314,000 10,314,0007C(201445F : AR

(2014: RMB11,769,000)) 11,769,0007T)) 60,015 55,737
Amortisation of intangible assets B A EE 1,536 1,438
Impairment loss recognised on trade and notes  FLIEURE 5 I8 N EWZEFER 2

receivables BB 18 25,062 61,791
Impairment loss recognised on prepayment, FIEFIE - 2e RHAEW A

deposits and other receivables R MEEE 59,202 43,279
Reversal of impairment loss recognised on trade FLIEUWE 5518 L EWZIEER

and notes receivables T EE R D = (606)
Reversal of write down of inventories HORAF E#E Bl (52,856) 1,459
Loss on disposals of property, plant and HEWE  BER&E BB

equipment 10,565 7,745
Loss on disposals of intangible assets HeEEREERER 18 3,686
Write off of property, plant and equipment VI - RS MR E S 26,221 50,729
Write off of intangible assets BT A = = 837
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses R ARSI 2 FEKA 3,948,299 3,193,157
Cost of processing income NI A Z B A 38,518 27,436
Operating lease rentals for office premises MAEKEHEEES 27,397 26,200
Research and development costs HEEA 175,355 107,396
Staff costs (Note 9) 8 TR (FIEE9) 341,118 317,067
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10.

STAFF COSTS 9. BT
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T R AREEF T
Directors’ remuneration (Note 10) EEMe(MFE10) 2,228 6,269
Other staff costs Hib 8 TRA 355,930 328,216
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RORIEFIFT B R 18,648 19,089

Less: Staff costs included in research and S FF AR ERE TR

development costs (35,688) (36,507)

341,118 317,067

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' 10.EESRESHH
REMUNERATION

(a) Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 383 (a) MWRIBEEBQNRENIE(622F) (1&H)E
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) (the 3EA AR (HEEENEER) ROIE
Ordinance) and the Companies (Disclosure of Information (622GE)(EHNEEMEZESMHE T -

about Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) (the
Regulation) is as follows:

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTT

Salaries, housing allowances, other allowances Bl - BE#8L « 28k

and benefits in kind KNEWER 960 887
Fees e 1,227 1,414
Other emoluments: Heis :

Share-based payments expenses LARR 5 A B 2 R - 3,928

Retirement benefits scheme contributions RONEFIET B 41 40

2,228 6,269
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10.DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' 10.BEREEHFMN o
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors (b) AEBRESIZNMBMESFBERT -
are as follows:

2015
Salaries,
housing
allowances,
other Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme Total
in kind Fees contributions emoluments
e
EEEE
HtR R BINER e
RENEF wne sHEIfR b
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETR ARWTRT AR¥ETZR

Fang Jin ik - 302 9 311
Guo Quan Zeng SfR 600 48 14 662
Huang Yan = 100 193 9 302
Zhang Li RHR 260 193 9 462
Loke Yu liisyy - 351 - 351
Wang Jing Zhong T - 70 - 70
Wang Jian Zhang TEE - 70 - 70

960 1,227 41 2,228
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10.DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' 10.EE=REEHFMe
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors (b) AEBRESIZNMBMESFBEOT ((#)
are as follows: (Continued)

2014
Salaries, housing
allowances,
other Share-based Retirement

allowances and payments benefits scheme Total
benefits in kind Fees expenses contributions emoluments

-

FEZE -
Hit 28k DARR (D AE T ERARR B&
REMER ik PANE 53 SRR e
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Fang Jin ik - 752 982 9 1,743
Guo Quan Zeng LR 567 120 982 13 1,682
Huang Yan HHE 107 120 982 9 1,218
Zhang Li KR 213 120 982 9 1,324
Loke Yu BB - 170 - - 170
Wang Jing Zhong TR - 66 - - 66
Wang Jian Zhang s - 66 - - 66

887 1,414 3,928 40 6,269
During both years, none of the director has received any RREFER - MESEFWEIAREEZ N
bonus payments paid by the Group. BIE( S o

141



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REMREBBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2015

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fra MR R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2015%F 12531 H 1F F/Z

10.DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' 10.BEREEHFMN o
REMUNERATION (Continued)

() The five highest paid individuals include three directors for (0 HZE2015F12A3IBLEFE Ad&®
the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: four), details of FMALTBIE=2(2014F : WL)EE -
whose emoluments are set out above. BB FIERN 3 -

The emoluments of the remaining two (2014: one) non— EHRME(20145F « —R)IFEEEHRS H
director highest paid individuals are as follows: ATBEmT -
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBTFT
Salaries, bonus, allowance and other benefits B4 - #8& - 2B R HEMET 2,199 1,535
Retirement benefits scheme contributions R FIFT B 28 13
2,227 1,548
The emoluments of the remaining non—director, highest HBRFEERRTMATHOMESNTUAT
paid individuals are within the following brands: gE
2015 2014
Nil to RMB805,000 T & AR#805,0007 T (HHERE
(equivalent to Nil to HK$1,000,000) 2%1,000,0007 7T ) 1 -
RMB805,001 to RMB1,610,000 (equivalent to AR#805,001TE AR
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000) 1,610,0007T (#HE 11,000,001
7 7122,000,00077T) 1 1

(d) During both years, no emoluments were paid by the (d) RMEFERN AEEHBERARAT RS
Group to the five highest paid individuals (including both BEETFAT(BREZEREES)NAMES
directors and employees) or any directors of the Company SAMEMIBE - (ERWRSIINAZE BN
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as AR E R HRE) - SERBERFE -
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors has RWEFERN  BRASTEBBERERNS
waived any emoluments during both years except that Mr. SN WREBEREAMME -

Fang Jin has voluntarily waived his salaries for both years.
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11. FINANCE COSTS 1. &R
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARBFIT
Interest on bank borrowings RITIEFAILE 17,823 17,069
Interest on discounted notes receivable BLIR R IR =BT S 8,298 10,682
Other finance costs E B &R A 1,196 2,444
27,317 30,195

12. INCOME TAX 12. FREHE

No provision for income tax has been made by the Company
as it is not subject to tax in the Cayman Islands or other
jurisdictions save for the PRC where it conducts its principal
business operations.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group's profits were neither arising in nor derived from Hong
Kong during both years, and all subsidiaries incorporated in Hong
Kong incurred tax losses during the current and prior years.

Provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated based on
the estimated taxable income for PRC taxation purposes at the
rate of taxation applicable for the year.

On 10 September 2012, Shenzhen Nalon was recognised as
ANTE for a period of 3-year and the certificate number is
GR201244200041. Under the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law
Article 28, Shenzhen Nalon is subject to income tax at 15%
accordingly.

On 2 July 2013, Dongguan Hongde was approved to continue
as an ANTE for a period of 3-year and the certificate number is
GR20134400058. It is subject to income tax at 15% accordingly.

On 14 August 2014, Scud Electronics was approved to continue
as an ANTE for a period of 3-year and the certificate number
is GR201435000040. It is subject to income tax at 15%
accordingly.

HRBRRPEBETERERBTELSI  ARRE
FTHMAERSAEMADEEENTIE - B
RANEAE LS HEE o

HREMFAREENEMRIFERBAESL -
TRIERBEE - MAAREEEM LA E
REAERAFERBEFEHSHEARE &K
S BB E RSB L EE -

hEIGRMASHRBETIRER A BFEEERN
b BB IRAEA fhA EERTRA A E -

72012998108 R IJI A a8 B R A
BEEMECE REB=F BEFRA
GR201244200041 ° RiBFFH BE B ETISEHIESE
2816  RIYIBAREIR15% M T K BN ABFEFT 1S
i o

M2013F7A2R R R 2R AKBE B
BEHEMCE AH=ZF BERRA
GR20134400058 ° E#715% HyF R £ B FEFT
BE -

MR2014F8R148 » MEME TR ENR=F
HEANEERS T BNCEREEREA
GR201435000040 ° H 1#2215% &) 1 & & 4 A8 &
FR1S%L
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12.

144

INCOME TAX (Continued)

On 24 July 2014, Shenzhen Hongde was approved to continue
as an ANTE for a period of 3-year and the certificate number
is GR201444200634. It is subject to income tax at 15%
accordingly.

On 30 September 2014, Scud Shenzhen was approved to
continue as an ANTE for a period of 3-year and the certificate
number is GR201444201487. It is subject to income tax at 15%
accordingly.

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the remaining
subsidiaries of the Group that established in the PRC are subject
to PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate at 25%.

12. 882
R2014F78248 R B EEER = F

HERNEEARSTRMLE  BERTA
GR201444200634 ° E1215% 8 5 R G R 15 fE
FRfS®i

M2014F9H308 - RNRERBEER=F
HERNEERSTEMLE BERRA
GR201444201487 ° E1215% H) T 3 81 40 48 FE
FRASHT -

RIBPBEDEREHE - AEBEEHBEKIZH
HRMBARARTECEMSHRIR25%4
i o

Details of the income tax charge in the consolidated statement HAGZABEREMmE2RWERNAEHRSTE
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are as follows: BN
2015 2014
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT
Current tax — PRC BEARIE — A [
Enterprise Income Tax: REFE
- Tax for the year — REEFIE 29,908 23,591
— Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior years —BRFEEEETRE
(FBFERtE) 146 (1,494)
Deferred tax — current year (Note 31) RIEFIIE — AFE (MFE31) (12,054) 636
Income tax charge ZES T 18,000 22,733
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12. INCOME TAX (Continued)

The reconciliation between profit before income tax and income

12. Fi88i)

AR R EAM R E S R RS BE A

tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other HFTIS R 2 SERU0 T ¢

comprehensive income is as follows:

2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFT
Profit before income tax BRATIE B AR T 41,536 15,871
Tax at tax rates applicable in the relevant FEARERE R EREER R BN
jurisdictions ] 11,700 5,988
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes TAB S BT E 35,328 48,594
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes BERMBANTRET 2 (27,514) (14,260)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERAREERNREYE 5,418 -
Tax effect of temporary differences not recognised MAER EREENHETE = (11,522)
Tax effect of withholding tax at 5% on the distributable TAHN 5% H AR K B R R B LA
profits of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC MEAR DR B RETE = 6,250
Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior years BEFEREBTIR/
(EAE) 146 (1,494)
Effect of concessionary rate granted to BETHEMNBLARZ
the PRC subsidiaries BEENTE (7,078) (10,823)
Income tax FTiSHi 18,000 22,733
13. DIVIDENDS 13. RE

No final dividend was declared for the years ended 31 December

2015 and 2014.

HE20155F R2014E 12318 L EET RS
KA ERRE S o
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14. EARNINGS/(LOSSES) PER SHARE 14. BRER (E#E)
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(losses) per NABIHEEANBEEBREANEERF, (B
share attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the B)RBATEIEE -

following data:

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Earnings/(losses) for the purposes of basic and  tEEREARREERF,(EHE)
diluted earnings/(losses) per share m&EF, (EE)
(Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to the (RARBEAE ANEEAFE
owners of the Company) L (&) 38,168 (1,696)

Number of ordinary shares

EZERHAE
2015 2014
‘000 ‘000
BT 5 A&
Weighted average number of ordinary shares — stE&EARREERF,(EE)
for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings/ 9 A% HniE F 15 &L
(losses) per share 1,090,001 1,034,703
The computation of diluted earnings/(losses) per share for the STEEH E2015F N2014F12A31HIEFE 2
year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 does not assume the GREERT (BE)E - TERKRCEKE
conversion of potential ordinary shares in relation to certain BETEEEMEREZZEL RN RAH

share options granted as they are anti-dilutive. BEERE S -
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. Y% - RERRE

Electronic
equipment,
Land under Plant and fumniture and ~ Construction Leasehold
finance lease Building ~ Machinery Motor Vehicles fixtures  in progress Moulds - Improvements Total
Eivii BE g1k i
Bk gz itH RE  BHREE  AREIE LR it
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000  RMB'000
MREFT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Group k&R
Cost s
1 January 2014 WHEIRIR 12904 106,797 2,303 15,764 113848 - 28661 67814 617,092
Additions g - - 74,760 1510 16,720 119 8214 271 104,104
Transfer (Permanent difference) E2(KNZE) - - (58) - - - 58 - -
De-ecoqniion from disposal of subsidares & i EMBATHA L - - (19065) (478) (37) - - - (1990
Disposdls e - - (£.223 552) (6786) - (1,658 - B9
Wrtten off i - - (25.292) (134) (18,754) (69) (7,985) -3y
31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 WIHEIRNARWISEIAIA 12,904 06,797 297425 16,110 104,671 50 21351 70535 635,843
Additions g - - 35,661 % 18,548 21,180 - 117 76,601
Transfer fromfto) construction in progress  &4/( A AR T - - 17,080 - - (17,080) - - -
Disposdls ik - - (23139 (119) (3426) - (13189) - BB
Written off B - - (47.374) (4o7) (45,664) - (12.810) - (106255
31 December 2015 WI5E128318 12,904 106,797 279,654 15,678 14129 4150 1352 71652 566,316
Depreciation fi&
1 January 2014 WHEIRIA 1951 15219 103912 7300 60,625 — 18878 60,388 268273
Charge for the year TEEER 2% 503 2,79 1,845 12674 - 4174 39 By
Transfer (Permanent difference) E2(k2E) - - ) - - - 4 - -
De-ecoqniion from disposal of subsideres & i EMBATML L - - 910) 1) (104) - - - (1,109
Disposals & - - (1.243) (348) (3,639) - (248 - (5,474)
Witten off ] - - (401) (216) (266) - (622) - (1,509)
31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 2014%12 8318 R2015% 1 A1 2209 209 129,144 8490 69,294 - 2,18 431 315926
Charge for the year TEEEY 2% 5013 3910 1779 14,544 - 134 30 60015
Disposdls it - - (13431) (107) (3.243) - (12527) - (9308
Written off B - - (29.438) (387) (39,838) - (10,371) - (80,034)
31 December 2015 W5E12A31A 2467 25,365 120,185 9775 40,757 - 629 67421 266,59
Net book value RETE
31 December 2015 WI5E128318 10437 81432 159,469 5903 33N 4,150 m 431 299,717
31 December 2014 014E12831A 10,69 86,505 168,281 1620 137 50 5,165 6,224 319,917

As at 31 December 2015, motor vehicles with carrying amount
of RMB542,000 (2014: RMB626,000) have been pledged by the
Group in favour of a bank to secure a bank loan granted by a

bank to the Group (Note 24).

R2015F 128310 AEBEEBEEREAAR
#542,00070(20144F : ARM626,00070) 8975
B TIRTT

AERBRTR T AEEMN A
RITEROER(FIEE24) -
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15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16.

148

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has pledged property, plant
and equipment carried at approximately RMB35,106,000 (2014:
RMB51,425,000) for other loans (Note 24).

As at 31 December 2015, plant and machinery with a carrying
amount of RMB2,600,000 (2014: RMB2,856,000) has been
pledged to a landlord as collaterals for electricity expenses

payable.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

15. 9% - BERRE®

20156 12A318 AEEBCEREEE
B %4 AN R #35,106,0007C(20145F : A R ¥
51,425,00070) R % ~ = K& AR HAb

B (izE24) -

2015412 H318 -

FEEASRARTE

2,600,0007C(20144F = AR #2,856,0007T) K
BMEN#ECIEAENEBNIEMYIERTE

F o

16. B EE

Distribution Trade Domain  Employee  Non-compete

network names names  contracts  agreements  Goodwill  Software Total

ARER ol B k84 THEhE S E &t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RIMB'000 RIB'000 RMB'000 RIVB'000 RIB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR

Cost S
1 January 2014 01451 51A 97,064 100,958 74 58 350 6,200 9,581 214,885
Additions HE - - - - - - 468 468
De-recognition from disposal of a subsiciary RELEMBARNL HED - - - = : - 21) 21)
Disposals e - (100,958 - - - - - (100,958
Written-off i (97,664) - (74) (58) (350) (6,200) (1500 (105,846)
31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 014512831 R201551 1R - - - - - - 8528 8528
Additions HE - - - - - - 2497 2497
Disposals HeE - - - - - - (356) (356)
31 December 2015 015512A31A - - - - - - 10,669 10,669
Amortisation and impairment BERAE
1 January 2014 01451 51A 97,064 73,687 74 58 350 6,200 5113 183,146
Charge for the year TEERY - - - - - - 1438 1438
Disposals it - (1368]) - - - - - (1368
De-recognition from disposal of a subsiciary RELERBATNALER - - - - - - (6) (6)
Written-off Wi (97,664) - (74) (58) (350) (6,200) (663 (105,009)
31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 014512831 R201551 1R - - - - - - 5882 5,882
Charge for the year REERY - - - - - - 1536 1536
Disposals HE - - - - - - (338) (338)
31 December 2015 015512A31A - - - - - - 7,080 7,080
Net book value REEE
31 December 2015 015812A31A - - - - - - 3,589 3,589
31 December 2014 WILENA3NE - - - - - - 2,646 2,646
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Distribution network represents the sales network of the
“Chaolitong#8 /138" brand, covering second tier and third
tier cities, towns and villages in the PRC. An impairment of
distribution network of RMB35,890,000 was made in the
year of 2012. Distribution network was fully impaired since
31 December 2012.

Upon the disposal of the business of “Chaolitongi8/13&",
the distribution network was written off during the year
ended 31 December 2014 (Note 16(ii)).

Trade names comprise 7 trade names. The trade name of
“Chaolitong#8 /138" is a popular brand which has obtained
the general recognition of consumers in rural areas and
second tier and third tier cities in the PRC. Trade names
have been allocated to the single cash generating unit
("CGU"), Chaolitong.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
disposed of all trade names to an independent third party
at a net consideration of RMB23,585,000. Accordingly, a
loss on disposal of the trade name of RMB3,686,000 was
recognised in profit or loss. Upon the completion of the
disposal, the Group no longer carry out any business with
the brand “Chaolitongi 738"

Goodwill arising from the acquisition of the “Chaolitong
%8 7" brand is attributable to the anticipated revenue
growth, profitability, future market development
and anticipated future operating synergies from the
combination. An impairment of goodwill of RMB6,200,000
was made in the year of 2009. Goodwill was fully impaired
since 31 December 2010.

Upon the disposal of business of “Chaolitongif 73", the
goodwill was written—off during the year ended 31 December
2014.

The Group carries out annual impairment tests for goodwill
and trade names with indefinite useful lives, or more
frequently if there are indications that these intangible
assets might be impaired. The acquired distribution
network, non—-compete agreements, employee contracts,
domain names and software are amortised on a straight—
line basis over their respective estimated useful lives.

The amortisation charge recognised for the year is included
in “Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

6. B EE#)

GEX

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Eizk %%?afChaohtongﬁ_jJﬁJuuﬁﬂ
SR =& t@tfﬁ&?ﬁwméﬁﬁ
B 4% o 7A20124F Bt A R %35,890,0007T
ﬁiﬁiﬂﬁ%{’ﬁﬁm@ B2012F12A31
C D IEBIRE R EURE -

N L

& ChaolitongfE 1B 1 ¥7551& - » A
WERE E2014F12 8318 I FE S
(FfFzE16(i)) °

EIZBIE7ERSIZ - [ Chaolitongi /118 JE’]
AEAESEIMNME  BEFEH=- - =
%?Mm?ﬁﬁﬁﬁimﬁ/ﬁﬁﬁﬁ’] LB o ?ﬁTT

PRI E-BReELEM((REELS
{EJ) - BlEB h A

HE2014F12831HIEFE » AEE
SR (E ARM23,585,0007T A — LB H
SHHEMARR - Bt - HEBGRER
AR 3,686,000 NI HER - B
BT & ﬁ%@TﬁLﬂChaohtongtj}
BB ETERER -

U BEl ChaolitongilB 1138 | IS EA 2 2
TR AHEEZBERSIER - B F6
7 RARMIBERERBHRKECEERER
#FTER » 20094 5t A R #6,200,0007T
ZEEELRE B2010F128318 -
AEEZERE °

&l Chaolitong#B 1138 | ¥ 1& - BMEE
REZE2014F12A31B L FEHEH -

A B A RO P B R IR T
ERERIR, - SimETEER TR LR
1B - B ANSRE T UL RIE, - PTUER 2
DA - TEFHE  EBEAH  HH
REHLEERRES B 2 EFHERF
HAMETTHESH o

REFEEIANBEFS Dt ARERER
Hih 2 ERE KR ITRFAX AT »
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17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 17. & AR R

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBT T

Share of net assets BIEFEEE = 1,421
Particulars of the associates are as follows: B A RIFIROT ¢
Place of
incorporation/
establishment Group's effective
Name of company and operation Paid-up capital ownership interest  Principal activity
E31L 22 rEE
NCEE RgE BRRAK BREEER TEEK
2015 2014
Scud (Guangzhou) Digital ~ PRC RMB 11,300,000 N/A 20%  Research and development,
Technology Co., Ltd. HE ARK11,300,0007T i manufacturing and sales of
("Scud Guangzhou”) bluetooth earphones and
JE MR EBR B T other digital telecommunication
BRAR(EMARER]) ETERREGHIEAESEN

2 EERHE
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17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 17. & QTR 2
Scud Guangzhou performs research and development, BEMRERRYE R EE T H i K B ph BUS B 2341
manufactures and sells bluetooth earphones and other R AENEE  c ENREREAEEE
digital telecommunication appliances. Scud Guangzhou is TFH#ENEMERS ARVt ER s — -

one of suppliers of bluetooth earphones and other digital
telecommunication for the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group disposed HE2015F12A831HIFFE KREBEHEH
of its then 20% equity interest in Scud Guangzhou at a ERREMNRER20%MEZD REABARE
consideration of RMB1,421,000 and accordingly, no gain or loss 1,421,0007C »© ALt - WENEZFSEERIE
of disposal is recognised in profit or loss. AR ©

Summarised financial information in relation to the associates are BREBSATINABERBEZYNT -

presented below:

2014

RMB’000

AREEF T

Total non—current assets IEmEEELATE 1,911
Total current assets MBNEEETE 22,533
Total current liabilities mB B EETE (17,339)
Net assets FEE 7,105
Proportion of effective interest held by the Group REEFEERERLLDI 20%
Share of net assets ERFEEERE 1,421
Revenue U z5 14,658
Profit for the year NEZ 5 A 104
Share of results of an associate ) NG 21
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18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANIAL ASSETS

18. A EZ M BEE

2015 2014

RMB’'000 RMB’'000

AR¥T R AREEF T

Unlisted equity investment, at cost BEAFHR 2 R ETiERIRE 1,000 -
19. INVENTORIES 19. 7 &

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥ T AREEFTT

Raw materials BER R 470,580 216,805

Work in progress B 7,786 8,503

Finished goods B2IRK @ 155,973 141,324

Goods in transit EHRER 11,270 2,299

645,609 368,931

During the year, a reversal of write down of inventories of
RMB52,856,000 (2014: RMB1,400,000) was recognised in cost
of sales.

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

A reconciliation of the opening and closing fair value balance
during the year is set out in the below table:

RAFEE - MR FER R A R%52,856,0007T
(20144 : AR #1,400,0007T ) & 7 85 € B 2R
FREERR o

20. BN P EFABENYBEE

RNEEFYFRRNFELEBHZHESIMT
*

2015
RMB’000
AR¥T T

Fund investment, at fair value RAFEHRZESRE
At the beginning of the year REA) =
Addition NE 60,000
At the end of the year RER 60,000
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21. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES

1. ERESREREKRERE

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT

Trade receivables W E 5 5K0E 1,242,420 1,171,085
Notes receivables R EE 91,507 87,010
1,333,927 1,258,095
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts o RIBEREME (98,424) (73,436)
1,235,503 1,184,659

An aged analysis of trade and notes receivables at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of

allowance, is as follows:

REZHZR  EHRBEEENESARNER
PR NEREBRNREONAT

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT

0 to 60 days 0E60X 1,083,406 1,092,005
61 to 180 days 612180k 68,609 75,731
181 to 365 days 181E365K 31,864 7,761
1 to 2 years —EWF 46,950 5,793
2 to 3 years ME=F 4,674 3,369

1,235,503 1,184,659

The average credit period granted on sale of goods ranged from

60 to 90 days.

RTHEERNFHEEMANF60E0R -
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21.

154

TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)

Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the
year were as follows:

1. EWEBESREREREE 2

FARERRENZHOT -
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R ARBETT

1 January 1H1H 73,436 12,257
Written off 8 (74) (6)
Impairment losses recognised ERRREEE 25,062 61,791
Reversal of impairment losses previously S RTHER AR BB R E

recognised - (606)
31 December 12H31H 98,424 73,436

The aged analysis of the trade and notes receivables that are
past due but not impaired is as follows:

80 BB 0 RO (B RO B I 5 R I B R IR B
RRECDITIAT

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT

Less than 6 months past due BHERN 2 7N E A 17,646 42,634
Over 6 months past due BER7SE A A 76,681 19,219
94,327 61,853

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

BEEYREENERESFARSZBYR
FERW MESEAKREERFNEEDE -
RBAEER  NRAREERREASEERT
SURBEARRE - MEAKRBEIEA 2ERE
BB R SHRBETRERE -
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22.PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 22. F{{fE - & R HEMEKRFIE
RECEIVABLES
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
Advance to suppliers [ 1t FE P A K 378,133 297,723
VAT recoverable ] 3R [B] 3 {E F 14,317 20,495
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant BEEME « BERBENDHiRE
and equipment 19,505 23,943
Deposits paid for finance lease arrangement TREHELTHI N2 mE 6,775 4,776
Refundable deposits AR EES 16,402 13,266
Consideration receivable on disposal of trade U HERZRE
names - 25,000
Others Hih 4,617 4,997
439,749 390,200
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts B RIBEREE (105,859) (46,657)
Total FEE 333,890 343,543
Less: Current portion W omEE Y (307,610) (314,824)
Non-current portion JERBE D 26,280 28,719
Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the FRNRZBERENESESTOT :
year were as follows:
2015 2014
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT
1 January 1H18 46,657 3,378
Impairment losses recognised B HERREEE 59,202 43,279
31 December 12A31H 105,859 46,657

None of the above assets is past due. The financial assets

included in the above balances relate to receivables for which

there was no recent history of default.

IALBEEWARBE - A LB IEA BRI
TR B 75 E T ELAT HA Y R KO R0 R
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23.AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) RELATED 23.fEUW  ((1)BEATREZ AT

PARTIES AND AN ASSOCIATE g

The amounts due from/(to) related parties and an associate are U ()R8 A+ KRB A BRI I8 A i
unsecured, interest—free and repayable on demand. W R B NBAREREERE -

The information disclosed pursuant to Section 383 of the Hong BIEE BN TIEHI 538315 (F6225 ) BIER
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) is as follows: ErRn

Maximum amount

outstanding Balance at Balance at
during the year 31 December 2015 31 December 2014
FAREE R20155 720145
EntE 124318 M4 12 A318 0%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR AR®ETR ARETT
Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd. (Note i) BERRERROERDE () 42,788 42,788 6,513
EBTEB New Energy Technology Co., Ltd (Note i)~ ZEE#HEERZRAERAT
(&) 33,372 10,435 33,372
Fujian Youtong Industrial Co., Ltd (Note iii) BRRBEEER DA (M) 2,257 2,257 2,257
Fujian Scud Senior Technician Training School BERERSRRIMENISR
(Note iii) (B i) 704 704 -
Fujian Scud Technology Co., Ltd. (Note iii) BERERBHRER R (Fi) 749 530 749
China Source Limited (Note iv) REERARAR iz 9,800 - 9,800
Fuzhou Shanghe Electronics Co., Ltd. (Note v) BN ENEFEBR AR (M) 5,284 - 5,284
56,714 57,975
Notes: ftsE -
(i) Its directors and shareholders, Mr. Fang Jin and Mr. Guo () HEBEENXRBREASEENIRIBLELETAE
Quan Zeng, are also the directors and shareholders of the KABIZEERBKE °
Company.
(i) Its director is the son of, Mr. Fang Jin, a director and (il ESEEATEEE(RARREENKRE)Z
shareholder of the Company. F o
(iii) Its director, Mr. Fang lin, is also a director and shareholder (il EEE T2 EENMALRRRIZES LR
of the Company. e
(iv) Its director and sole shareholder is the daughter of, Mr. (ivy EEERE—REATSEE(RATZ
Fang Jin, a director and shareholder of the Company. EEMRR)ZL
(v) Its director and major shareholder is the son of, Mr. Fang (v) EESERTITERFTATSEE(RATZ
Jin, a director and shareholder of the Company. EENKRE)ZF o
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24. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

25.

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets have
been pledged by the Group in favour of the banks as guarantees
for the issuance of bank accepted notes for payments to
suppliers, landlord as collaterals for electricity expenses payable
and pledged for other loans:

24. EEEH

RBERAR AEBEDHATEEER TR
17 (ERAMER KM & L RITEER 2
BR ERAEIXNEE ZEMRRERER
HAGE R R -

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFT

Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) YE - BB RERE (MEE5) 38,248 54,907
Bank deposits RITIFR 596,121 422,104
634,369 477,011

BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND TIME 25. 88T RBEESREHER

DEPOSITS

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
short—term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less.

The Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”) is not freely convertible into
other currencies, however, under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Time deposits are made for periods depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group and earn interest at the
respective short-term time deposit rates. The directors consider
that the fair values of the short—term deposits are not materially
different from their carrying amounts because of the short
maturity period. As at 31 December 2015, the Group had time
deposit of RMB140,000,000 (2014: RMB60,000,000) placed with
banks with original maturity period of one year (2014: one year)
and earned interest at the respective time deposit rates.

RITHEB LA BRAEEFENRS LY
HIRA=EAHA THREIRITER -

ARBTAREDETTEHLBAEME
B AT - SRR BISINE B IR AR D) M ASEE - B
RASEEIRRTE - AN B AR i AT TS
BHIMER 2 RITHRE -

TEHERZHR - DRIAEEZASREH
SKME - RERBATEATFRFEEHENFS - &
ERAEREHATHERREHANER - Bt
HEAVEEAKRAMBEITHEERNELR - R2015
F12R318 - REEERITF R K E # EARR
R—FQO4AF: —FINERFRABEARE
140,000,00070(2014% : A K #60,000,000
TT) - WIRE B T HRF SR = BREUR 2 -
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26. TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLES 26. ENEZRERENEE

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFT

Trade payables JEE 558 679,925 340,833
Notes payables ENRIE 1,198,125 875,982
1,878,050 1,216,815

An aged analysis of trade and notes payables at the end of the

RBHZER - RNREHRENE S FAREN

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: ZIEMERE T ¢
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEF T
0 to 60 days 0%60H 1,146,962 665,076
61 to 180 days 612180H 618,123 434,473
181 to 365 days 1812365H 56,701 92,691
1 to 2 years —EWE 48,165 20,263
2 to 3 years M2 = 2,854 2,033
Over 3 years =FLAE 5,245 2,279
1,878,050 1,216,815

Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for
trade purchases and ongoing costs. The average credit period

taken for trade purchases ranged from 30 to 90 days.
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27. OTHER PAYABLES, RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE 27 . HbfE(t=h1E - TARE B R EST

28.

AND ACCRUED CHARGES EH
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
Deposits i) 42,767 37,094
Payroll and welfare payables FEAST S B J2 A2 A 34,533 28,812
Accrued expenses Rt 8,996 8,671
Payables for acquisition of property, BEYE  MENMREEMNZIE
plant and equipment 10,669 7,021
Other tax payables H b eI 518 39,193 94,870
Withholding tax liability FEHHIBEAE 9,000 10,500
Others EAh 44,394 21,784
189,552 208,752
PROVISION FOR WARRANTY 28. EmIRIEEEE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
1 January 1A1H 3,104 2,935
Additions nNE - 169
Realisation [mE=sE) (1,234) -
At 31 December M12A31H 1,870 3,104

The provision for warranty represents management’'s best

EmREEBSEEEEREBELREEN

estimate of the Group's liability under a half-year warranty REFHHE  BRAEBRREMNEERET M

program granted on the own-brand batteries, based on prior

experience and industry averages for defective products.

FEREFTEME BIERNRERDR -
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29.
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BORROWINGS 29. B
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET ARBTT
Bank loans (Note (a)): RITER(MFE@Q)):
Secured bank loans EIRBIRITER 128,744 122,030
Unsecured bank loans EIERIBITER 211,212 258,522
339,956 380,552
Other loans (Note (b)) H Aty & 51 (PEE(b)) 18,834 29,492
Obligations under finance leases (Note (c)) BEHEEAEPIH() 13,007 -
371,797 410,044
Notes: FiEE -
(a) The terms of repayment of the bank loans are as follows: (@ WITEFERFEHMOT
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTFT
Current portion: TEENEL 5
Within 1 year or on demand —FRHIFERK 339,956 380,405
Non-—current portion: EMENEL
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFA = 147
- 147
Total FEE 339,956 380,552
As at 31 December 2015, bank loans of approximately 7201512 H318H » #9 A K #128,744,000
RMB128,744,000 (2014: RMB122,030,000) were secured Jo(20144F © A R #122,030,0007T ) &) R
by the Group’s motor vehicles with a carrying amount TERUREERBEEY ARES42,000
of approximately RMB542,000 (2014: RMB626,000) JL(20144F : A R #626,0007T ) #) /5 &
(Note 24), bank deposits of RMB596,121,000 (2014: (B #E24) - A KR #596,121,0007t(2014
RMB422,104,000) (Note 24) and by personal guarantee £ AR M422,104,0007T ) R 1T F K
from the Company's director and controlling shareholder, (M 5524) Ve BIEFRIT B AR QA Al &= 3 IR
Mr. Fang Jin, for certain bank loans of the Group up to an BEASEARAAERBRHESESTSE
amount of RMB117,044,000 (2014: RMB233,258,000). A R #117,044,00070(20145F © A R #&

233,258,00070) B9& TERITE F/EM AL

® e
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29. BORROWINGS (continued)

(a)

29. B R

Notes: (Continued) MisE - (&)
(Continued) (a) (#&)
The average effective interest rates per annum (which are REEMIRITE -,))(E’jzﬁi’j LTI
also equal to the contractual interest rates) on the Group's HERE ’]%J SHINN
bank borrowings are as follows:
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFT
Average effective interest rate
on fixed-rate borrowings BERZ FHEER X 5.24% 4.49%

(b)

The Group obtained other loans from two financial
institutions. These other loans are secured by certain plant
and machinery of net carrying amount of RMB35,106,000,
bear fixed interest rate at 4.75% to 6% per annum and are
repayable in three years.

The average effective interest rates per annum (which are
also equal to the contractual interest rates) on the Group’s
other loans are at 13%.

(b)

e l1&ﬂﬁﬁﬁéﬂﬁ%§1§ﬁ%%ﬁtmgﬂ cHEH

tWERAETREFESARK3S5,106,0007T

mwﬁ%&%mﬁﬁ BEEFFEAL7T5%E6%
AR=FNEE -

REBEME RN T HEEFEF R
FIL)E13% o

(TEREL
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29. BORROWINGS (continued)
Notes: (Continued)

29. &R (&)
CEE )

(c) Obligations under finance leases: (0 REHERE:

The Group leases some of its plant and machineries. Such
assets are generally classified as finance leases as the rental
period amounts to the estimated useful economic life of
the assets concerned and often the Group has the right to
purchase the assets outright at the end of the minimum
lease term by paying a nominal amount.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has obligations under

AEBEBBESETRE LR - AR HER
HERBREE 2T A RGBSR -
MARBEAERREBEPSERERTHE
THRHERBEREE  HRFEERT
DRRRERE -

MR2015%F12831H » AEE#EE N ER

finance leases repayable as follows: BEHERENT
2015
Total Interests of Present value
minimum the minimum  of the minimum
lease payments lease payments lease payments
RIEHSE REHE REHE
TR RRFE RRAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARMET T ARET T
Current portion: mEE S
Within 1 year or on demand —FRFIRER 5,707 505 5,202
Non-current portion: FEMENEB S
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFA 5,707 252 5,455
After 2 years but within 5 years MEREBRER 2,378 28 2,350
8,085 280 7,805
Total Foey 13,792 785 13,007

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are also
secured by the guarantee of a director and substantial
shareholder and a related company.

30. AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR

The amount due to a director is unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.
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31. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 31.EREWELEHESERAEE
RECOGNISED

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised RERNEGATBERNRERNIELTHIEE
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the E/(aR)Io kEgnmT

movements during the year are as follows:

Impairment Provision for
loss ontrade  Accelerated write downto  Undistributed
and other  accounting Provision  net realisable profits of

receivables  depreciation  for warranty value  subsidiaries Tax loss Others Total
B
8553 iz

RE#EYSE g Bk b i DE
HERR gitfE e BERE  AMIGEA HEbR e it
RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB000 RMB'000 RVB000 RMB'000
AR ARBTR ARETR ARBTR AR®TR ARMTR ARETR ARETR

1 January 2014 W4E1718 1459 - 535 84,035 (5,360) 4,065 - 84,734
Creditcharge) to profitor loss REERL/ (1) 3,903 3 68 - - (4,065) (573 (636)
31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 WENANBRNSEIR1A 5362 bl 603 84,035 (5,360) - (573) 84,098
Credit{charge) to profitor loss REERL/ () 2691 3) (204 (14.976) - - 38 12,054
31 December 2015 0155128318 3283 1 399 69,059 (5,360) - (230) 9%,152
For presentation purpose, certain deferred tax assets and REFME  ETREERBEERBELERN
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of SEMBRRRIEHE - LT RAMBHEMmIE
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax HERIERR BT AT

balances for financial reporting purpose:

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT

Net deferred tax assets recognised in the TR BB R NIER

consolidated statement of financial position R IR & B F R 101,742 90,031
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the TEiRE WA =R NTER

consolidated statement of financial position EERIR B BT (5.590) (5,933)

96,152 84,098
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31.

164

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
RECOGNISED (continued)

The Group has tax loss carry forwards amounting to
approximately RMB74,134,000 (2014: RMB28,955,000) which
relate to subsidiaries that have a history of losses and may not
be used to offset taxable income elsewhere in the Group. These
subsidiaries have no temporary taxable differences which could
partly support the recognition of deferred tax assets. Also, there
are no tax planning opportunities available that would further
provide a basis for recognition.

If the Group was able to recognise all unrecognised deferred tax
assets, profits would increase by approximately RMB12,986,000
(2014: RMB5,760,000).

According to Articles 3 and 37 of the PRC Enterprise Income Tax
Law, distribution of dividends by a foreign investment enterprise
in China to its non-tax resident foreign investor is subject to
Enterprise Income Tax at source on a withholding basis. The
standard withholding tax rate pursuant to Article 4 of the PRC
Enterprise Income Tax Law is 20%. According to Article 27
of the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law and Article 91 of the
Detailed Implementation Rules of the PRC Enterprise Income
Tax Law, the applicable withholding tax rate has been reduced
to 10%. Under the Arrangement between the Mainland China
and Hong Kong Special Administration Region (“HKSAR") for
the Avoidance of Double Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal
Evasion, or Mainland China/HKSAR Double Taxation Agreement,
Hong Kong tax residents which hold 25% or more of a PRC
enterprise are entitled to a reduced dividend withholding tax rate
of 5%.

B1.CRANEEHREBEEEREE &

NEEBHEEBIEEEBL ARKT4,134,0007T
(20144 : AR%28,955,0007T) * WEFIES
Ko 6715 518 MO T B A B Fo AR 4 A BB LA 85 AN
SEHEMM T B ERBA - L EWB AR
B E D IFERIELEHIEE ENERTE R
FERE o bAN - WERIEE SIS LUE — PIRE
TERERE -

MAEERERRTERABEROELERBEE -
B #5358 hn 49 A R #12,986,0007T (20144 ¢
AR¥E5,760,0007T) ©

RIE R B EMEHEEIGEREI7ER -
INEIRE D EREATE RIINHZEE SR
2 RBZELURBEIE T B EMBET -
BIERBEREEBEFME  REENBE A
20% ° MIREFRBEBEMEBIEE 276 KRR
EMEBUAEEOIZEIME - iERATEN
BERFE10% ° RIECA AN E B R BT E
([BBFRTHEDAREREREESHM
MBI RR A ZEE) - S BRBIRE25%5k
I FRESHEBHRER - ATREER K%
MR BIEEL
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31. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

RECOGNISED (continued)

In addition, according to Cai Shui [2008] No.1, a circular jointly
issued by the Ministry of Finance and State Administration of
Taxation on 22 February 2008, distribution of dividends out of
pre 2008 retained profits by a foreign investment enterprise to
its foreign investor in or after 2008 is exempted from Enterprise
Income Tax, whereas distribution of dividends out of profits
generated by a foreign investment enterprise in or after 2008
shall be subjected to Enterprise Income Tax in accordance with
the relevant articles of the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law and its
Detailed Implementation Rules as described above. Accordingly,
dividends receivable from certain subsidiaries in respect of profits
earned since 1 January 2008 is subject to 5% withholding tax.

At 31 December 2015, the Group’'s share of aggregate amount
of temporary differences associated with retained earnings of the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries was approximately RMB291,214,000
(2014: RMB364,869,000). Deferred tax liabilities have not
been all provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of the Group’s share of temporary differences
attributable to retained profits of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries
as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

1.ERANEEHRBEERERE®)

SN RIR B IBED I B R B 48 B A 200842
R22BHEaBmOC R CEMSHE TESR
B R EN) (B 74[2008]15%) + 20084 Z B
EIRECEEKNRERSBEFE - £20084
AR DEGLINEIREER - A RBEEME
Tt M20084F sk LA % F 2 SN 4% B 1 3 Wy 37 18
FESE - Bk bR B SREFBIE
Bl R AR R SR EREH - Bt -
ETHIB AR E2008F1 A1 HBERESHE
) FE U AR BB BAR 5 % HI TEANES -

#2015F 12 A318 » A& B fE (B AR B E
MBRARRBEFNABENEREZEEHOAR
#291,214,0007C(20144F = A R #364,869,000
TC) © FRR AN 5 [ AT ) 8 (] B B A KR 2 R
BERZEAITRERETERE - REBW
TR E(R AN B R B M B A Rl R B A FIEAE 2 Fir
BEREBENRAMBREEL RN EA &R
1 -
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32. SHARE CAPITAL

32. g4

Number of
ordinary shares

of HK$0.10 each Amount
FR0.1058 T
EERRH -]
in Thousands RMB'000
T A& AREFT
Authorised: JATE ¢
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 R2014F 1818 ~ 2014%F
and 2015 2015512 A31H 5,000,000 502,350
Issued and fully paid: BETRER
At 1 January 2014 R2014F1H1H 1,032,001 103,014
Placing of shares (Note) AR &5 ARt (B3 ) 58,000 4,576
At 31 December 2014 and 2015 R2014F K&2015F12 831H 1,090,001 107,590
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2014, 58,000,000 Mt HZE2014F12A318IEFE AR

new ordinary shares of par value of HK$0.01 each
of the Company were issued at subscription price of
HK$1.06 to the then independent third parties of the
Company at aggregate proceeds of approximately
HK$59,300,000 (equivalent to RMB46,749,000), net
of issuing expenses, of which RMB4,576,000 was
credited to share capital and the remaining balance of

RMB42,173,000 was credited to the share premium wERRA o

account.
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BEMARFRER 2B E = HIRR
BBE1.068 LB TEREME A0S
JCHY58,000,0000% ¥ E A% -+ ATIS K
TE 4B %A %) 559,300,000 7T (FHE R A
R%46,749,0007T) * MBREITER -
EHrh AR#4,576,0007T B A% 2N K2 88
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33. RESERVES 33. &
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of REBZRAEZOSEARDRFI R FERE S
each component of the Group's consolidated equity is set out HNEBEHENGEAERREREK - XRRFI R
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of FERFERIS SrER B 2 SEIEEHI T -
the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set out
below:
(Accumulated
losses)/
Share Capital Share Translation retained
premium reserve  option reserve reserve profits Total
(Z&tER)/
B EE BRfEE  RRERE B RERF @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  AREKTR  ARETR  ARBTT  ARETR AR%TR
t 1 January 2014 7201451818 577,115 250,887 - (143,778) (54,160) 630,064
Profit for the year KEERT - - - - 103,770 103,770
Other comprehensive income 2 AR - - - 1,610 - 1,610
Total comprehensive income for the year KEE2R
et - - - 1,610 103,770 105,380
Share-based payment expenses (Note 35) PARRIA BER 7
BESSIGEER) - - 14,811 - - 14,811
Placing of shares (Note 32) BEMRR (M332) 42,173 - - - - 42,173
Dividends paid BARE - - - - (8,114) (8,114)
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 52014128318 %
201551818 619,288 250,887 14,811 (142,168) 41,496 784,314
Loss for the year KEEER - - - - (1,301) (1,301)
Other comprehensive income 2 AR - - - 39,784 - 39,784
Total comprehensive income KEE2R
for the year WYeaE - - - 39,784 (1,301) 38,483
At 31 December 2015 120155124318 619,288 250,887 14,811 (102,384) 40,195 822,797
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34. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 34. R ER
Summarised financial information in relation to the non- FEfE MR RE R ([ IR DN EB RS HEAT 2
controlling interests (“NCls"”), before intra—group eliminations, EERBMEZT -

are presented below:

2015 2014
Percentage of equity interest held by NCls: JEERR R FTE R A DL
Shenzhen Hongde and its subsidiary/subsidiaries  ZEYII387E & E it E A 7] 40% 40%
Shenzhen Nalon FIIBRRE 30% 30%
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE2015F12831HLLFE
Shenzhen
Hongde and Shenzhen
its subsidiary Nalon Total
FIBER
HfE AR RYIBARE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R AR®T T AR¥®T T

Revenue Wz 185,123 115,577 300,700
Loss for the year RNEFZEIE (17,395) (25,580) (42,975)
Loss allocated to NCls DR EIFFERER 2 EE (6,958) (7,674) (14,632)
Cash flows from operating activities &KL EBERESRE 11,180 (3.462) 7,718
Cash flows from investing activities ~ HEEBFERERE (3.747) (2,221) (5,968)
Cash flows from financing activities B & /ZEATEIRERE (11,416) 12,050 634
Net cash (outflows)/inflows ReORd),/ MAEE (3,983) 6,367 2,384
Current assets MENEE 293,293 138,539 431,832
Non—-current assets EMBNEE 48,720 14,208 62,928
Current liabilities nEBE (268,836) (129,650) (398,486)
Non-current liabilities FERHAaE (131) - (131)
Net assets FEE 73,046 23,097 96,143
Accumulated NCls ZFHIE RS 27,634 1,229 28,863
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34. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) 34. FEiERfER (2)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZE2014F12A310LFE
Shenzhen
Hongde and Shenzhen
its subsidiaries Nalon Total
RYEE R
HIfTE AR RIYIBARE et
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT ARETT

Revenue Wzs 283,725 75,653 359,378
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (), 5 F (18,102) 4,141 (13,961)
(Loss)/profit allocated to NCls DEREIFERER 2

Eﬁa)/ il (6,408) 1,242 (5,166)
Cash flows from operating activities &2 EHAEIREARE (3,986) 1,460 (2,526)
Cash flows from investing activities ~ REEZHEBEELRE (22,890) (967) (23,857)
Cash flows from financing activities BV E/EBFIEBRELAE 29,334 (350) 28,984
Net cash inflows RERANFRE 2,458 143 2,601
Current assets RENEE 295,400 118,128 413,528
Non-current assets IEREEE 58,341 14,703 73,044
Current liabilities mEEE (263,179) (84,154) (347,333)
Non-current liabilities BN =Er 121) - 121)
Net assets FEE 90,441 48,677 139,118
Accumulated NCls 2EHIEE RS 34,592 8,903 43,495
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35.

170

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on
3 December 2006. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme
is to reward eligible participants who have contributed to the
Group and to encourage eligible participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the
Company and its shareholders as a whole. Eligible participants
of the Share Option Scheme include directors and employees
of the Group and any directors and employees of the Group,
advisors, consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners, joint venture business partners,
promoters or service providers of the Company whom the board
of directors of the Group considers to have contributed or will
contribute to the Group.

The Share Option Scheme was adopted for a period of 10 years
expiring on 2 December 2016 and the Company by ordinary
resolution in general meeting or the board of directors of the
Company may at anytime terminate the Share Option Scheme
without prejudice to the options granted during the life of the
Share Option Scheme and which remain unexpired immediately
prior to such termination.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at the time of listing,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The
total number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of
which options granted and may be granted to any individual in
any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of
the Company in use at any point in time, without prior approval
from the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares issued
and to be issued in respect of which options granted and may
be granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director or any of their respective associates
representing in aggregate or with an aggregate value in excess
of HK$5,000,000 must be approved in advance by resolution of
the Company’s shareholders (voting by way of poll).

35. lB R fE T &

RARZBERAEST & (2B ) AR E
2006512 A3 HMiB 7 & ilMRFBRERMN o lER
Bz BN RREHALEEER A ER
LMEWEEEER2NEABRALRDF - K
RAIRORERREENEEMS ) - BRkiE
HENSER2NEREASEEEREER
TEBEZERARUAEEEERIBHAE
EEERNANAEEEERES - AARE
Bl A DR AR ftEy - K8
A BE EBBHN - AE0EFEBRMA B
ARG e -

ZIBRE BB FERARTF - BR20165F12
A2R2)8 - EEBZBRE S FHRME T
BRERNEMER IR ARERBRE 2 #s
T ARAAHEBRAE L2 BBRZERAAN
RAEEG A PMEMERE R EZBREE -

REARRRREAAE - IBRIBZERETBIP] 8
B2 BRRERT S R 2 IR 4R - TSR A
NAEEMKRBEBITRG 210% ° REARDQ A
RRERHEAE - AR —F B 48 & A g [ 17T & 7
ATEE 2 ERERT Y R 2 BT RS T 81T
BRmHBE  THBBARAREREBEITRGOZ
1% c BAARAEREZRFIBEVIFNTES
FAEMEE2BHEATRE CEBRERMS R 2
BEITRETETROEBESIFMSEREE LB
i#%5,000,000/8 7T - MAEARNBRR(AKRE
FARFN)BEBA
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Upon the grant of an option a consideration of HK$1 is payable
and the relevant option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time during the
exercise period to be determined by the board of directors,
which shall not exceed 10 years. The exercise price of the options
shall be determined by the board of directors of the Company in
its absolute discretion but will in any event not be less than the
higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated
in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date of an offer of an option by the Company (which
must be a business day); (ii) the average closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange for the 5 preceding business days of the
day of the offer of an option; or (iii) the nominal value of the
Company's shares.

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one share
of the Company. Share options do not confer rights on the
holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meeting.

Details of the share options outstanding during the year are as
follows:

35. BIRERTE(2)

ERBERER  ARARAMATZRELRA
REFGMETE 217 % BRI ZE R
B2 R TT R AR - ERTRBTEE
BtFE - BREZTEERARRESTS 2R
BISEE - HEEBOESTEER THIFEF
Z&mE (VA RABRNRAARRERLE
g (BEREXR)EMIMEL2STH
WEXRMIZBHE (ARFRNDIRELR
HBREEAMAEERAERIAEL S
BRERMAIZFHRTE : iR B EH
ZHEfE °

BHBRREETRHEARNREARR—KK
0o BB EE TRE ABNBREHNER
RE LR ZHEM -

REFRARITEZBREFIRNT -

Number of
shares options

BREZE
Outstanding at 1 January 2014 20141 B 18 HARITE -
Granted during the year NARFEEIZRT 80,000,000
Outstanding at 31 December 2014 and 2015 2014 %2015 12 A31B#AKRTT6EE 80,000,000

The fair value of the share options determined on 19 June 2014
(the grant date) using the Black-Scholes pricing model was
HK$0.23376 per share and the total estimated fair value of the
options granted was approximately HK$18,701,000 (equivalent
to RMB14,811,000).

20146 R19B(ETRHE)ZRRBIMAH = —
AR ETEEAETNERE, A TE
BENR0.233768 T - BERHEREZEEA
FAE A4 /518,701,0008 T(HER AR
14,811,0007T) °

171



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REMREBBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2015

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fra MR R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2015%F 12531 H 1F F/Z

ITVAAY

35.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The following assumptions were used to calculate the fair values
of share options:

19 June 2014

Exercise price HK$0.94
Expected option life 3 years
Expected volatility 55.047%
Annualised dividend yield 1.898%
Risk—free rate 0.442%

The Black=Scholes pricing model has been used to estimate the
fair value of the share options. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options are based
on the directors’ best estimate. The fair value of share options
carries with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, no share-based
payment expenses was recognised in profit or loss (2014:
RMB14,811,000) in relation to share options granted by the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the weighted average
exercise price is HK$0.94 (2014: HK$0.94). The remaining
contractual live of the options outstanding as at 31 December
2015 is 1.5 year (2014: 2.5 year).

35. BRERE(2)

FTHBRE D TER D EA TIIERR

201456 819H
FI1e(E 0.9477T
BRETRAFR 34
TEERR 18 55.047%
FEREE 1.898%
A o5 B 1 = 0.442%

H2 R 5% — AT BT | A (R A T B R
BATE - HRBRENATE, SRR ER
TMREE MR - BREATE
BT BERNTREE R -

HZE2015F12831HILFE - BEARARE
R BB AR N 1B S M SR IR A B B S (20144F ¢
AE#14,811,0007T) °

HZE2015F12A31HULEE - IEFHITEE
£0.947% (201445 : 0.94/87T) » FA2015412
A318 « RITEERREZ FIRE QBB A1.54
(2014% : 2.5%) -
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THE COMPANY

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 36. 2/ BB 4R &

2015 2014
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
MIsE AR¥ET T AREEF T
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RHBARIRE 37 250,901 250,901
Total non-current asset JEmENEEFRE 250,901 250,901
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUL BB R B FIB 793,608 748,472
Bank balances and cash RITEHR LIRS 99 36
Total current assets MEVEEMT 793,707 748,508
Current liabilities RBAE
Other payables H {th fE A 7R 3 3
Amount due to a subsidiary FERTBIE A Rl F0E 114,218 107,502
Total current liabilities mEBEET 114,221 107,505
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERE 679,486 641,003
Net assets BEE 930,387 891,904
Capital and reserves ERRGEE
Share capital &N 32 107,590 107,590
Reserves i 33 822,797 784,314
Total equity B 930,387 891,904

FANG JIN
A&
DIRECTOR
E

GUO QUAN ZENG
BRI
DIRECTOR
BE
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37. SUBSIDIARIES 37. B A FE]
Details of the subsidiaries of the Company at the end of the RBEEBRARBWBRRFBOT - BRIES
reporting period are as follows. The class of shares held is B BHAERNRGERN AT B

ordinary unless otherwise stated:

Place of Issued and
incorporation/ paid-up share/
establishment registered Group's effective
Name of company and operation capital ownership interest  Principal activities
oA BRITRESH
YNGR k& BERRA rEEENEEEE IEEXER
2015 2014
Great Speed Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands ~ US$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
RALEBRAR RBRURE 50,000 7T REZR
Scud Group (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$1 100%* 100%* Provision of corporate
Company Limited BE 18T management services
REBREE(FE)BERATA REATEERS
Keen Power Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100%* 100%*  Investment holding
HELREBRAR i 1,000/ 7T REER
Scud Power (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.  PRC US$3,000,000 100% * 100%* Manufacturing and sale of
(Note (i) H 3,000,000 7T lithium—ion battery modules,
REBERIDERAT power banks and related
(BT&EG) accessories for mobile
phones and digital electrical
appliances
SUERIHEER TR
BHERRFEHEYTHEE
FEmMZ AR
* Interest indirectly held through Great Speed Enterprises * FEARACEERATMEEREER

Limited
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37. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 37. B AR &)
Place of Issued and
incorporation/ paid-up share/
establishment registered Group's effective
Name of company and operation capital ownership interest  Principal activities
Ly BERTREH
DRIEH REEHE B RAE rEEENBEEEE TEEK
2015 2014
Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd.  PRC US$127,000,000 100%* 100%*  Manufacturing and sale of
(Note (ii)) H 127,000,000% 7T lithium—ion battery modules,
REBBR)EFERAT power banks, related
(B EEGN) accessories for mobile
phones and digital electrical
appliances;
SLETSEE R T B EE
BEHERLFHREZIEHEE
FEMZ AR
Scud Battery Co., Ltd. (Note (iii)) ~ PRC US$30,000,000 100%* 100%*  Manufacturing and sale
RERE AR B (P EEi) H 30,000,000 7T of lithium—ion battery
modules, power banks,
power management module
and related accessories for
mobile phones and digital
electrical appliances
RS R HEEE T ERA
BEER BREEEER
FREYSTRETER A
e
Shenzhen Hongde Battery Co., PRC RMB50,000,000 60%° 60%® Research and development,
Ltd. (Note (iv)) H AR manufacturing and sale of
RYITEEE M AR A B (M FEv) 50,000,0007T lithium—ion bare battery cells
BETECHE  £E
RIHE
# Interest indirectly held through Keen Power Holdings # FRH e EBAER A REEEAESR
Limited
@ Interest indirectly held through Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., e %i@ﬁ%ﬂ?ﬁ(%@)%%ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁjF'sﬁ%%ﬁﬁ
Ltd. Ea
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37. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

37. B AR (&)

Issued and
paid-up share/

establishment registered Group's effective
Name of company and operation capital ownership interest  Principal activities
AL BRITRESH
NEER RgE BRRA rEEEREAEE TEXEK
2015 2014
Dongguan Hongde Battery Co., PRC RMB50,000,000 60%" 60%"  Research and
Ltd. (Note (v)) AR E AREE development,
REmBEEMER DA (FIFEV) 50,000,0007C manufacturing and
sale of lithium—ion
bare battery cells
EBEFES I - EE
MiHE
Fujian Green Energy Co., Ltd. PRC RMB5,000,000 100%" 100%©  Not yet commenced
(Note (vi)) AR E AREE business and
BEEERARA [ (V) 50,000,0007T de-registered on
14 July 2017
HARMEE - AR
20174F7 A14E
Scud USA Inc. USA UsS$320,000 100%* 100%*  Sales of lithium—ion
REREBHARAA 3 320,0003 T battery modules,

Co., Ltd.

Interest indirectly held through Shenzhen Hongde Battery

e Interest indirectly held through Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co.,

Ltd.

* Interest indirectly held through Great Speed Enterprises

Limited

' Interest indirectly held through Scud Battery Co., Ltd.
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powerbanks and
related accessories
for mobile phones
and digital electrical
appliances

HEERE FEEE B

RN T BB R

BFEm 2 BB

T BBRYTIRRERERARMERN AR

m

° BBRERBR)EFARQBMERSE

R

* BEBREACERAERARNEESAES

b OBBRERELERAREES R
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37. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of

37. B AR (&)

Issued and

incorporation/ paid-up share/

establishment registered Group's effective
Name of company and operation capital ownership interest  Principal activities
oA BRITRESH
NCIEE: & BRRA rEBEREARE TEER
2015 2014
Patriots Group (China) Company Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%* 100%* Not yet commenced
Limited &% 10,000/ 7T business
FREEE(FE)ARAR EENGE S
Patriots (Hong Kong) Power Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%* 100%* Not yet commenced
Sources Company Limited B 10,0007 7T business
EHE(ER)RERERAT RG-S
Shenzhen Nalon Battery PRC RMB30,000,000 70%° 70%® Manufacturing and sales
Company Limited (Note (vii)) & AR of lithium—ion battery
RINTTBAREE St PR A (BT (vil)) 30,000,0007T modules, research
and development,
manufacturing and
sale of lithium—-ion
bare battery cells
PR FEMEE R ER
SHE - IBBET B2
B HEREE
Scud Power System Co., Ltd PRC RMB20,000,000  100%* 100%* Not yet commenced
(Formerly known as “Fujian ~ #E AR business
Scud New Energy Co., Ltd."”) 20,000,0007T EENGEE S

(Note (viii)
REMRBERZSGBR AT (AE

Bl RERERTERERA

&) (B s viii))

* Interest indirectly held through Great Speed Enterprises

Limited

Ltd.

Ltd.

Interest indirectly held through Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co.,

Interest indirectly held through Fujian Green Energy Co.,

* ERRACEARARMEESAES

© BERERER)EFARAFMERE

e

=

v RBRESBERBERAREERS AR
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37. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 37. B AR &

Place of Issued and

incorporation/ paid-up share/

establishment registered Group's effective
Name of company and operation capital ownership interest  Principal activities
AL BRITRESH
NEER RQE R BRRE rEEEREAEE TEXEK
2015 2014
Fuzhou Thousand Island PRC RMB500,000 N/A 100%* De-registered on 31 July
Electronics Co., Ltd. (Note (ix)) & AREE TEA 2015
BNTFEETFERAF 500,0007T 201547 831 H5T 84
(F5E(ix))
Scud Hong Kong Trading Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%* 100%*  Not yet commenced
Limited a5 10,000/ 7T business
REBEEEFERAA EENGEE—E

*

Interest indirectly held through Great Speed Enterprises
Limited

Interest indirectly held through Fujian Green Energy Co.,
Ltd.

Notes:

@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Wholly—foreign owned enterprise for a term of 50 years
commencing 26 October 2006.

Wholly—foreign owned enterprise for a term of 50 years
commencing 31 October 1997.

Wholly—foreign owned enterprise for a term of 50 years
commencing 6 December 2005.

Limited liability company for a term of 20 years
commencing 21 January 2005.

Limited liability company commencing 11 April 2011.

Limited liability company for a term of 20 years
commencing 21 October 2010.

Limited liability company for a term of 10 years
commencing 4 July 2007.

Limited liability company for a term of 30 years
commencing 3 May 2013.

Limited liability company for a term of 20 years
commencing 7 September 2012.

During the year, none of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities.
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BRAACEER AR AR

BRBERDRERAREES AR

B -

@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)
(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

SN B E DY - 20065108260 5t A&
HR+F -

SNEIBE M - 1997108318 it A
BR+F -

INEIBE D E  2005F12 A6 H BT AHA
At+FE -

BREMTAEF  2005F1 A21 BT AH
ZtFe

BIREMTAQT 2011 F4A11 Bist -

BREEAT 2010F10A21B #£:T A
B4 -

EBE%E/AET  20074E7 B4R #Est AR+
BREEAT - 2013F5 A3 T A=
4 o

BREMEAT - 2012F9 78T A =
4 o

RAREE  WEWME QR ETERERES
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38. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 11 December 2014, the Group disposed of 100% of its entire
interest in Hongde New Energy Technology Co., Ltd (“Hongde
New Energy”) to a director of the Company. The principal
activity of Hongde New Energy was research and development,
manufacturing and sales of lithium—-ion bare battery cells.

38. HEMEB LA

ERHEERETED -

R2014F 128118 » AEBRAQR—RES
HEERBEINEREHE AR A ([JBEHEE
R BEPHERS c BEFAEREBHEWE &

Total consideration satisfied by: BREZYEAR RMB’000
ARET
Cash consideration received BUERSNRE 6,000
Analysis of assets and liabilities of the subsidiary disposed of: HEMBATHEERBEDW : RMB’000
ARET R
Property, plant and equipment Y - R REE 18,730
Inventories FE 16,433
Trade receivables B E 5 RIE 10,045
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERTFRIE « e R E A EUGRIE 49,283
Bank balances and cash RITHEER IR 319
Amount due to former fellow subsidiaries NN E NGRS (13,787)
Amount due to former intermediate holding company JE < BT AP R4 AR A B F00E (31,584)
Trade payables FERE 5 RIE (18,914)
Other payables, receipt in advance and accrued charges Hib R FRTE -« IBUERTE N fEET & A (11,164)
Obligations under finance leases RMEHSEE (15,229)
Net assets disposed of HEFEE 4,132
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HEMB AR EEN K - RMB’000
AR¥T
Net assets disposed of HEFEE (4,132)
Cash consideration received BUCRENRE 6,000
Gain on disposal & 1,868
Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary: HEMBAREENFHRESTA
Cash consideration received BUERSNRE 6,000
Less: cash and cash equivalents of subsidiary disposed of W BEREMRBATMNRS
k& EEER (319)
5,681
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30, BEALRS
(@) The name of and the relationship with related parties are as (a) BAEATZEEEHRAERNT :

follows:
Name Relationship
£B 2LES
Fang Jin Director and controlling shareholder of the Company
ik ia RATIEE RIERARE
Guo Quan Zeng Director of the Company
BRI PAN/NCTE ==
Scud Stock Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd., a company with Mr. Fang Jin and Mr. Guo Quan Zeng
FRFERRAR 17 being common directors who have shareholding interest in this company as to 67% to

3%, respectively

RERERBRODAERAR  FEEERBRELEREARNEENRR IHFEAZL

R167 % 3% i
Scud Technology Fujian Scud Technology Co. Ltd., a company with Mr. Fang Jin being common director
FRERREHE who has 18% shareholding interest in this company

BEREBBHERAR  HEEER/HRAERENRR] - HEAZAF18%MME

Fujian Youtong Fujian Youtong Industrial Co., Ltd, a company with Mr. Fang Jin being common director
RERR BERAEXARLAR  AerERERREENLF]

Fuzhou Shanghe Fuzhou Shanghe Electronics Co., Ltd., a company with its director and shareholder
BN _EF holding 45% shareholding interest of the Company is the son of, Mr. Fang lin, a

director and controlling shareholder of the Company

M EMNEFERAR  REAZ R4S %BREEZNERAARTDEERERBERT &

KEZF
Hongde New Energy Hongde New Energy Technology Co., Ltd, a company with its director is the son of, Mr.
TBIEFTEER Fang Jin, a director and controlling shareholder of the Company. During the year, the

Group disposed of 60% of the entire shareholding interest in Hongde New Energy
WIEMEERREER AR REFRARAEERIERBRRTEEZF - RFA - A&
B SRR 2 B E60%

Scud Guangzhou Scud (Guangzhou) Digital Technology Co., Ltd., a 20% owned associate of the Group
BN E R BINRERBIERMER AR - NEBFRFH20% BRI LA A
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 30. BEATRF ()
Transactions with related companies during the year (b) WEAHBREREMBOHWENFREBZE
not disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements are NEIR ST
summarised as follows:
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
Rental expenses paid to: ENESRX%
Scud Stock (Note i) FREBRAR 1 (FIEED 14,452 14,452
Scud Technology (Note ii) FRERRBHR (M) 4,624 3,318
Purchases raw materials from Fujian RREA B E RARH B R
Youtong (Note iii) - 187
Purchases of finished goods from: (Note iii)  #ZEESBIAL T « (FHETiii)
Hongde New Energy TBIEFTEER 15,527 2,726
Fujian Youtong RERB - 3,364
Sales of raw materials to: (Note iv) HERMETF - (5Ev)
Fujian Youtong eEARB - 167
Fuzhou Shanghe 2N _EFn 7,552 1,605
Sales of finished goods to: (Note iv) HERKET  (WEEv)
Scud Technology REREHY = 7
Hongde New Energy TRERETRER = 24,952
Sales of property, plant and equipment to  [ANBEFELREEWE - BE
Hongde New Energy (Note iv) S (V) - 1,431
Interest income charged from Hongde New  [a]36 & AR UL ERFI S U A
Energy (Note v) (Bi&Ev) 2,062 145
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

182

(b)

(Continued)

The above transactions were made at prices and terms

as agreed between the parties in the normal course of

business.

Notes:

(i)

The Company has disclosed in its prospectus dated
11 December 2006 that Scud Electronics had entered
into a lease agreement with Scud Stock on 20 June
2004, pursuant to which Scud Electronics had agreed
to lease from Scud Stock certain factory premises in
Fuzhou, Fujian Province, the PRC, for the Group’s
production use for a term of three years commencing
1 July 2004 and ending on 30 June 2007 (the
“Lease Agreement”). The Lease Agreement was later
extended to 30 June 2024.

The annual rental payable under the Lease Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Company has set its initial annual caps for each of
the three years ending 31 December 2008 to be
RMB2,700,000 each.

On 15 November 2007, Scud Electronics entered into
a new lease agreement for leasing another premises in
Fuzhou, Fujian Province, the PRC, from Scud Stock for
the Group’s administrative use for a term of 3 years (the
"New Lease Agreement”).

The annual caps have been revised following the
signing of the New Lease Agreement. The new
annual caps for the aggregate rental payable by Scud
Electronics to Scud Stock under all the leases for the
years ended 31 December 2007, 2008 and 2009 have
been determined to be RMB3,000,000, RMB4,100,000
and RMB4,100,000, respectively.

On 8 January 2010, Scud Electronics and Scud Stock
entered into a lease renewal agreement (the “Renewal
Agreement”) and agreed to terminate the New Lease
Agreement with effect from 1 January 2010. The
terms of the lease under the Renewal Agreement is
the same as that set out in the New Lease Agreement
and is effective commencing from 1 January 2010
and its tenure ending on 31 December 2012. Further
details of the Renewal Agreement are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 8 January 2010.

The new annual caps for the aggregate rental payable
by Scud Electronics to Scud Stock under all the leases
for each of the years ending 31 December 2010, 2011
and 2012 have been determined to be RMB4,100,000
each.

30. BEALRF )

(b) (#&)

MRZHTINIEREBBETIZERE D

E%fﬂ%&ﬂ%?ﬂ T -

GEE

(i)

NN M EIA2006512811H
E’]Tﬁﬂﬁi&‘?‘ﬁ&% RERETFER
20046 A20H AR ERRAMDET L
EiE BURERETERERANR
FRENHAENTBEBELBMNOE
TIMWEELASBEAERS &
2004%7H18 # Z2007%46H30H
IHER=F(HEWH=z]) - HERZH
HIBERZE 20246 A300 -

HERZBETITNSFEMESER
THRABMAEEENFERER
% o ANRAFIE R TEE2008F12A4
BMMBE=EAFESEFNLEE L
[R5 ARE2,700,0005T °

MR2007F11 8158 » RERE F
VEFHERR  MRERKROEE
FEEEEEING S — %%f’ﬁ$%
Eﬂzﬁﬁﬁ CRB=F(HEER

R HHERRE  BEREELR
EHEET o« B E20074 - 20084 &
2009F12A31HIEFE - RIEATE
HE  REBREFENRERKROR
HEMHFEELREDNEBARE
3,000,0007T « AR%4,100,0007T &
AER#4,100,0007T ©

R2010F1A8B MEBRE T X
RERRRMDTZEM (B R W
&) WREB201061A1HER
IHHHEERS - BHRBZETNEE
GREFHEREMEEER 8
2010F1 A1 B R E £ K - HF 5
MR2012912A31BHfEm- A@EM
R E— SHBEERARAT B A
201051 ASHMIAE »

HZE2010% ~ 20119 20124912 A31

BLEFERT  REMEHRE  RE
BT EMNRERBRGEHEESNTF

EERESTEAARE4L100,0005T



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREBBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2015

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 £ Z2015% 1231 H 1 F/Z

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b) (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@)

(ii)

On 1 January 2011, Scud Electronics and Scud Stock
agreed to terminate the New Lease Agreement and
the Renewal Agreement with effect from 1 January
2011 and entered into a lease agreement (the "First
Lease Agreement”) for the period commencing from 1
January 2011 and ending on 31 December 2013. The
annual rental was RMB5,462,000 and payable by cash
on a monthly basis.

On 1 January 2014, Scud Electronics and Scud Stock
agreed to terminate the First Lease Agreement with
effect from 1 January 2014 and entered into a
lease agreement (the “Third Lease Agreement”) for
the period commencing from 1 January 2014 and
ending on 31 December 2016. The annual rental was
RMB8,544,000 and payable by cash on a monthly
basis.

On 1 January 2011, Scud Battery and Scud Stock
entered into a lease agreement (the “Second Lease
Agreement”) for the period commencing from 1
January 2011 and ending on 31 December 2013. The
annual rental was RMB6,730,000 and payable by cash
on a monthly basis.

On 1 January 2014, Scud Battery and Scud Stock
agreed to terminate the Second Lease Agreement
with effect from 1 January 2014 and entered into a
lease agreement (the “Fourth Lease Agreement”) for
the period commencing from 1 January 2014 and
ending on 31 December 2016. The annual rental was
RMB5,908,000 and payable by cash on a monthly
basis.

The rent payable under the Lease Agreement, the
New Lease Agreement, the Renewal Agreement,
the Old First Lease Agreement, the Renewal First
Lease Agreement, the Old Second Lease Agreement
and the Renewal Second Lease Agreement were
determined after arms’ length negotiations between
Scud Electronics and Scud Stock with reference to the
prevailing market rental for the comparable premises.

On 1 July 2014, Scud Electronics and Scud Technology
entered into a lease agreement for the period
commencing from 1 July 2014 and ending on 30
June 2016. The annual rental was RMB1,959,000 and
payable by cash on a monthly basis. Scud Electronics
and Scud Technology mutually agreed to terminate the
lease agreement with effect from 31 May 2015.

30. EALRF )

(o) (#&)

MIaE : (&)

(@)

(ii)

R2011F1A1H » REBREFHER
ERBRODWEB201MFE1A1E LR
IHEFHERERERBZELT LA
EHmE(IE—mHBEER=x]) - A5
B20119F1 818 #£ £2013%F12 A31
HiF-&#EH2 A ARES 462,000
JT B AURE I -

R2014F1H1H > RERE FHR
ERERMD W E B2014F1H1H #£ &
EE—mHEERELLHERHE
(IE=mlEHm=]  HHBHE2014
F1H1B #E E20165F12 8318 1k
FEME A ARYS 544,0000T ° 7B
BANBEEINT -

R2011F1A1H » RERE HHETR
ERRBRMILHEERZR(E_HHEE
W) HEIE2011F 1AV #EE
20135128318 1L- FEHEAA

R #6,730,0007T * B AUR® X
i o
MR2014F 1818 » RERE B ER

ERBDWHEB2014F1A1BER
FE-—mHEERZEYIVHAERZ
(IEBEMHmAERZ]) - HEIB2014
$1H1Etizo16¢1zﬂa1at
FEHE A ARYS,908,0005T * 7B
FRAUBREZT -

HEHE - NEERE - SRRE
FDEEEZ %—{“itfﬂ‘ﬁ%
& E_MEHERELE _MHEE
Tﬁ%u%IETE’]FEﬁ%EﬁTJﬂ_%%HaE 5 T8
REBRI D 2 LR FRERHRSIRA]
EMENERMEREMETE -

MR2014F7R18 RERSE 74
RERBREIIVHEERD > HEE
2014F7818 # £2016F6A30H
ke FEMEE A AKE959,000
’/,\ﬁ)zllf/\ﬁii'iﬁ RERET
RERER —HEERIEHAER
% M2015F5A31B £ »
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

184

(b)

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

On 27 February 2015, Scud Electronics and Scud
Technology agreed to terminate the Old Third Lease
Agreement with effect from 1 March 2015 and
entered into the lease agreement (the “Renewal
Third Lease Agreement”) for the period commencing
1 March 2015 and ending on 31 May 2015. The
rental for the three months ending 31 May 2015 was
RMB219,000 and payable by cash on a monthly basis.

On 19 May 2015, Scud Electronics and Scud
Technology entered into another lease agreement
for the period commencing from 1 June 2015 and
ending on 31 May 2018. The annual rental was
RMB2,173,000 and payable by cash on a monthly
basis.

On 1 January 2014, Scud Battery and Scud Technology
entered into a lease agreement for the period
commencing from 1 January 2014 and ending on 31
December 2016. The annual rental was RMB2,398,000
and payable by cash on a monthly basis.

On 30 April 2014, Scud Battery and Scud Technology
entered into another lease agreement for the period
commencing from 1 May 2014 and ending on 31
December 2016. The annual rental was RMB413,000
and payable by cash on a monthly basis.

The rental payable under the Old Third Lease
Agreement, the Renewal Third Lease Agreement, the
Forth Lease Agreement, the Fifth Lease Agreement
and the Sixth Lease Agreement were determined after
arm’s length negotiations between Scud Electronics,
Scud Battery and Scud Technology with reference
to the market rental for similar properties nearby in
the PRC and having taken into account availability of
similar premises nearby and the cost of relocation.

The purchase prices of raw materials and finished
goods are determined and agreed by both parties.

The selling prices of raw materials, finished goods and
property, plant and equipment are determined and
agreed by both parties.

The interest rate applied on the loan is determined
and agreed by both parties.

30. BEALRF )

(b)

(%)
B aE

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(#8)

2015928278 » TRERE T EHR
ERBEWEB2015F38 18K
WE=MERERZELLHERZ
(IBE=mEHEEWZ]) - HHAH
201593818 # Z=2015F5H31H
1k > B Z=2015F5A31HIE=EAH
e A ARE219,0000T © BAE AN
WEFZT -

201558190 MEMRE T &
MERBRTIY S —BHEWZ
B2015F681H # F20184F5A31
BiF- FEMceAAR2,173,000
T BAEBAURS SN -

R2014F1R1B RER E i &
REBBRTZAE R A
20141318 # Z2016F12H31
Bl - FEM% A AR2398,000
TT B AURE S -

R2014F 48308 © REMREHER
ERBMFEIIYS—BHERZ B
B E2014F581H £ £20165%12 8
3181 - FEHE A AREA413,000
JT B AURES S -

E=MHEBREWE F=0NENEE
s - BHNHEERE  FANHEE
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 39. EALERFZ )
(c)  Other transaction with related party: () HEEATMEMZS

(d)

As at 31 December 2015, Mr. Fang Jin has guaranteed
certain bank facilities made to the subsidiaries of the
Group of up to an amount of RMB117,044,000 (2014:
RMB233,258,000).

Remuneration for key management personnel, including
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in
Note 10, is as follows:

20159128318+ H & & £ 5t @
REEHRBAARESEESEAR
#117,044,00070(2014F : A R ¥
233,258,0007T ) By & TR 1T @b & 1 11 1&
R o

TEEEEAENME(BFMMEI0ON
KENEXNARRESME)MT

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T

Salaries, bonus, allowance and other benefits e e EEL R EMEF 2,187 2,301
Share-based payments expenses LARR 5 A Bt 2 TR 2 - 3,928
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RREFET BT 41 40

2,228 6,269
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40. COMMITMENTS 40. &IE

(a) Capital commitments (a) EXEE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T AREEFTT

Contracted but not accounted for, in respect of EREEWE - HE REHEE

acquisition of property, plant and equipment #ER AR 6 451
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REHEEHAE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RIREHR  AEERBETAIESESCEHA
outstanding minimum commitments under non—cancellable ERAT BEE A i REF R &IE
operating leases in respect of land and buildings which fall AENTR

due as follows:

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T

Within one year —FE R 26,984 27,407
In the second and fifth years inclusive MERF(BEEMFRIEEAN) 30,258 24,609
More than five years BiBRE - 2,245

57,242 54,261
None of the leases includes contingent rentals. The Group BREARAOT TNEESRAAEL - NEERH
does not have an option to purchase the leased land and MR EmME T EESEHE L W NIEFTRE
buildings at the expiry of the lease periods. FEHRE o
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

M. BERED2MBTA
RIBEHA - SEBIMETAGOEEENT -

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBT T
Financial asset MKEE
Available—for—sale financial assets A EIREE 1,000 -
Loans and receivables BERREWRRIE
Trade and notes receivables FEWE 550 IE R EREE 1,235,503 1,184,659
Financial assets included in prepayments, SFATENFIE - e R EMmEK
deposits and other receivables RIENBEE 21,019 43,263
Amounts due from related parties FEURBAE A +FRIE 56,714 57,975
Pledged bank deposits BEIRHIRITFR 596,121 422,104
Time deposits TEHER 140,000 60,000
Bank balances and cash RITHEB IR S 249,430 122,229
2,299,787 1,890,230
Financial asset at fair value through profit EAFEABREZHBEE
or loss (Note (b)) (FzE(b))
Fund investment ASRE 60,000 -
2015 2014
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised cost  amortised cost
BB A bi7g: S [DIN
SIERMBBERE RNV BAaRE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBET T
Financial liabilities BKEE
Trade and notes payables ENE S HIERENER 1,878,050 1,216,815
Financial liabilities included in other payables, & AE#bERTEIE « FEUERIE & fiE
receipts in advance and accrued charges SERRNYKARE 106,826 74,570
Bank loans RITER 339,956 380,552
Other loans HAb B 18,834 29,492
Obligations under finance leases BMAHEAE 13,007 -
Amount due to a director ENEEHIEA 105,520 42,683
Amounts due to related parties FETRAE A T5RIE 73,847 21,678
Amount due to an associate FEATBgE & A B 5RIE = 3
2,536,040 1,765,793
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

188

(a)

(b)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Above financial instruments which are measured at
amortised costs are not measured at fair value due to their
short term nature, the carrying values of the above financial
instruments approximate their fair values.

Financial instruments measured at fair value

The fund investment of the Group requires measurement
at fair value as detailed in Note 20. The fair value
measurement of which utilises market observable inputs
and data as far as possible. Inputs used in determining fair
value measurements are categorised into different levels
based on how observable the inputs used in the valuation
technique utilised are (the “fair value Hierarchy”).

Level 1:

F—H HRIEERAENERMSE 2 RECREHARE):
Level 2:

B

BRE—RMBIEZHREIN
BHAEBE: &
Level 3:
F=M inputs).

M. BERE D 2B TR

(a)

(b)

WHBERNFEFTEZHBETR

A B AT BN T A - HEEHN
BAARTENS A EMBIANKE
BEEENFERS -

BAFEFEZHBIA

AEBZESRERRATEFE  #5
BRMIEE20 - EAEREERATENAT
SABREABRRE - REERQFER
BRERZBAE  DREAMAZGEE
iR EANBABZATBRIZE MR
RTBENT R FHESR]):

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

ZEESRBEZER(AER) MR (AEERSL)BEM

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable

WIHKBABRZTEBBEE R EEXRRZBAB(THIBREZBARE) -

The classification of an item into the above levels is based
on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a significant
effect on the fair value measurement of the item.

The fund investments included in the Group’s financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are traded on
active liquid markets and fair value of which is determined
with reference to quoted market prices. Fair value of the
fund investments is a Level 1 fair value measurement. There
were no transfers between levels during the year.

DR/ LEAERNIAR HERMEREZ
HEAFEMBELEATVEZRESR
BAERE -

REEBEAFEFABRENTIEEER
ERERBORBMSHETRS  HRATE
SEMBRERTHESRE - ESREAE
MAFER—BRAFENE - RFERITE
[BMER% -
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 42. I BERMEERHMEIARE AT
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS &

(a) HERKRERE

(a) Financial risk management

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial

risks, which include market risk (including foreign currency

risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity

risk. Details of the policies on how to mitigate these risks

are set out below. The directors manage and monitor these

exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented

on a timely and effective manner.

(i)

Interest rate risk management

Interest—bearing financial assets are mainly pledged
bank deposits and bank balances which are all short—
term in nature and carry fixed interest rates. Interest—
bearing financial liabilities are mainly bank loans
with fixed interest rates; therefore, the Group is not
exposed to significant fair value interest rate risk due
to the short maturity of the items. The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging policy and will
consider enter into interest rate hedging should the
need arise.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
assuming that a change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rates for financial
instruments in existence at that date. A 1% increase
or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

AEENEFHERTSENHAR 28
TBER(BENERR - FIEERRE
BER) - EEERERBERR - 58
REZSRRNBEFNFERRTL - 8
FEBREBLEAB - AR R L
B R O -

(i) FIERBREE
HEMBEETEREHAEENEE
MIRITERSLIRITHEER - HREEF
KB - MEMBREIZA/RERE
MEFFBHRITER - At - A&KE
HETRAMIIHALRE - HUtI T
REAXNAFENRRER - REES
BRI 488 ) ) 2 3 Db B SR K R

BER AR o

FRYRBED T
ATHSRES T RN EEEH D
RBmERRBELEMETE - LERAR
R BE AR RAM BT A ZH
R -RATEEEEBABRERN
o [ i 0 P P o B {6 PR 28 AN sl
1% DEEBEEBHNEAEAEE
B2 5HA
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

190

(a) Financial risk management (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Interest rate risk management (Continued)

If interest rates had been 1% higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group's
profit for the year ended 31 December 2015 would
decrease/increase and the accumulated losses as
of 31 December 2015 would increase/decrease by
approximately RMB3,400,000 (2014: the Group's loss
for the year and accumulated losses would increase/
decrease by approximately RMB3,805,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure, to interest
rates on its variable rate bank balances, pledged bank
deposits and bank loans.

The Group’s bank balances also expose it to cash
flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the
prevailing market interest rate on the bank balances.
The directors consider the Group’s exposure on the
bank deposits is not significant as interest-bearing
deposits are within short maturity periods in general.

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates has not
changed significantly from prior year.

Foreign currency risk management

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movements
in foreign currency exchange rates which will affect
the Group’s financial results and its cash flows.
Although the Group has certain bank balances and
bank loans denominated in United States dollars,
Japanese Yen and Hong Kong dollars, the proportion
of these foreign currency balances to the Group'’s total
assets is insignificant. Furthermore, the Group carries
out majority of its transactions in Chinese Renminbi.
Accordingly, in the opinion of the directors, the Group
is not exposed to any significant foreign currency risk.

Price risk management

In the opinion of the directors, the Group does not
have significant exposure to price risk.

2. HHEEBREERMBEIAZRYT

BE#)

(a) BHBEBREEE)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

FIFRGBE D (E)

fim R =18 00,58 1 % T BT A5 E b, B
BHRHTE  KEEFHZE20159F12
A318 -5 E 8% 5 R 72015912
A31AM R EE LM R8N
A R #3,400,00070(20145 + A &
EHFAEBRZTEEBISI R
L# AR ¥E3,805,0007T) ° thhEE
REAEEFBRITHES - CIEIPER
TERRBRITEROFERER -

RTINS TR S
A BRI TR 2R B
KA - EERA - R BERE
HRESNE - AEEERORT
FRARTA -

4 B 0 F S G B AR S
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SN R i 45 1 B B SR B B G R AN KR
B BEERERSRENER
BEAEEERETUET  HER
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 42 . Bi#EREERMEIR 22T

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS B

(Continued)

(a) Financial risk management (Continued) (a) MBREBRERE)
(iv) Credit risk management (iv) EEREBEE

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk
primarily relates to the Group’s bank balances, trade
and notes receivables, and other receivables. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that
the counterparties fail to perform their obligations
as at end of the financial year in relation to each
class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the statement
of financial position. In order to minimise the risk,
management of the Group closely monitors overdue
debts. The recoverable amount of each individual
debt is reviewed at each of the reporting period and
adequate allowance for doubtful debts has been made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that credit risk associated
with the Group's trade and notes receivables, and
other receivables is significantly reduced.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
has a certain level of concentration of credit
risk as approximately 47.4% (2014: 36.2%) and
approximately 27.7% (2014: 66.3%) of the total trade
and notes receivables, arising from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers, respectively.

The credit risk on bank balances is minimal because
the counterparties are banks with high credit-rating.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical location is mainly in the PRC.

ERARESEFTEITANEEMS
BAKEMBEBRNRR - REBH
SERERTEENEEORITAELR
JEWE Z AR MR - AREM
FEFIRBR o W F IR RFE
RAREBITHRERSHEEHRAMKE
ENEE  FERRNKSER R
IR R ZEEENREE © &
TERERERR FAEENEEER
DIEREAEBER - SBILEEN
AR E RN & S MR e
FAN AT UK [B] B BRER 1F R S R AR B
BoBtME  ARAEERA - A
AR E R Y E 55K K IR A
REAMEEKEERNEERBREX
e

PSR - AEENEKE 5HFIE
RERERBERFE—EREN
FEERBREF - DRIH47.4% (2014
F:362%) K& #927.7% (20145 :
66.3%) ' IREREEZFAEP K
AREP °

HREF I IR EENRNRT - &
BEIRTTAERMEERBR A

FHERS  AEBEERRERE
AR o
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(a) Financial risk management (Continued)
(v) Liquidity risk management

The ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the board of directors, which
has built an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Group’s
short, medium and long term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves,
banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows
and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets
and liabilities.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at 31 December 2015 and 2014, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

. BEEREERBEIAEZAF
=1C )

(a) BHBEBREEE)

(v) mEMtEREE
REBAEENES  PHEEHE
eRFERDUEEENER EFE
ERY—E/ENRBESRARER
HE - YERBUERREEBKKE
- ARBEBRRFTRROMFHE ]
TREMFREERE  RSGEE
BERRRERRDRE - WIRSHE
BESAENIHARTAEE RS
MR -

20154 %2014 12A318 » A&
BRI aEREC T AARIIERE

EEIEERAT
2015
Less than Total Total
1 year or More than undiscounted carrying
on demand 1-5 years 5years  cash flows amount
PR-F FER

qfEX  -FEF BBIF ROREAE  RE4R
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR  AR®TR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARRTR

Trade and notes payables EREZTEREREE 1,878,050 = - 1878050 1,878,050

Financial liabilities included in other payables, 5t AEERZE - EEUE
receipts in advance and accrued charges REAERNIHERE 106,826 - - 106,826 106,826
Bank loans HIER 349,989 - - 349,989 339,956
Other loans EHER 12,014 7,5% - 19,608 18,834
Obligations under finance leases REMRESRE 5,707 8,085 - 13,792 13,007
Amount due to a director ENEZTE 105,520 - - 105,520 105,520
Amounts due to related parties ENEEALTE 73,847 - - 73,847 73,847
2,531,953 15,679 - 2,547,632 2,536,040
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(a) Financial risk management (Continued)

(v) Liquidity risk management (Continued)

4. BEEREERMEIAZAF
=1C )

(a) MBRABEEE)
(v) mEHEREE(E)

2014
Less than Total Total
1 year or More than  undiscounted carrying
on demand 1-5 years 5 years cash flows amount
SR REER

gEf  -Enf  BBRF RERELE®  BESE
RMB'OOO  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'00D
ARETL  ARRTT  ARETR  ARRTR  ARRTR

Trade and notes payables ERESHEARENER 1216,815 - - 1,216,815 1,216,815

Financial liabilities included in other payables, 5t AEAhJEMZE - R
receipts in advance and accrued charges RETERNGBEE 74,570 - - 74,570 74,570
Bank loans RITER 389,095 617 - 389,712 380,552
Other loans HivEH 12,183 19,884 - 32,067 29,492
Amount due to a director EREZZE 42,683 - - 42,683 42,683
Amounts due to related parties ENBEATHE 21,678 - - 21,678 21,678
Amount due to an associate EBENmTE 3 - - 3 3
1,757,027 20,501 - TTS8 1,765,793

(b) Fair values of financial instruments

The notional amounts of financial assets and liabilities

with a maturity of less than one year are assumed to

approximate their fair values.

The fair value of balances with related parties has not been

determined as the timing of the expected cash flows of

these balances cannot be reasonably determined because of

the relationship.

(b) BBTARZAFE
FHIN—FNMHEERRENEES
BHURR/EXFERE -

BREEA T ESRNFERRSRNERERA
MENBERMBESBHETE WA EE
ERFREHBHRFE
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43.

194

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it, in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes during the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. The Group’s
policy is to maintain the gearing ratio below 50%. Net debt
includes interest—bearing borrowings. Capital includes equity
attributable to owners of the Company and the non-controlling
interests. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting period
were as follows:

43. EXRER

AEENTIEEAEERBRAREASEIFE
REmEE  BRRRENERLE  UXHE
BRARREGRADIR

REEETBEEAREE WHAERRNEE
REMEENRBMEHEREEETHE -
REFHFAERERNER  FEETRABIRMNEK
REMRE  MREEEIE AR BEITHR - A&
ETZAEMIINRERHERNREMRS - HE
20154 K2014F12A31HILFE - W EHE
Z - BURSKIZFR{E B % -

AEBEFEREERBHLRERERN  FEE
BABRERIFAEE ARENBREREE
BELENRS0% AT - FREBEMBENR -
BARBEARBHEA AR R IEE I
& e RIREHR  BEABLEWT

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFT

Interest-bearing borrowings INSRE=E N 371,797 410,044
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ZNA &]#EH ARG 1,025,750 992,511
Non-controlling interests FEFERLRE S 28,863 43,495
Total capital FEEEWIN 1,054,613 1,036,006
Gearing ratio EEAGBLE 35.3% 39.6%




SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREBBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2015

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fra MR R AR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2015 E£2015% 12531 H 1F F/Z

44. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED 44. it E&ASBE®E
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and RATEESDN2018F4 308 #it & & 1% #E
authorised for issue by the board of directors of the Company B4z S BB R -
on 30 April 2018.
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RESULTS E S
The Group REH
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREF T ARETF T ARETFT AREF T
(Restated)
(&ZE5))
Turnover SE ] 4,509,441 3,728,814 2,395,816 1,821,620 1,653,011
Profit/(loss) before BrATEELAl
income tax WAl (E8) 41,536 15,871 (197,179) (215,056) 67,223
Income tax e (18,000) (22,733) 41,423 22,450 (12,308)
Profit/(loss) for the year AEZHRF/ (HE) 23,536 (6,862) (155,756) (192,606) 54,915
Profit/(loss) for the year TH AL
attributable to: AEREEF/ (B8):
Owners of the Company ~ ARAGFHEBA 38,168 (1,696) (144,936) (162,815) 59,492
Non-controlling interests  3E{ZAREZS (14,632) (5,166) (10,820) (29,791) (4,577)
23,536 (6,862) (155,756) (192,606) 54,915
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
The Group FEE
At 31 December
M12A31H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ETR AREF T AREF T ARETF T ARETT
(Restated)
(lE5l)
Total assets BEE 3,723,315 2,973,929 2,218,652 2,113,100 1,998,181
Total liabilities EEE (2,668,702) (1,937,923) (1,230,815) (949,667) (650,501)
1,054,613 1,036,006 987,837 1,163,433 1,347,680
Attributable to: THIALELN -
Owners of the Company EN/NCE =N 1,025,750 992,511 939,127 1,102,895 1,233,034
Non-controlling interests FEER R 28,863 43,495 48,710 60,538 114,646
1,054,613 1,036,006 987,837 1,163,433 1,347,680
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2014, 31 December 2015,
31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017 will be held at the same time to be announced in due course.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

I would like to thank the Board, management and all members of our staff for their dedication and
loyalty. I would also like to thank our Shareholders and business associates for their strong support
to the Group.

CONTINUED SUSPENSION OF TRADING

Trading in the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange will continue to be suspended pending the
fulfilment of the resumption conditions referred to in the Company’s announcement dated 13 July 2015.
The Company will make an announcement about status update of fulfilment of resumption conditions
when appropriate.

On behalf of the Board of
SCUD Group Limited
Fang Jin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 April 2018

As at the date of this announcement, the Board comprises Mr. Fang Jin, Mr. Guo Quan Zeng and Mr.
Feng Ming Zhu being the executive Directors, Mr. Zhang Li and Mr. Hou Li being the non-executive
Directors, and Dr. Loke Yu, Mr. Wang Jing Zhong, Mr. Wang Jian Zhang and Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor
being the independent non-executive Directors.





